
 
 

 

Date: August 05, 2025 

 

To, 

The Manager, 

Listing Compliance Department, 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, 

Bandra kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 

Mumbai-400051 

 

Scrip Code – QFIL 

ISIN: INE0O1M01015 

 

Subject: Intimation of Annual Report of Quality Foils (India) Limited (“Company”) for the Financial 

Year 2024-25. 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR, Regulations) 2015, we hereby wish to intimate that 35th Annual 

General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is scheduled to be held on Thursday, September 04, 2025, at 

10:30 A.M. at the registered office of the Company situated at 3 – Industrial Development Colony, Hisar-

125005, Haryana. 

Pursuant to regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR Regulations) 2015, we hereby submit the Annual Report of the 

Company containing Notice of AGM for the financial year 2024-25.  

The Annual Report containing the Notice is also uploaded on the website of the Company at 

https://www.qualitygroup.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/08/Annual%20Report_2024-25.pdf 

Kindly take the same on records and oblige. 

Thanking You, 

 

For Quality Foils (India) Limited        

                                
Amelia Nelson 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 

Encl. As Above 

 

https://www.qualitygroup.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/08/Annual%20Report_2024-25.pdf
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NOTICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY FIFTH (35TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (•AGM") OF 
QUALITY rOILS (INDIA) UMITED rcoMPANY.J wnL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 04, 2025 
AT 10:30 A.M. AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE SITUATED AT 3- INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COLONY, 
HISAR-125005, (HARYANA), TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWlNG BUSINESSES: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

l. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2025 including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss Accounts and Cash How statement along with reports of the Board of Director's 
and tbe Auditor's thereon. 

2. To reappoint Mr. Kuldip Bhargava as Director Uable to retire by rotation under Section 152 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

3. To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor of the Company 

To con.<11der and 1{ thought fit. to pass with or without mod,ficaoon(.~) the jollowmg resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

· RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisiOns of Sect10n 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Compan1es Act. 2013 and the Companies {Aud1t and Auditors) Rules. 2014 (mcluding any statutory 

modlflcacion(s) or re-enactme nt the reof, for the t1me being 111 force) and as approved by the Board of 
Directors in accordance with the recommendation of Audit Committee, the remuneration of Rs. 38,500/­
(Rupees Thirty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred only) plus appltcaulc taxe!> and reimbursement of actual 

travel and out of pocket expenses, to be paid to M/s N. R. Goyal & Co .. Cost Accountants (Firm 
Reglc;tralion No. 1 01252), to conduct the audit of cost recorcts of the Company, fo r the financial year 
2025-26 be and IS hereby ratified. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Directors o f the Company be and arc hereby authonzed to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and thmgs as may be necessary, desi rable or exped1ent to give effect to th1s resolution." 

4. To consider and recommend the Managerial Remuneration, in excess of limits as per Schedule V 
of the Companies Act. 2013. 

fo constder and, if thought fir. co pass wtth or wtthouc modtficatwns, the [ollow1ng resolution as Spedal 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec:tions 197 read w1th Schedule V and other applicable 
prOVISIO~. 1f any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appomtment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modlficatlon(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof 
for the t1me being in fo rce), consent of the members be and ~~ hereby accorded for the payment of 
mnnn~crial remuneration to Mr. Tejasvi Rhargava (Mana~-:mA Director) and Mr. Kuldip Bhargava 
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(Chairman) m excess of the limits prescribed under Sect ion 197 read with schedule V (Section II of Part 
II) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the event of inadequacy of profits for the financial year 2025 -26 based 
on the estimated projections of the net profits calculated under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
in accordance with the terms and conditions approved by the Board of Directors and as set out in the 
explanatory statement 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereat) 
be and is hereby authorised to vary, alter or modify the terms and conditions of appointment including 
remuneration w1thin the overall limits specified under the Act and Schedule V and to do all such acts, 
deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution." 

5. To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava as the Managing Director of 
the Company and variation in terms of appointment pursuant to Section 196, 203 and 152 of the 
Companies Act 2013. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as Special 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to d1e provisions of Sections Section 196, 203 and 152 read with Schedule V 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re­
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force and in accordance with the articles of association, and 

upon the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the Board of 
Directors of the Company, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. 
Tejasvi Bhargava (DI N: 00011205) as t he Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 5 
(Five) years, with effect from March 01, 2026 to February 28, 2031 (inclusive of both dates), at a 
remuneration and on such terms and condit1ons as set out below with liberty and authority of Board of 
Directors (hereinafter referred the "Board" and shall include the "NRC" of the Board) to alter and vary 
the terms and conditions including remuneralion of the said re-appointment from time to time within 
the scope of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, or any other amendment thereto or any re­
enactment thereof as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V and the 
applicable provisions of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and 
other applicable provisions, rules 1f any, of the Companies Act. 2013 and any other laws, regulations 
prevailing for the time being in force and other statutory approvals, as may be required, the Company do 
hereby approves the remuneration of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava with effect from March 01. 2026 to February 
28, 2031 (inclusive of both dates) as the Managing Director of the Company, as recommended by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board is noted hereunder: 

a) Remuneration : 

Basic Salary: Rs. 3,00,000/· per month 

Expenses incurred by the Company on his electricity, water and furn ishing shall be evaluated as per 
I nco me Tax Rules 1962 
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Perquisites & others: Contribution to the Prov1dent Fund, Family benefit fund and Superannuation 
fund and other funds as prescribed. 

Car: The Company shall provide a Car for the Company business and if no car is provided, 
reimbursement of the conveyance shall be as per the actual on the basis of claims made by him. 

Telephone: Free use of Telephone at his residence provided that personal long distant calls on the 
telephone shall be billed by the Company to the Director. 

Travelling: Reimbursement of Foreign and Domestic travel expenses for himself and his family. 

Medical benefi ts: Reimbursement of mec:tical expenses on actual basis for self and his family as per 
Company rules. 

b) Others: 

a) Leave travel concessions for self and his family as per the rules of the Company. 

b) Bonus /ex-gratia as per the rules of the Company. 
c) Gratuity as per the rules of the Company, subject to a maximum ceiling as may be prescribed in 

the payment of gratuity act from time to time. 
d) Leave with full payment or encashment thereof as per the rules of the Company. 
e) Club fees subject to maximum of two clubs. 
f) Any other allowances as per Company rules to other employees. 

No Sitting fees shall be paid for attending any meeting. 

The office of Director may be terminated by the Company or the concerned director by giving the 

one month prior notice in writing to other Board of Directors. 

RESOLVED FURT HER T HAT in add1tion to the terms and conditions already approved by the members, 
at the time of his previous appointment, the members do hereby approve the below mentioned 
revised/additional terms and conditions of re-appointment and remuneration of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava as 
Managing Director, which shall be read in conjunction with and form an integral part of the earlier 

approved terms. 

The revised/additional terms and conditions for the re-appointment of the Managing Director as stated 

below: 

a. Minimum Remuneration in case of lack or inadequacy of Profits: Where in any financia l year 
during the currency of tenure of the Managing Director, we have nil profit or the profits are inadequate, 
the Managing Director shall be paid remuneration as under: 

• Remuneration shall be payable in accordance with Section II, Part II of Schedule V of the 

Companies Act, 2013 or on the basis of calculations based upon the prevaiUng provisions or 
subject to the prior approval of shareholders, based on the effective capital of the Company and 
accordance with the approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at the relevant 

point of time; 
• Contributions to Provident Fund, Superannuation fund or Annuity Fund to the extent singly or 

taken together are not caxable under the Income Tax Act. 1961; 
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Gratu•lY Payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service, 
and 

Encashmenl of Leave at the end of lhc lcnurc . 

b.Managmg Director shall be identified as DlrCltor liable to retire by RoLauon at Annual General 
Mecnngs pursuant lo Sccoon 152 of the Compan~t:s Act 2013. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of D1reetors of lhe Company be and 1s hereby authorized to take 
all such steps and .tct1ons and to do all such acL<;, deeds, matters and lhmgs tJS may be necessary or 

desirable, including execution of any document<;, instruments or writmgs, to tt•ve effect to this 
resolution." 

6. To approve and authorize Board of Directors of the Company to borrow money pursuant to 
Section 180(1}(a), 180(1)(c) and 179ofthe Compan1esAct, 2013. 

To constder and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modJficacions, che jollowmg resoluaon as Special 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED TIIAT pur<;uant to the prov1sions of Section 180(1)(c} read with Section 180(1)(a) along 
with other applicable prov1sions. if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules 
(mcluding any sta tutory modlfkation(s) or re-enactment{s) thereof for the lime being m force), and 111 

supersession of all earher resolutions passed m thts regard, the consent of the members be and is hereby 
accorded to gra nt the authoriz-ation & power to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to .lS •the Board~ wh1ch term shall include any Commtttee thereof) to borrow. from time to time. 

m any number of rranches (apart from temporary loans) obtamedfto be obtamed from the company's 

bankers, in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves, and securities premium 
account but up to a limit of which in aggregJte shall not exceed Rs. 150,00,00,000/- (Ru pees One 
llundred Fifty Crore Clnly). 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to authorize the 
Doard of Director<; to sell. lease or otherw1se d1spose of. or to creaw charges, mortgages, or 
hypothecatiOn on lhe whole or substantially the whole of the company's undertalong(s), whether present 
or future, for securing any borrowing. as per Sectton 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 for the 
purpose of undertaking the transactions wh1ch falls under the ambit of Section 180ll)(c) of the Act as 

the borrowmgs may also require the creation of charge or security on the company's assets etc. 

Accordingly, the members approval via special resolutions is accorded to: 

1. Authonze the Board to borrow money exceeding the specified threshold under Section l80(1)(c); 
and 

2. Authori.:c the Board to create security or charge on the company's assets as per Section 180( l )la). 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authonsed to do all such acts. 
deeds. matters. and thmgs as may be necessary. desirable. or expedient to give effect to this resolution, 
including bur not hrn1ted to finalising terms and condllions of such borrowmgs and executing necessary 
documents." 
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To give authorization to advance/ give loan, give any guarantee or to provide any security 
pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Ac::t, 2013. 

To consider and, if thought flt, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as Special 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185(2) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof tor the time being in force), in 
supersession of all the previous resolutions passed in this regard, and subject to such approvals as may 
be necessary, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to grant the authorization & powers 
to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Board", which term sha ll be 
deemed to include any commit tee thereof) for providing loan(s), guarantee(s), or security(ies) in 
connection with any loan taken by the following entities from time to time in any number oftranches, for 
the purpose of conducting business activities and meeting fu nd requirements, which are persons in 
whom the directors of the Company are interested, fo r their principal business activities: 

• Name of the Entities- Quality Stainless Pn vate Limited, Quality Bio Green Private Limited and Quality 
Bioenergy LLP. 

• Nature of Relationship- Mr. Kuldip Bhargava, Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava and Mr. Tapasvi Bhargava are the 
Directors/ Members. 

up to an aggregate outstanding amount not exceeding Rs. 150,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Fifty 
Crore only) on such terms and conditions (including interest rate, repayment terms, and security) as may 
be decided by the Board ofDirectors of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby author ised to 
negotiate, finalise, approve and execute all necessary documents, deeds, agreements, and writings, and to 
do all such acts, deeds, and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution." 

8. To give authorization to grant loan to any person, give guarantee or provide security, acquire by 
way of subscription in securities pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as Special 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to t11e provisions of Section 186(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companjes Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules. 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereo f for the time being in force) and in 
supersession of a ll the previous resolutions passed in this regard. consent of the members be and is 
hereby accorded to grant the author ization and powers to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as "the Boar·d", which terrn shall include any Committee thereof) to: 

• give any loan(sJ to Mjs Quality Stajnless Private Limited, Mjs, Quality Bio Green Private Limited and 
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Mjs Quality Bioenergy Limited Liability Partnership (LLP); 

• give any guarantee(s) or provide any security(ies} in connection with a loan to M/s Quality 
Stainless Private Limited, M/s, Quality Bio Green Private Limited and M/s Quality Bioenergy 
Limited Liability Partnership (LLP); and 

• acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of M/s Quality Stainless 
Private Limited, Mjs, Quality Bio Green Private Limited and M/s Quality Bioenergy Limited 
Liability Partnership (LLP), 

including amount already borrowed or to be borrowed from time to time by the following entities in 
any number ofcranches for the purpose of continuation of business activities which is exceeding the 
limit of 60% of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account of the 
Company or 100% of free reserves and securities premium account of the Company, whichever is 
more, up to an aggregate amount of Rs. 1,50,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crores only) 
as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
determine the actual sum to be invested, loaned, guaranteed or secured from time to time, and to 
negotiate and finalize the terms and conditions, execute necessary agreements, and to do aJI such 
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution." 

9. Appointment of M/s Rajesb Garg & Company as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a 
period of Five Years 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as 
Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 
9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration personnel) Rules 2014 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended by the SEBI (LODR) (Third 

Amendment) ReguJations. 2024, and other applicable provisions, the approvaJ of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to appoint M/s Rajcsh Garg & Co. (Practicing Company Secretaries), (FCS No. 
5960), a Peer-Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice (Peer Review Certificate No. 799/2020) 
having its Office at 1226, Urban Estate-II, Hisar, Haryana 125001, to act as the SecrctariaJ Auditor of 
the Company for a term of five consecutive years with effect from April 1, 2025 on such 
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kuldip Bhargava (Director) and Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava (Managing 
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Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized lO finalize the terms of appointment, including 
audit fees. enter into necessary engagement letters, and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be necessary to give eJfect to this resolution, and lo comply with applicable provisions 
concerning tenure. cooling-off periods, and eligibility cnteria under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Registered Office: 
3 Industrial Development Colony 
Hisar. Haryana 125005 

Date: August 05, 2025 

Place: llisar 
Kuldip Bhargava 

Director 
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NOTES: 

I. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 

ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF IIIMSEl. F/HERSELF AND THE PROXY SO APPOINTED NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY. DULY COMPLETED, MUST BE RECEIVED NOT LESS THAN 48 

HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE 
COMPANY IN ORDER TO MAKE THE PROXIES EFFECTIVE. 

A person can act as a proxy 011 behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more 
than 10 percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting nghts, as applicable. A member 
holding more than 10 percent a{ the total share capital of the Company and carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not ace as a proxy for any other person or 
shareholder. Proxy form and attendance slip are enclosed with the Notice. Members 1 Proxies 1 Authorized 
Representatives should bring the1r Attendance Slip duly filled in {or attending the meeting. 

Proxy holder shall carry hts valid identity proof (Aadhaar Card, Driving License, Voter ID Card, Passport, 
PAN Card) in order to prove his identity. 

2. The route map of the venue of the meeting is annexed towards the end of this Notice hereto. 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are 

requested to send a cert1fied copy of the Board resolution to the Company, authorising their 

representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

4. Members can inspecr proxies lodged with the Company during the period from 24 hours before the 

meeting to the conclusion of the meeting by giving notice, in writing. at-least three days in advance. 

5. In case of joint holders attending the meeting. only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 

name, shall be entitled to vote. 

6. Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Compames Act, 2013 relating to the Special Business to be 

tnmsacted at tbe meeting is annexed hereto and the same should be t-aken as part of this Notice. 

7. Information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligat ions and Disclosure Hequirements) 

Regulations. 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 regarding Director seeking appointment at the meeting are 
provided as an Annexure A hereto. 

8. All documents referred to in the Notice along with Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel & 

the1r Shareholding. maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts 

and Arrangements, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 in which Directors are 

interested are <.~vailable for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on 

working days up to the date of the AGM. 

9. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to update the details pertaining to their 

shareholdmg such as change of addressfname, bank details. ECS mandate, nominations, power of 

attorney etc. with their Depository Participants. However the members who hold shares in physical 

form may write to the Company Secretary at 3- Industrial Development Colony, Hisar-125005. Haryana 
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or RTA at M/s. B1gshare Services Pvt Ltd., Office No. $6-2, 61 Floor, Pmnade Busmess Park. Next to 
Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves, Road. Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059, lnd1a, Tel.: +91 22 62638200, 
Fax: +91 22 62638299. Email: ~ Jhl f,! ;,S• tne.com 

I 0. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') has mandated transfer of ~ecurities in physical mode 
lO be ll1scommuet.l w1th effect from April 01, 201 <J. effective trom 1 o;t April, 201 <J. Further SEBI received 
representation from investors as well as RTJ\s and listed wmpc~n•es that some of the investors had 
m1ssed the t1melmes for re-lodging their documenrs for transter of securities and in order to facilitate 
ease of mvesting for investors and to secure the rights of Investors In the securities which were 
purchased by them, it has been decided to open a spectal window only lor re-lodgement of transfer 
deeds, which were lodged prior to the deadline of April 01. 2019 and rejected/ returned/not attended to 
due lo deficiency in the documents/ process/or otherwise, for a period of six months from July 07, 2025 
lJJI )a1tuc1ry 06, 2026. 

II. Accordingly. requests for physical transfer of set urtllC~ of It sled entitles shall nol be processed from 1st 
Apnl, 2019 onwards. In view of such amendment and m order to elimmate the nsks assodated 
w1th phys1cal holdmg of shares, Members who are holdmg o;hares an phys1cal form are hereby requested 
to dematerialize the1r holdings. 

12. Members who have not regiStered their e-mail addresses so tar, are requested to register their e-mail 
addre~ for rece1vmg all communication mcludmg Annual Heport. Notices, Circulars etc. from the 
Comp.my electromcaJiy. 

13 Pur~u<mt to SectiOns 101 and 136 of the Compames Act, 2013 re<ld w1th the relevant Rules made there 
under and Regulation 36 and 44 of the SEBI (LI.,lmg ObligatiOn~ and D1sclosurc Requirements) 
Regulat1ons, 2015, the Notice of AnnuaJ General Mect.mg wtll be sent by electronic mode only to the 
members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company 1 Depository Participant(s). 
Members who have not registered their e-mail address so far arc requested to register their e-mail 
address for receiving all communication including the Notice of 1\nnua l General Meeting from the 
Company, electronically. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report tor the F/Y 2024-25 will 
also he availahlc on the Company's website: llttD!) J~w~..!l!l.l!mPn.l!U:W.niiJuJ!ttyfillhl 

14. Pursuant to SectiOn 72 of the Companies Act 2013. members hold mg shares m physical form are 
adv1sed to me nomination in the prescribed Form Sll-13 wirh the Company's share transfer agent In 
respect of shares held m electronic/ demat form, the member<; may please contact tbe1r respective 
depos1tory part1c1pant 

15. Members may please note that SEBI has made Permanent 1\ccount Number (PAN) as the sole 
Identification number for all participants transacting m the secuntJec; market. Irrespective of the amount 
of such transacoons. SEBI has also made 1t mandatory for ~ubmL'iSIOn of PAN rn the following cases: (i) 
Dclet1on ol name of the deceased member(s) (ii) Transm1ss1on of shares to the legal heir(s) and (iii) 
Transposition of shares. Further, the Member<> are reque~ted to kmdly note that as per SEBI circular 
be:mng no SEBI/HO/M IRSSD_ RTAMB/PCIR/2021/655 dated 3rd November. 2021, it is mandatory for 
Members holdmg shares in physical form to register thc1r PAN. KYC details. Bank Particulars and 
Nonunallon dgamst their fo lio no. PAN is also required to be hoked to Aadhar No. by the Members to be 
cons1dercd as valid PAN. Members are requested to provide Form lSIU, ISR2, Nomtnation Form duly 
filled and signed along with the hard copy of the followmg self-atteo;ted documents to RTA for 



Qualif) Foils (India) Limited 

reg•stranon agamst thetr respective folio(s) : 

Identity Proof. Copy of PAN Card/ Aadhar Card 

• Addac:.s Proof Copy of Aadhar Card/ Passpon/ Client MJster l.tsl/ Uuliry Btll not over 3 months old 

Bank Dct<ub: Copy of the cancelled cheque statmg the name of the Member as account holder Contact 
DctJils: Mobile no .. cmaiiJD 

NomtnJtll)n: Please provtde Fonn SH13 duly filled and stgned lo RTA 

In the ,tbsenc.:e of any of the above mformanon registe red c~gamsl your Coho uo., your fo lio no. will be 
frozen fo1 Jny updalion/ dividend payment as per the dircclion under the ato resaid Circular. 

16. Voting through e lectronic means 

1. In compliance with the provisions ofSection 108 of the Compmues Act. 2013 read with the Rule 20 
of the Compames (Management and Admmtstranon) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies 

(Management and Admmistration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and HegulatJon 44 of the SEBI (J..isting 
Ohhgattons and Dtsclosure Requirements) Rel,'ll latmns. 2015, the Company 1s pleased to provide the 
mernhers a fac•ltty to exercise their right w vote on the re'iolut1on proposed to be cons1dered at the 
Annudl General Meeting (~AGM1 by electromc means The members may cc~st thetr votes using an 
elecrronic voting system from a place other than the venue ot the meeting ('remote e-voting'). 

ii. The lacthty lor voting through ballot paper o;ystem c;hall dl'>o be made c~vatlable c1t the venue of the 
mt>ctmg and the members attendmg the mectmg who have not cast Lhe1r vote by remote e-voting 
shall be able to vote at the meeting through above voting system. 

iii . The members who have cast their vote by remote e-vo(lng may alc;o attend the meetmg but shall 
not be entitled to cast thei r vote again. 

iv. The Company has engaged the serv1ces or M/s RigshCire Se rvices Private Limited (hereina fter 
c<tlled Lhc HRTAN) as the Agency to provtdc e·votm~ factlt ty. 

v. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Rajesh Garg, Prnctici ng Company Secreta ry (Membership 
No. 5960), as Scrutinizer to scrutintzc the remote c -votmg and vollng al the meetmg in a fair a nd 
transp.Jrent manner. 

vi A per;on whose na me is recorded in the Rcgtster of Members or 111 the Register of Benefictal 
Ownerc; mamtamed by the Depositories as on the cut-off date 1.e. August 28, 2025 shall be entitled 
to vote. The votmg rights of the members shall be 111 propon10n to thetr share!> of the paid-up equity 
o;h.Jre capt tal of the Company as on the cut-off date. 

VII The voung nghts of members shall be in proportiOn to their shares of the paid-up equity share 
capJtal ot the Company as on the cut-off date • e Au~ust 28. 2025. 

VIii Any person. who become a member of the Company atter dtspatch of the Notice of the meeting and 
holding shares as on the em-off date i.e. August 28, 2025 may obtain the login 10 and password by 
sendmg a request at ntJ;;r.~st~Q- .t... .....n 

" · the voung penod begms on September 01, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. c1nd ends on September 03, 2025 
(1ST) at 05:00 P.M. (1ST) During this period shareholders' of the Company, holdmg shares either m 
phy!>lt;al form or 10 demater ialized form. as on the cut -otf date {record date) of August 28, 2025 may 
cast thctr vote electronically. The e-votmg mod ule s hall he dtsabled by B•gshare for voting 
lhereaftcr. 
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X. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue. 

xi. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P /20201242 dated 09.12.2020, under 
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requjrements) Regulations, 2015. listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 

its shareholders. in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However. it has been observed that the 
participation by the public non-mstitutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

xii. Currently, there a re multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessi tates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 
lOs and passwords by the shareholders. 

xiii . In order to increase the efficiency of dte voting process, pursuant to a public consultation. it has 
been decided to enable e-vodng to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, 

through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account 
holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 

only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in 
e-voting process. 

How do I yote electronicallY usine Bi&:share i-Yote E-Vottne Svstem? 

The way to vote electronically on RTA e~Voting system consists af'Two Steps" which are mentioned below: 

A) Login method fore-Voting for lndividuaJ shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms ofS£81 circular no. SEBJIHOICFDICMDIC/ RIP 12020/242 dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting (qciUty 
provided bv Listed Companies. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to voce 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and cleoository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email ld in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login metl10d for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities In De mat mode is given below: 

Type of Login Method 

shareholders 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi I Easiest facility, can login through 
Individual their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 
Shareholders reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 
holding users to login to Easi/Easiest is 
securities in ht112:>.L L\~~b.nlsli net J<t .,om Lm~~:~si1QbcnLbam~ liQI:ID or visit CDSL 
Demat mode websi te \\WW.cdsljndj,tcom and click on login icon & New System 
with CDSL Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi username & password. 

2) After successful login the Easi I Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of BIGSHARE thee-
Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website 
for ca~-ring your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, 
there 1s a lso links provided to access the system of all e -Voting Serv1ce 
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Prov1ders i.e. BIGSHARE. so that the user lcln VISit the c-Voung service I 
proVIders' website d1recdy. 

3) If the user- is not reg1stered tor E.1'i1jEas1est, option to register rs 
available at 

'lms., /\• eh.cdshnd1<t.com/ mrr IS(token/!ier,a~trat!On/EdstHc.-.strJ ttl. 

11 

4) Alternatively, the user t:an dtn.•clly accc~s e Vollng p;:.ge by providing 

Demat Account Number ;mel PAN No. trom a link 
hups://evoting.cdslmtlliLU.llnJ.l'vauru:ltvilll.llJj,~ The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on regtstered Mobtle & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After -:un:essful authentJc-auon, user 

w1ll be able to see the e-Votin~ option where the c-volmg 1s 1n progress, 

and also able to d1rectJy access the -;y'>tcm of all c-Votmg Service 
Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you w1ll be re-directed to i-Vote 

websi te for casong your vore durmg the rpmotc e-votmg period. 
~------------~~--------~~~~---

1) If you are already reg~srered for NSDL J()eAS tac1hty, please VISit thee-
lnd1v1dual 
Shareholder:. 

holdmg 

sccunues 111 

dcmat mode 
with NSOL 

Services webSJte of NSDL. Open web browser by typmg the following 

URL: · · m-. l."'cr. ··l" • e1thcr on .1 Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of c-Serviccs IS launched. click on the 

Beneficial Owner· icon under ·Login· whu.h IS <IVallable under 'IDeAS' 

section. A new screen will open You will have to enter your User 10 
and Password. After successful authentication, you w1ll be able to see e­

Voting services. CJick on ''Access to e-Votmg" under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Chck em company name ore­

Votmg service provider name BIGSHARE uiH.I you w1ll be re-directed to 

1-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

2) If the user is not registered tor IDeAS e-Servlces, option ro re(,rister is 

available at htt:psJi~'S! rv1tes n..;cll cum. Select "Regisler Online for 
IOeAS "Portal or click at 
htms //e,.eryJtes.nstl l.l\Jm/:>l·~urt·.Wcll/lU.~·..t; lllLnWq!.f ~!l 

3) Vis1t the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by lypmg the 

fo llowing URL: ~ .1~ "'' Ll 'l liL' 11 dl ~' e1ther on a Personal 
Computer or on a mob1le. Once the home p<~gc of e-Votmg system 1s 

launched, click on the icon "Login" wh1ch IS available under 

'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen w1ll open You wHI have 

to enter your User ID (1.e your Sixteen d1g1t demat account number 

hold with NSDL). Password/OTP and a Venhcat1on Code as shown on 

the screen. After successful authentication. you will be red1rected to 

NSDL Depository Site wherem you can see e-Voung page. Click on 
company name or e-Voung servllC prov1dcr n.une BIGSHARE and you 

will be redirected to i-Vote website tor castmg your vote during the 
remote e-Voting penod. 

4) For OTP based login you can Click 

Oil bttps / t!i51.C, I ;cs I •,!II.J. 'llJ">\'\ llr!. \~ b 'iOllr • YOlll] ,!IOI;tn.!Sp. 

You will have to enter your U-digit Df> I D.U-d1g1t Client ld, PAN No., 

Verificatio n code and generate 0'1'1'. Enter the OTI' rece1ved on 
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registered email ld/mobile number and click on login. After successful 
authenttcatton, you w11l be redtrected to NSOL Depository site wherein 
you can see e-Voting page w1th all e-Voting Service Prov1ders. Click on 

BIGSRAR.E and you wl11 be re-directed to i· vote (E· voling webs ite) 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voong period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting dunng the meeting. 
You can also login usmg the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depos1tory P<trtlctpant registered w1lh NSDL/CDSL for e­
Voting facility. After Successful login, you wiU be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voling option, you will be rcd1rected Lo 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or c ·Yoting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e·Voting service provider 
webs1Le for casting your vote dunng the remote e-Votlng penod. 

Important pote; Members who are unable to retrieve User 10/ Password are adyjsed to use forget User ID 

and forr:et Pas:.-word option available at abovementioned website. 

He lpdesk for lpdiyjdual Shareholders boldine securities in dema t mode for apy technical issues 

related to loeio tbroueb Pepository j.e. CPSL and NSPL 

Login type He lpdesk detajls 

Lndividua l Shareholders holding Members facing any technkal tSsue in logm can contact 
securities 10 Demat mode wtth CDSL CDSL help desk by sending a request at 

'l"'lP~ \ n[IJU!k_ hllill!.L.t~L r:t or contact at toll free 

No. 1800 22 55 33. 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any techntcal issue in login can contact 

securities 10 Demat mode with NSDt NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

~ y~~"illi:Wll or call at 022- 4886 7000. 

2. Login method for c-Voting for s hareholder other than individual shareholders holding s hares In 

Demat mode & physical mode is given below: 

You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser. I ttQd ltyott.•.bt~~han.:onlmt• lOUI 

• Click on "LOGIN" button under the ' INVESTOR LOGIN' section to Login on E· Yoting Platfoml. 

• Please enter you 'USER ID' (User id descnptlon is g1ven below) and 'PASSWORD' which is shared 
separately on you register email id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL de m at account should e nter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding s hares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID followed by B 

Digit Chent 10 as user 1d. 
o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number registered with 

the Company as user 1d 

Note if you ha1re not rece1ved any user id or password please email from your registered email id or contact i · 
vote hc/pdesk team. (Emuil id and contact number are menuoned in helpdesk sect1on). 
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Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) opnon and login. 

NOTE: If Shareholders arc holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e -Voting system of 
htms://ivot€:.hiec;hareonline.com andjor voted o n an earlier event of any company then they can use 
their exLSting user id and password to logm. 

• If you have forgo tten the password: Click on 'LOGIN' under 'INVESTOR LOGIN' tab and then Click on 
'Forgot your password? 
Enter "User ID" and "Registered emaillD" Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click 
on 'Reset'. 

{In case a shareholder is having valrd email address, Password will be sent to his I her registered e -mail 
address). 

Voting method for shareholders on i·Vote E-yotjng portal; 

• After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
• Click on ~VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENTr under 'EVENTS' option on investor portal. 
• Select event for which you are desire to vote under the d ropdown option. 

Click on "VOTE NOW" option which is appearing on the right hand s1de top corner of the page. 
• Cast your vote by selecti ng an appropriate option "IN FAVOUR", "NOT IN FAVOUR" or "ABSTAIW and 

click on "SUBMIT VOTE ... A confirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK" to confirm, else "CANCEL'' to 
modify. Once you cohfi rm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

• Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you will 
receive an email on your regis tered email id. During the voting period, members can logm any number 
of times till they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be 
changed s ubsequently. 

• Shareholder can ''CHANGE PASSWORD" or "VLEW/UPDATE PROFILE" under "PROFILE" option on 
investor portal. 

3. Custodian registration process fori -Vote E-Voting Website: 

• You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser : ht!J)s 1/jyole.bu:sh!lreonllnc.com 
• Click on "REGISTER" under "CUSTODIAN LOGIW, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting 

Platform. 

• Enter aJI requ1red details and submit. 
• After Successful registration. message will be displayed with NUser id and password will be sent via 

emaiJ on your registered email id". 
NOTE: If Custodian have regis tered on to e-Voting system of http:.. f, wots.>.bi"shareonlme.com and/or voted on an 
earlier event of any company then they can use the1r existing user id and password to login. 

• If you have forgo tten the password: Click on ' LOGIN' under 'CUSTODIAN LOGIN' tab and further Click 
on 'Forgot your password? 

• Enter "User ID" and "Registered emaiiiD" Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click 
on 'RESET. 

(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his I her registered e -mail address). 

Votine method for Cust odia n on i-vote E-votine 11orta l: 

After successful login, Bigshare £-voting system page will appea r. 
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Inves tor Mappine; 

• First you need to map the investor with your user lD under "DOCUMENTS'' option on custodian portal. 
o Click on "DOCUMENT TYPE" drop down option and select document type power of attorney 

(POA). 

o Click on upload document "CHOOSE FILE" and upload power of attorney (POA) or board 
resolution for respective investor and dick on "UPLOAD". 

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the "lnvestoriD.pdf' 
(Mention De mat account number as Investor I D.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the ftle status on display. 

lnyestor yote File Upload; 

• To cast your vote select "VOTE flLE UPLOAD" option from left hand side menu on custodian portal. 

• Select the Event under dropdown option. 
• Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file under 

upload document option by clicking on ''UPLOAD". Confirmation message will be displayed on the 
screen and also you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a resolution is casted. it cannot be 
changed subsequently). 

• Custodian can "CHANGE PASSWORD" or "VIEW / UPDATE PROFILE" under "PROFILE" option on 
custodjan portal. 

Helpdesk for queries reeardine e votin&r . 
I 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholder's other than individual In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding E· 
shareholders holding shares in Demat voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
mode & Physical mode. ('FAQs') and i-Vote e-Voting module available at 

bun:s;LL!vQts:. htgsberS::Qilhll~.~Qill. under download section or 
you can email us to JVotc@bJgsharconhnc.com or call us at: 
1800 22 54 22, 022·62638338 

Process for those members whose email IDs are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user lD and password and reghtration of email IDs for e -voting for the resolution set 
out in this notice; 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to RTA i.e. bssdC'Ihi.bd@btgsharconlme.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLIO or 16 Digit 
Beneficiary ID), Name, Client Master or Copy of Consolidated Account Statement. PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), MOHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to RTA. If you 
are an individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 
method explained in step l(A). 

3. Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User 10 and 
Password by proving the details mentioned in Point (1) or (2) as the case may be. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-voting facility provided by listed companies, 
individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are aLlowed to vote through their demat 
acCOWlt maintained with depositories and depository participants. Shareholders are required to update 
their mobile number and email I D correctly in their demat account in order to access e-voting facility. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013 

ITEM NO. 03 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118 of the Companies Act. 2013. the Board has recommended in its 
meeting held on May 15, 2025 on the basis of the recommendation of the Audit Committee. d1e shareholders to 
ratifY the remuneration of Rs. 38,500/- (Rupees Thirty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred only) plus applicable 
taxes and reimbursement of actual travel a nd out of pocket expenses, to be paid to M/s N. R. Goyal & Co .• Cost 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101252), to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company, for the 

financial year 2025-26. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is being sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditors for the financial year 2025-26. 

The Board recommends the Resolution set forth in Item No.3 for the approval of the Members. 

None of the Directors and l<ey Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested in 

the Resolution set forth in Item No.3. 

The Board recommends passing of this resolution as Ordinary Resolution 

ITEM N0.04 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation received from Nomination & K.emuneration committee, it 
has been proposed that based on the estimated projections of the net profits calculated under Section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, there may be an inadequate profits for the financial year 2025-26 for the purpose of 

managerial remuneration to be paid pursuant to Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
and therefore, the remuneration payable to the Chairman and Managing Director would exceed the limits 
prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule V, Therefore, shareholder approval by way of special 

resolution is required to pay remuneration in excess of the ScheduJe V limits. in compliance with the conditions 
mentioned therein. The said approval shall be effective from immediate after the closure of this meeting. 

Given the substantial contributions of both in managing the operations and stabilising the business despite 
adverse market conditions, the Board considers it appropriate to pay the remuneration as a reward for their 
continued commitment and leadership even in case company may have inadequate profits. 

Disclosure as per Section II to Part II of Schedule Vofthe Companies Act, 2013 is as follows: 

• Nature oflndustry: Manufacturing 

• Commencement of business: May 08, 1990 

• Fina nciaJ performance of the company: 

o Net Profit (as per Section 198 of the Companies Act2013): 141.85 lakh 

o Turnover: 15280.19 lakh 

• Foreign investment/ collaborations: NIL 
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• Details of Managerial Person: 

Particulars Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava Mr. Kuldlp Dhargava 

Background Mr. Tetasvi, Born m ~lisar, Haryana. India on Mr. Kuld1p Bhargava, bom 1n Hisar, Haryaoa, India on 
November 15, 1979 he did h1s schooling in April 22, 1953 comes from a highly illustrious family of 
Hisar and tull-tlme gradu<ldon from New Delhi llisar, Pt Thakur Das Bhargava. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava 
and subsequendy he dld MBA from TVU joined his father at an early stage and later on started his 
(London), and further completed a own career in the manuf<lct\Jrlng of cold rolled steel and 
Management course from liM, Ahmedabad. He later on st<~inless steel - Quality Foils (India) Pvt Ltd in 
is havmg more than 18 years of experience in May 1990 Mr. Kuldip Bhargava is one of the promoters 
Steel Industry. After having his successful and ChairmAn of Quality Group of companies comprising 
tenure with the above mentioned multi- of Quality Fo1ls (India) Ltd. and Quality Stainless Pvt Ltd, 
national IT BPO, Mr. Tejasvi in September Z003 manufacturmg Cold Rolled Stainless Steel Precision 
joined the Quality Group initially as a full time Strips & Coils: Stctinless Steel Welded as well as Seamless 
Director and smce 1•1 August 2015 promoted Tubes & Pipes and Sta i nless-Sreel Flexible Hose, 
as full time Managing Director. Assemblies & Bellows. 

Past remuncralloo 49.42 lakh per annum for the Rnancial year 61.421akh per annum for the financ1al year 2024·25 
2024-25 

Recognition or None None 
awards 

Profile As Managing Director. he is respons1blc for the He 1:. having more than 41 year; of expenence 1n steel 
overall management, operations, business industry, manufacturing of cold rolled steel Precision 
developmenr, and strategic decision·makmg of Stnps & Coils; Stainless St~l Welded as well as Seamless 

the Company. His eX'J)ertise In steel 1ndustry Tubes & Pipes and Stainless-Steel Flexible llose, 
makes h1111 suitable for the role. Under hls able Assemblies & Bellows. Mr Kuldip Bhargava is one of the 

leadership botl1 the units have grown promoters and Chainnan of Quality Group of companies 
substantially as market leaders and also comprising of Quality Foil~ (India) Limited. and Quality 
increased their market size which includes Stainless PriVate Limited. 
Exports to EU and Americas Under him the 
group has also diversified into rhe manufacture 
of SS Flexible lloses and Assemblies, which 
partially meets the requirement of ISRO Space 
programme, DRDO & BHEL's. 

Remuneration Rs. 27.00 lakh per annum Rs 27.00 lakh per annwn 

proposed 

Comparative The proposed remuneration is an line w1th the industry standards for similar posiuons in comparable 

remuneration companies, considering the size and scale of the Company 
profile 
Pecuniary Apart from receiving remuneration as Apart from 

.. 
receiVmg remuneraoon as Managing 

relationship Managing Director, he holds 17 J600 cqu1cy Director, he holds 672800 equity shares of the Company. 

shares of the Company. 
Reasons of loss or Industry· Wid!' ~lowdown and regulatory headwinds affe-cting overall business growth 
Inadequate profits 

Steps e~ken or The Company has initi<lted and plans to continue w1th the following strategic measures to impro\•e 

proposed to be perfonnance and profitability 
taken lor 
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improvement 
Expected increase The management anticipates a turnaround in financial perfonnance over the next 12-24 mond1s. 
in productivity and 
profits in 
measurdble terms 

None of the Dtrec.tors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relattves, except Tejasvi Bhargava 
and Mr. Kuldip Bhargava to whom the resolution relates, are concerned or interested. financia lly or otherwise. 
m the resolution. 

The Board recommends passing of this resolution as a Special Resolution. 

ITEM NO. OS 

The term of office of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava as Managing Dire<.tor of the Company. is due to expire on February 
28, 2026. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 
Directors, at its meeting held on August OS, 2025, approved the reappointment of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava as 
Managing Director for a further term of five years, with effect from March 01, 2026 to February 28, 2031. 
subject to the approval of shareholders by way of Special Resolution under the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

In view of Mr. Bhargava's extensive expenence,long-standing association with the Company, and the leadership 
he has provided, the Board considers it in the best interest of the Company to continue his engagement. He has 
18+ years of experience in steel industry and has been instrumental in driving the Company's strategic 
direction, operational efficiency. and financial performance. His appomtment shall be at a remu neration and on 
such terms and conditions as set out below with liberty and authority of Board of Directors (hereinafter 
referred the "Board" and shall include the "NRC" of the Board) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the 
sa1d re-appomtment from time to time within the scope of Schedule V of the Companies Act. 2013, or any other 
amendment thereto or any re-enactment thereof as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Tejasvi 

Bhargava. 

The Board of Directors. based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has 
approved the remuneration of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava as Managmg Director for the period from March 1, 2026 to 

February 28, 2031, subject to shareholder approval. 

In accordance with Section 197 read with ScheduJe V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. the Company 
proposes to approve the main terms and conditions of reappointment, including remuneration are as follows: 

Key Terms of Reappointment; 

c) Name: Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava (DIN: 00011 205) 

d) Designation: Managing Oirector 

e) Period of Reappointment: March 01. 2026 to February 28, 2031 (Five years) 

f) Remuneration: 

Bas ic Salary: Rs. 3,00.000/- per month 
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Expenses Ulcurred by the Company on his electridty, water and furnishing shall be evaluated as per 
Income Tax Rules 1962 

Perquisites & others: Contribution to the Provident Fund. Family benefit fund and Superannuation fund 
and other funds as prescribed. 

Car: The Company shall provide a Car for the Company business and if no car is provided, reimbursement 
of the conveyance shall be as per the actual on the basis of claims made by him. 

Telephone: Free use of Telephone at his residence provided that personal long distant calls on the 
telephone shall be billed by the Company to the Director. 

Travelling: Reimbursement of Foreign and Domestic travel expenses for himself and his family. 

Medical benefits: Reimbursement of medical expenses on actual basis for self and his family as per 

Company rules. 

Others: 

a) Leave travel concessions for self and his family as per the rules of the Company. 
b) Bonus /ex-gratia as per the rules of the Company. 
c) Gramity as per the rules of the Company, subject to a maximum ceiling as may be prescribed in the 

payment of gratuity act from time to time. 
d) Leave with full payment or encashment thereof as per the rules of the Company. 

e) Club fees subject to maximum of two clubs. 
f) Any other allowances as per Company rules to other employees. 

No Sitting fees shall be paid for attendi ng any meeting. 

The office of Director may be terminated by the Company or the concerned director by giving the one 
month prior notice in writing to other Board of Directors. 

g) Nature of Duties: As determined by the Board from time to time 

h) Liable to retire by rotation: Yes 

i) Commencement of business: May 08, 1990 

j) Financial performance of the company: 

o Net Profit (as per Section 198 o[the Companies Act 2013): 141.85 lakh 

o Turnover: 15280.19 lakh 

k) Foreign investment/ collaborations: NIL 
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Particulars Mr. Te jasvi Bha1-gava 

Background Mr. Tejasv1, Uorn tn Hisar. Haryana, India on November IS. 1979 he did 
Ius !>Chooling in lltsar and full-time gruduaoon from New Delhi and 
subsequently he d•d MBA from TVU (London), and further completed a 
Management course from JIM, Ahmedab.'td lie 1s havmg more chan lA 
years or experience In Steel lndusay. After having his successful tenure 
With che above mentioned multi-national IT BPO, Mr. Tejasvi in 
September 2003 joined the Quality Group in1tially as a full time Director 
and ~iJ1ce 1' ' August 2015 promoted as full time Managing Director. 

Past remuneration 49 42 lakh I)E'r annum for che financial year 2024-25 

Comparative Remuneration Commensura te with industry s tanda rd!> 

Pecuniary relationship Apart from recetvtng remuneration as Managing Director. he hold'> 
173600 equ1ty shares of che Company 

justificabon for Rcmuncrntion Based on his contribution. ex.l)elicnce. and mdustry benchmarks 

Reasons of loss or mallequate profits Industry w1de s lowdown and regulatory headwmds affecting overa ll 
busu1ess growth. 

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for The Company has initiated and plans lo conlmue with tJ1e followins 
improvement strategic mc~ures to improve performance :1nd profitabiiHy 

Expected increase m productivity and The management an tid pates a rurnaround In linandal performance over 
profits in measurable terms the next 12- 24 months. 

All o ther terms of Mr. Te)asvt Bha rgava's appomtmcnt, as previously approved by the Shareholders and as also 
set out in the employment agreement Wlll remain :.mn e except for any s pecific modifications as noted m the 
accompanying resolulion s ubject to the approval of rhe members. 

The appo intment 1s made m compliance with the provisions of Sections 196, J 97, 203 and Schedule V of the 

Companies Act. 2013 and is not su bject to app roval of the Centra l Govemmenl. 

Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava salisfi es all the condit ions for appomt.mcnt as Managmg Dtrector as prescn bed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made the reunder. 

None of the Directors o r Key Managerial Personnel of the Compa ny or lhe1r relataves. except Mr. Tejasvi 

Bhargava and his rel..ttaves Mr. Tapasvi Bha rgava and Mr. Kuldip Bhargava, is concerned or inte rested , 

fi nancia lly or otherwic;e, m thts resolution. 

The Board recomme nds the resolution for the approval of the shareholders as a Specia l Rcsol uti ()n. 

ITEM No . 06 

In accordance with the provtsions of Section 180(1)(cJ a nd 180(1)(a) ofrhe Compan1es Act. 2013 respectively. 

the following powers can be exercised by the Board of 0 1rectors w1th the consent of the company by a Sped al 

Resolution: 

To borrow money, whe re lhe money to be borrowed, together with the money a lready borrowed by the 
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Company will exceed the aggregate of the Company's paid-up sha re capital and free reserves and sec uri tie~ 

premjum. apart from temporary loans obtained from the company's bankers in the ordinary course of 
business, except. 

to sell, lease or otherw1se dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertalong of the 

company or where the company owns more than one undertaking. of the whole or substantially the whole 
of any of such undertakings 

The Board IS of the VIew that considering the Company's current a nd future fundmg requtrements to avoid 

hindrances m conducllng routme busmess activities and Its operations. working capital needs, and expansion 

plans, the Company may be further required to borrow money, either secured or unsecured, from the banks/ 

financial institutions/other body corporate, from ttmc to tune in any number of Lranches, a nd to pledge. 

mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge any or all of the movable and immovable properties of the Company 
and/or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company Thus. the Board of Directors of the Company proposes 
before the members to increase the Limits and to enable the Board of Directors to borrow money in excess of 
the aggregate of the pa1d-up s hare capital, free reserves. and securities premium account but up to a limit of 
which m aggregate shc1ll not exceed Rs . .150,00,00,000/· (Rupees One Hundred Fifty <.rore only). 

Further, the Board also requ1res shareholder approval by way of a special resolution to sell, lease or otherwise 

dispose of, or to creale charges. mortgages, or hypothecation on the whole or substantially the whole of the 
company's undertakmg(s), whether present or future, for securing any borrowing. as per Section 180(1)(a) of 
the Companies Act 2013 for the purpose of undertakmg the transactions wh1ch falls under the ambit of Section 

1 BO(l)(c) of the Act as the borrowmgs may also require the creation of charge or security on the company's 
assets etc. 

Accordingly. the Board recommends passing of the special resolutions to: 

1. Authorize the Board to borrow money exceeding the c;peclfied threshold under Sect1on 180(1)(c) of the 

Companies Act 2013: and 
2. Authorize the Board to create security or charge on the company's assets as per Section 180(1)(a) of the 

Compan1es Act 2013. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 

interested, finanoal or otherwtse, in the said resoluuons. 

ITEM No. 07 

Pursuant to Section 185(2) of the Companies Act. 2013, a company is allowed to advance any loan (including 

any loan represented by a book debt), or give any guarantee or p rovide any security in connection with a ny 

loan taken by to any person in whom a d irector is Interested, subJect to the condition that: 

A special resolution IS passed by the shareholders m a general meeting. and the said loans or gua rantees are 
utilized by the borrowmg enuty(ies) fo r its principal business activities. 

In this context, thc Board of Dtrectors of the Company at its meeting he ld on August OS, 2025 approved the 

proposal to provide loan(s)/guarantee(s)Jsecurity(ies) lo following entities m wh1ch one or more d1rectors of 

the Company are interested , to render/provide fl nanc1al support in the form of loan/guarantee including 

Corporate Guarantees for the business requirements from n me to time in any number ot rra nches of upto an 
aggregate amounr o f Rs. 150,00,00,000/- Crorcs (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crorcs) under the Companies 
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J\ct, 2013, subJect to the approval olshareholders by way of special resoluoon. 

• Name of the Entities - Quality Stamless Private Limited, Quality Bio Green Pnvate L1mited, Quality 
Bioenergy LLP 

• Nature of Relations hip - Mr. Kuldip Bhargava. Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava and Mr. Tapasv1 Bhargava are the 
Directors/Members. 

on such terms and conditions (Including interest rate, rep<~yment terms. and security) .ts may be decided by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. 

Thts fi nancial asstslance is proposed to support the bus•ncss operations and working cap1tJI reqUirements of 
above mentioned t>ntities. 

None oi the Dtrectors and Key Managenal Person nel of the Company and the1r relat•vcs is concerned or 
mterested, financ1al or otherwise, m the said resoluuun!>. 

ITEM No. 8 

Pursuant to the pmv•s•on:. of Sectwn 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('J\ct'), the Company shall not directly 
or mdirectJy: - (a) g1ve any loan to any person or other body corporate; (b) give any guarantee or provtde 

security in connect1on With a loan to any other body corporate or person: and (c) acquire by way of 
subscription, purcha~e or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, exceeding s1xty percent of 1ts 

pa1d-up share cap1tal. free reserves and securities prem1um account or one hundred percent of 1ts free reserves 

and secunties premium account. wh1chever is h1gher 

In order to meet the future husmess reqUiremen~ and to support the operational and strategic obJectives of 
M/s Quality Stainless Pnvatc Lim1ted, M/s. Quality Bio Green Pnvate Lim1ted a nd M/s Quality Bioenergy 
Limited Liabili ty Partnership (LLP), already borrowed or to be borrowed from time to time In any number of 
tranches for the purpose of continuation of business activities which is exceeding the lim1t of 60% of the paid­

up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account of the Company or 100% of free reserves and 

securities premium account of the Company, wh1Lhever ts more. up to an aggregate amount of Rs. 
1,50,00,00.000 (Rupees One llundred and F1fty Crorcs only) as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies 

Act. 2013. 

The approval of the shareholders is therefore bemg sought hy way of a specJal resolution. as required under 
Section 186(3) of the Compan1es Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors iHtd Key Managerial Personnel ot the Company and the1r relat1ves is concerned or 

interested, financial or otherwise, 111 the sa1d resoluoons. 

ITEM No. 9 

Pursua nt to Section 204( 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 rc<Jd w1lh Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration ofManagenal Personnel) Rules. 2014, every hsted company 1s requ1rcd to annex With its Board's 
Report a Secreta nat J\ud1t Report in Form MR-3 giVen by a l'ractidng Company Secrct.ary (PCS). 
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To comply w1th the above provisiOns and ensure conunued good governance practices, the Board of Directors 
at Its meeting held on May 15, 2025 based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the 

appomtment ot M/s Rajesh Garg & Co. (Practicmg Company Sccretanes), H1sar (FCS No. 5960), a Peer­

Reviewed Company Secretary 10 Practice (Peer Rev1ew Certifkate No. 799/2020), as the Secretarial Aud1tor of 

the Com pony for a term of five consecutive years with effect from Apnl 1, 2025 to conduct the Secretarial Audit 
as per the provisions ofthe Companies Act. 2013 and the LODR RegulatiOns, 2015. 

S.No. 

l. 

2. 

Particu Iars 

Name of the Audit Firm 

Brief Profile 

Details 
M/s Ra1esh Garg & Company. Pntcticmg Company 

Secretaries Certificate of Practice No. 4093, Peer 

Review Certificate No. 799/2020. 
Mr. Rajesh Garg, propnetor of M/s Rajesh Garg & 
Company, Prat:llcmg Company Secretanes, Hisar 
(FCS No. 5960) has been providing corporate 

secretarial services and legal advisory services ro 
clients for over l2 years. lie IS well reputed in the 
field of corporate laws. ll is expertise covers a 
wide variety of areas, includmg secretarial audit. 
adv1sory servtces and other legal services for 

vanous client segments. His core spectaJization 

hes in Corporate L.aw. Securities Law. Depository 

Participant Aud1L Corporate Restructuring and 

Legal Due DiJigcnce Audir 

3. Proposed fees payable to the M/s Rajesh Garg & Company, Practising Company 

4. 

Secretarial Auditor Secretary. Certificate of Pracuce No. 4093. Peer 
Review Certificate No. 799/2020 as Secretarial 
Aud1tor. w1th effect from Apnl 1, 2025, for a 

period ofS years, at an annual remuneration ofRs. 
15,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Thousand only). 

Recommendation/ Terms 

Appointment 

of On the basis of the recommendation of Board and 

Audit Committee. 
1. M/s. Rajcsh Garg & Company has been 

appointed as Secretarial Auditor. with effect 
from April 1. 2025, for a pcnod of 5 years. 
subject to the approval of the members at the 
ensumg Annual General Meeting of the 

Company. 
2. The Secretarial Auditor shaU be paid a 

professional fee of Rs. 15.000/- (Rupees 

F1fteen Thousand only) plus applicable taxes 
and reimbursement of actual out·of-pocket 
expenses incurred in connection with the 

aud1t. 
3. The appomrmenr is for a penod of Five 

financial year, unless o t.herw1se mod1fied or 

terminated by mutual consent o r due to 

regulatory reasons. 
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The Board recommends passing a special resolution for the appointment of the secretarial auditor. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 
interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolurions. 

Regis tered Office: 
3 Industrial Development Colony 
Hisar. Haryana 125005 

Date: August OS, 2025 

Place: Hisar 

By the order of Board 
For Quality Foils (India) Limited 

r ... c..._d~~ ~~ r..__ L. "\{A\ --\ 
uldip Bbargava d 

Director 
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Annexure A 

Additional information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of lndia for item no. 2 is as under: 

Brief profile and details of Mr. Kuldip Bhareava. Director. who is liable to retire by rotation and elidble 
for re-appointment. are as under: 

Name of OirectDr Mr. Kuldip Bhargava 

DIN 00011103 
Brief Resume Mr. Kuldip Bhargava, born in 1-llsar, Haryana, India on April 22, 1953 comes from a 

highly illustrious family of Hisar, Pt Thakur Das Bhargava. His grandfather and known 
advocate of northern region; was also a Member of Parliament His grand uncle- Dr. 

Gopi Chand Bhargava was the first premier/Chief Minister of combined Punjab & 
Haryana. His father - Shri A P Bhargava - himself was an engineer having completed 
his education from Lahore 
University and was the first elected President/ Municipal Commissioner of Municipal 
Committee of Hisar, Haryana and he had established the first small scale iron & steel 
industry in Hisar namely, East Punjab Mfg. Co- a grey iron foundry. 

He is having more than 41 years of experience in steel industry. After his education Mr. 
Kuldip Bhatgava joined his father at an early stage and later on started his own career 
in the manufacturing of cold rolled steel and later on stainless steel - Quality Foils 
(India) Pvt Ltd in May 1990. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava is one of the promoters and 

Chairman of Quality Group of companies comprising of Quality Foils (India) Ltd. and 
Quality Stainless Pvt Ltd, manufacturing Cold Rolled Stainless Steel Precision Strips & 
Coils; Stainless Steel Welded as well as Seamless Tubes & Pipes and Stainless-Steel 
Flexible Hose, Assemblies & Bellows. He is well regarded for his diligence and far-
sighted approach for the overall growth of the stainless-steel industry. 

He is currently the president of Hisar Industries Association, Hisar, llaryana. He 

remained as Independent Director of Jindal Saw Ltd. for many years and various other 
companies. 

He is also a member of the famtly trust which is running CBSE affiliated school in Hisar 
which also render free education to economically weaker students and also medical 
help for the needy. He also spends lot of time in improving the overaJJ environment in 
and around his industrial units in Hisar. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava is a Godfearing 
individual and carries the rare quality of patient hearing a11d helping not only the 
employees 1 workmen working m his group of companies but for the needy in general. 

Date of Birth April 22, 1953 (aged about 72 years) 

(Age in years) 

Qualification Under Graduation from Haryana Open University 

Experience and expertise He is having more than 41 years of experience in steel industry. 

in spedfic functional area 
Terms and conditions of Terms and conditions as mutually decided with him by Board at the time of 

re-appoinbnent appointment. 

Oetails of remuneration The last drawn remuneration for the month of july, 2025 is Rs. 3,00,000/-
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lobe sought and 
remuneration last drawn 
Date on which first 08/05/1990 as Director 
appointed on the Board 

Details of shareholding in 672800 equity shares 
the Company 31 March, 
2025 
Relationship with other Mr. Kuldip Bhargava is the father of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava 
Directors/ Key Managerial 
Personnel n<MP"J (ir 
any) 

Number of Board 5 (Five) 
Meetings attended during 
the year 2023-24. 

Details of Directorships f NIL 
Committee 
Chairmanship and 
Memberships in other 
public limited companies 
(As on March 31, 2025) 
Name of the listed NIL 
entities from which the 
Director has resigned 
during the past three 
years 
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Brief profile apd details of Mr. Tejasvj Bhar~ya. DjreLtor. who is proposed to be re-appointed as 
Manaeioe Director. are as under; 

Name of Director Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava 
DlN 00011205 
Brie f Resume Born in Hlsar. Haryana, lndia on November 15, 1979 he did his schoolmg in Hisar and full · 

time gr<~duation from New Delhi and subsequendy he diet MRA from TVU (London). and 
further completed a Management course from JIM, Ahmedabad. 

Betore stepping inro the current business set up, he had worked as full-time Director at 
Voice Data Management Private Limited, Gurgaon (An IT BPO organi7.ation) for two years. 

lie as having more than 18 years of experience in Steel Industry. After having his successful 
tenure with the above mentioned mule-national IT BPO. Mr ·re, .. svf in September 2003 
JOtned the Quality Group malaally as a full time Director and !>IOCC 1" August 2015 
promoted as full time Managing Oarcctor. AL the time of h1s roining. he was entrusted with 
rhe affairs ofSS Cold RoUing & Pipe/Tube manufacturing daVJsions or the group. Under his 
able leadership both the units have grown substantially as market leaders and also 
increased their market size which mcludes Exports to EU and Amencas. Under him the 
group has also diversified mto the manufacture of SS Flexible lloses and Assemblies, which 
partially meets the reqmrement or ISRO Space programme, DRDO & l:iHEL's. Being the 
Group's Managing Director, he has been very successfully managing all company's 
operations, staff and vennares in order to maintain and grow its business. 

Apart from this, on his personal capacity. he owns a part or famaly stale In Jindal Quality 
Tubulars Ltd, a subsidiary <:ompany of Jindal Saw Limited for production of SS Pipes & 
Tubes. 

A keen Squash Enthusia!>t. also an active part of organisaoon as Chairman Rural Committee 
and Chair Climate Changt> Committee at Cll Young Indians (Gurugram Chapter), Cll. 
Stainless Steel Tube Produrero; Association (i!xecutive Member) & ISSDA. 

Date of Birth November 15. 1979 (aboul45 years} 
(Age in years) 
Qualincation He has done full-lime grarlualion frnm New Delhi, MBA from TVU (London), and further a 

Management course trom liM. Ahmedabad. 
Expe rience and expertise 19 yt>ars of experience in Stf'f'llndustry. 
in specific functional area 

Tenns and conditions o r The present resolution seeks approval of the Members for reappomtment of Mr. TeJasavi 
re-appointment Bhargava, as Managing Director for a period of Five Years starting from March 01. 2026. 

The !>hareholders' approval i!> .dso required for revision or renns or appointment along 
wath fixmg his Managerial Remuneration which is in excess of the l.imit.-; as prescribed in 
Schl?dule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Details of remunernlion The previous remuneration of Mr Tejasvl Bhargava, Managing Director of the Company 

to was approved by the members at the Extra·ordinary General Meeting held on L21h 

be sougbtand November, 2022. The last drawn remuneration for lhe month of July, 2025 is Rs. 

remuneration last drawn 3,00,000/· 
Oat£ oo which fi rst September 29. 2003 

appointed oo the Board 

Details of shareholding In 1,73,600 equity share!> of face value ofRs. 10/- each. 
the Company 31" March, 
2025 
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Relationship with other Mr. Kuldip Bhargava, Executive Chairman and Director of the Company, is the father of Mr. 
Di•·ectors/Key Managerial Tejasvi Bhargava. He is not related to any other Director/ KMP of the Company. 
Personnel ("'KMP1 (if 
any) 
Number of Board 5 (Five) 
Meetings attended during 
the year 2024-25. 
Details of Directorships 1 Nil 
Committee 
Chairmanship and 
Memberships in other 
public limited companies 
(As on March 31, 2025) 
Name of the listed Nil 
entities from which the 
Director bas resigned 
during the past three 
years 

Regis tered Office: 
3 Industr ial Development Colony 

llisar. Haryana 125005 ~ ~'-~~ \.?.J~ f"-.(.. ,jQVt1J 

dip Bhargava Date: August 05, 2025 
Place: Hisar Director 



Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy f orm 

Quality Foils (lodia) Limited 

{Pursuant to section 105{6) of the Companies Act,. 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules. 2014/ 

Name of t he Company: Quality Foils (India) Limited 
CLN:L27107HR1990PLC0309295 
Regd. Office: 3- Industrial Development Colony, Hisar- 125005, Haryana. India. 
Ph: 01662- 220327, 28; E-ma il: contactus@qualityfoils.com; Website: www.qualitygroup.in; 

Name of the member(s): 

Registered address: 

Emailld.: 

Folio No. I Client ld: 

DP Jd.: 

I 1 We, being the member(s) of ............................ shares of the above name company, hereby appoint 

1. Name: ........................................ , 
Address: ..................................................... . 

Email I d.: ................................ .Signature: ........................................ -.. 

Or faiHng him/her 

2. Name: ........................................ , 
Address: .................................................... .. 

Email ld.: ................................. Signature: .......................................... .. 

Or failing him/her 

3. Name: ....................................... , 
Address: ................................................... .. . 

En1ailld.: ................................. Signature: .......................................... .. 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 35th Annual General 
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Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, September 04, 2025 at 10:30 a.m . at the registered office 

of the Company at 3- Industrial Development Colony, Hisar-125005, Haryana, India and at any adjournment 

thereof in respect of such resolution as is i odicated below: 

Sr . No. Resolution 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 including the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Accounts and Cash flow statement along witl1 reports of the Board of 
Director's and the Auditor's thereon. 

2. To reappoint Mr. Kuldip Bhargava as Director liable to retire by rotation 
under Section 152 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

3. To ratil)' the remuneration of the Cost Auditor of the Company 

4. To consider and approve the managerial remuneration in excess of limits 
prescribed under Section 197 read with Schedule V (if applicable) of the 
Compa11ies Act, 2013. 

5. To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava as the 
Managing Director of the Company pursuant to Section 196 and 203 of the 

Companies Act 2013. 

6. To approve and audlorize Board of Directors of the Company to borrow 
money pursuant to Section 180(1)(a), 180(1)(c) and 179 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

7. To give authorization to advance/give loan, g1ve any guarantee or to provide 
any security pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 

8. To give authorization to grant loan to any person, give guarantee or provide 

security, acquire by way of subscription in securities pursuant to Section 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

9. Appointment of M/s Rajesh Garg & Company as Secretarial Auditor of dle 

Company for a period of Five Years 

Signed this ........ day of .......... , 2025 

Sig11ature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holdcr(s) 

Notes: 

For ~gainst 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp 

1. This form should be signed across the stamp as per spec1men signature registered with the Company. 

2. This form of Proxy, to be effective should be duly completed deposited at the registered office of the 
Company. not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

3. A p roxy need not be a member of the Company. 

4. Please put a ( -') in the appropriate column against the resolution indicated in the Box. If you leave the 'For' 
or 'Against' column b lank against the resolution, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she 
th inks a ppropriate. This is only optional. 
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QUAliTY FOILS (INDIA) LlMlTED 

CJN: t2710711R 191.JOPLC0309Z9 
Registered 0111cc: 3 - lndustnal Development Colony, I hsar- 125005. Haryana.lndia 

Ph: 01662-220327, 28; E-mail: contactus@qualityfoals.com ; 
Websate: www.quahtygroup.in 

Attendance Slip 

Registered Folio 1 OP 10 & Client 10 

Name of Shareholder 

Address of Shareholder 

Number of Shares held 

IIWe, hereby record mylour presence at lhe 35'" Annual General Meetmg of the Company to be held 
on Thursday, September 04, 2025 at 10:30 a.m. at ilS registered office at3 - Industrial Development 
Colony. Hisar-125 005. (llaryana). 

Signature of Shareholder I Proxy Present: ................................................. . 

Note: 

3. You are requested to stgn and hand this over a t the entrance. 
4. If you are altendmg the meeting m person or by proxy please bnng copy of nottce and annual report 

for reference at the meeting. 
5. Each equity share of the Company carries one vote. 
6. Please read carefully the mstructions pnnted overleaf before exercising the vote. 
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Form No. MGT-12 

Polling Paper 
/Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act; 2013 and rule 21{1){c) 

of the Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014} 

Name of t he Company: Quality FoiJs (India) Limited 
Registe red office: 3 -Industrial Development Colony. Hisar- 125005, Haryana. 

CIN: L27107HR1990PLC030929 

Name of the First Named 

Shareholder (in block letters): 

Postal address: 

Registered folio No.1 *Client 10 No. 
(*Applicable to investors holding shares in 
dematerialized form) 

Class of Shares 

I hereby exerc1se my vote in respect of Ordinary and Special businesses enumerated in Notice of 35th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the Thursday, September 04, 2025 at 10:30 
a.m. at Reg1stered Office of the Company at 3 - Industrial Development Colony, I !isar - 125005, Haryana 
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Sr. No. Resolution For ~gainst 

). To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of tJ1e 

Company for the finandal year ended on March 31. 2025 including the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Accounts and Cash flow statement along with reports of the Board of 
Director's and dle Auditor's dlereon. 

2. To reappoint Mr. Kuldip Bhargava as Director liable to retire by rotation 
under Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

3. To ratiFy dle remuneration of the Cost Audttor of the Company 

4 . To consider and approve the managerial remuneration in excess of limitl. 

prescribed under Section 197 read with Schedule V (if applicable) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

5. To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava as the 
Managing Director of the Company pursuant to Section 196 and 203 of dle 
Companies Act 2013. 

6. To approve and audlorize Board of Directors of the Company to borrow 
money pursuant to Section lBO(l)(a), l80(l)(c} and 179 of the Companies 
Act, 20 13. 
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7. To give authorization to advance/give loan. give any guarantee or to provide 
any security pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 

8. To give authorization to grant Joan to any person, give guarantee or provide 
security, acquire by way of subscription in securities pursuant to Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

9 . Appointment of M/s RaJesh Garg & Company as Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company for a r>eriod of Five Years 

Place: 

Date: (Signature of shareholder) 
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ROUTE MAP 

Venue of the 3S•h Annual General Meeting of Quality Foils (India) Limited to be held on Thursday, 
September 04, 2025 at 10:30 a.m. its registered office at 3 - Industrial Development Colony. llisar-
125005, (Haryana). 
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Quality Foils (India) Limited 

PlR£CTORS' REPORT 

TO 
THE MEMBERS, 
QUALITY FOILS (INDIA) LIMITED ("Company") 

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 35 th Annual Directors' Report on the business and 

operations of your Company together with the audited Financial Statement for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025. 

1. Financial Results 
The Company's financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized below: 

(Rs. in Lakhs ) 
Particulars For the Financial year For tbe Financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 ended March 31,2024 
Total Revenue 15280.19 15538.30 

Profit before depreciation and Taxation 

L.ess: depreciation 173.46 157.26 

Profit after depreciation 243.38 171.80 

l..ess: Provis ion for Taxat ion 

Current Year 29.75 44.51 

Deferred Tax 62.65 (6.29) 

Previous Year Tax 9.13 -
Net Profit/ ( Loss) for the period 141.85 133.58 

Add: Profit brought forward 1877.71 1744.13 

Less: Transfer to General Reserve - -
Profit available for appropriation 2019.56 1877.71 

Dividend & Tax on div1dend - -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 2019.56 1877.71 

2. State of affairs and hidJiiehts 

The Company has been engaged in the business of manufacturing of Cold Rolled Stainless Steel 
Precision Strips and Coils and 55 Flexible Hoses, situated in the hub of the 'Stainless Steel City' Hisar 
(Haryana) with marketing offices in Delhi, Mumbai and further representations in Europe, provides an 
added advantage of abundant raw material supply. 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025. 
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3. Company's Business Gr·owth and promects 

The total income for the financial year 2024-25 has decreased toRs. 15280 19 Lakhs, as against Rs. 

15538.30 Lakhs in the financial year 2023-24, and the profit after tax has increased to Rs. 141.58 
Lakhs in the financial year 2024-25, from Rs. 133.58 Lakhs in the financial year 2023-24. 

4 . Djvid.end 
In terms of the Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI LODR"), equity shareholders of the Company may 

expect dividend, if the Company is having surplus funds and after taking into consideration the 
relevant internal and external factors as mentioned in the said Policy. Accordingly. considering the 

cash position, fund requ1rements for growth of business of your Company and agreement with the 
Lenders, the Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 

31. 2025. 

The Dividend Distribution Policy is available on Company's website at the following link: 

https: I /www.q u.!l ity~:roup.1n/wp-t:c 1nteot/uplo.tds /4:0l3/0 1/ D IV I DEN D-QISTRIBU ITION -POLICY.Lidf 

5. Transfer to Reserves 

During the reporting finanCial year, the company has not transferred any amount to any reserves of 
the Company. 

6. Share Capital 

There has been no change in the share capital of your Company during the Financial Year 2024-25. 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2025 IS 4,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four 

Crores only) and the Paid-up Share Capital is Rs. 2,85,40,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Eighty Five Lakh 
Forty Thousand Only). 

7. Annual Return 

The Annual Return for the Financial year 2024·25 shall be uploaded on the website of the Company 
btlps://w\\<w.qu~ollp_.ln}qualttyfollsL. 

8. Material Chan~:es and Commitments 

There have been no material changes or commitments occurred between the end of the financial year 

to which the financial statements relate and the date of Lhis report that affect the financial position of 
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the Company. 

9. peposits 

During the FY 2024-25, your Company has not accepted any deposits from the pubhc falling under 
SectiOn 73 and 76 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, and as 
such no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet 

The details relating to deposits. covered under Chapter V of the Act a re provided hereunder: 

l. Accepted dunng the year: Nil 
2. Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year: Nil 
3. Deposits repaid during the Year: Nil 
4. Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of mterest thereon 

during the year and If so, number of such cases and the total amount involved: - Since the 
Company has not accepted any deposits during the Financial Year, therefore this clause 
shaH not be applicable on the Company. 
a) at the beginning of the year: Not Applicable 
b) during the year: Not Applicable 
c) at the end of the year: Not Applicable 
d) The details of deposits, not in compl iance with the requirements ofChapler V of the Act Nil 

10. Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund QEPF) 

During the period under review, there were no funds which were required to be transferred to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Therefore, this clause is not applicable on Company. 

11. Particulars of loans. euarantees or investments by the Company under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act. 2013 

The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments by your Company under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are stated in Notes to Accounts of the fi nancial statements. forming part of the 
Annual Report. 

12. Internal financial Control 

The company has policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly aud efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial informallon, m place to cope with internal financial controls 
with reference to fi nancial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no 
reportable matenal weakness in the design or operation was observed. 
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Details regarding the internal financial control and its effectiveness are provided in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis section, which is forms a part of Annual Report. 

13. Vi~l Mecbanisrn /Wbistle Blower Policy 

During the period, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section L 77(9) and (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism I Whistle Blower Policy to 
provide a secure environment and mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns 
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct 

The Vigil Mechanism & Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on tl1e Company"s website which may 
be accessed on the Company's website at the link: 

http-:.:1/wwwqualitygruup.m/wu-content /uplwds/2023/05/Vig•l·M~c h.1n1sm Poht v pdt 

14. Risk.Manaeement 

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks foUowed by 

coordinated efforts to minimize, moni tor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of 
unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. 

The Company has laid down a comprehensive rusk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is 
reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive 
management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been 
identified by tile Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas 

such as business, project execution, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance. 

The Board has constituted Risk Management Committee to frame, implement, monitor the Risk 
Management Plan of the Company. AdditiOnally, the Company bas also devised a Risk Management 
Policy for idenlificalion of elements of risks and procedures for reporting the same to the Board which 
may be accessed on the Company's website at the link: 

http>: //\V\·VW.Qllilll ty~rouo.j n/wp-content/uplwd-;}2023/0 1/ RISK -ASSESSM ENT·I\ N D· 

MANAGEMENT· PO L.l() .odr 

Details regarding lhe risk management policy are provided in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis section, which is forms a part of Annual Report. 

15. Enew Conservation. Technolofi:Y Absorption. Forei~ Exchan~ Eamines & Outeo 

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings 
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and outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013, are provided in Annexure A to 
this Report. 

16. Directors' ReSl)onsjbility Statement 

In accordance with Section 134(3)(c) read with 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Directors would 
like to inform the Members that the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, are 
in full conformity with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013. The Financial Accounts are 
audited by the Statutory Auditors, (M/s Kansal Jain & Associates having FRN: 023083N). The Directors 
further confirm that: 

1) In the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 the 
applicable Indian accounting standards (IND-AS) read with requirements set out under Schedule 
Ill to the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

2) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
Company for that period; 

3) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

4) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

5) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

6) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

17. Particulars of contracts or arraneement with Related Parties 

All related party transactions entered into during financial year 2024-25 were on an arm's length basis 
and in the ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 were not attracted. 

The disclosure as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act in form AOC-2, of related party 
transactions entered during the financial year 2024-25, is provided in Annexure B to [his report. The 
disclosure of transactions with related partjes for the financial year is given in to the Balance Sheet i.e. 
as per Accounting Standard -18. 



Quality Foils (India) Lim ited 

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions may he accessed on the Company's websile al 

the link: 
https.//www.qualityl,'roup.m/wp-rontent!u!J.)J.illds/2023/0 1/POL!CY -QN-PEALI NG·WITII-REIXI'EU­

PART)' -TRc\NSACTI ONS.t.llif 

18. Complia nce with secretar ial standards 

During lht! year under revtew, your Company has complied with all applicable secretarial standards 
issued by lhe Institute ot Company Secretaries of India anti approved by the Central Government 

pursuant to Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

19. Directors a nd Key Manageria l Personnels 

The following were the appointment/resignation/change Ill designation that took place during the 
Financial Year 2024-25 in your Company. 

a) Mr. Mohan La! (DIN: 10252864) was regularized as an Exccullve Director on the Board of the 
Company with effec-t from September 04. 2024. 

b) Ms. Meenakshi, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company had resigned from 

the snid post with effect from June 29, 2024. 
c) Ms. Amelia Nelson was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from 

August 10, 2024 

The structure of the Board ·~ as follow: 

s. No. Nam e of the Person Designation 
1. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava Chairman and Executive 

Di rector 

2. Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava Managing Director 
3. Mr. Mohan Lal Executive Dtrector 

4. Mr. Rajender Kedia Independent Director 
5. Mr. Sumant Bhatnagar Independent Director 
6. Ms. Uma Independent Director 

7. Ms. Amelia Nelson Company Secretary 

8. Mr. Birdhi Chand Jain Chief Executive officer 

Further, after the closure of FY 2024-25, Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava (DIN: 00011205) was re-appointed as 
the Managing Director on the Board of the Company with effect from March 01, 2026 for a term of five 
years starting from March 01, 2026 and the c;ame has been approved by the Shareholders in the 
ensuing AGM. 
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20. Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Manaeement Personnels 
The Board of Directors has established a Code of Conduct applicable to its members and senior 
management personnel. This Code serves as a framework for ethical business practices, equitable 
treatment, and the prohibition of actions such as bribery. corruption, and anti-competitive behaviour. 

AU Board members and senior management per!>onnel have confirmed their compliance with the Code 
of Conduct for the financial year 2024-25. The Code is a lso available on the website of the Company at 

htl()s: l/www.Qu.ll!lygrouo.m/wQ-content/ugloads/40i!3/U 1/CODL-OF-CON oucr. Of-I J!REQORS-i\N U­
SEN I OB-MANAG EH!il L-l'li BSONN l:l,pdf 

21. Code on Prohibition of Insider Tradine 

In accordance with SEBIInsider Tradi ng Regulations, lhe Company has established a "Code of Conduct 
to Regu late, Monitor, and Report Trading by Designaled PersonsH ("Code on prohibition of Insider 

Tr.lding"). Such measures aim to prevent insider oe~ding activities and ensure ethical management of 
sensitive inf01·mation. 

The Code on prohibition of Insider Trading ts reviewed and amended suitably from time to time, to 

incorporate the amendments carried out by SEBI. The Code outlines the duties and responsibilities of 
Designated Persons (DPs), including the maintenance of a Structured Dtgital Database (SDD). This 
database serves as a crucial tool for preventing mstder tradi ng and ma naging Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information (UPSI). 

To e nhance employee awareness and compliance, the Company period ically circulates informative 

emails and conducts periodic quiz on the Prevention of Insider Trading, outlining Do's and Don' ts and 

familiarizing employee~ with key aspects of the Code. During the year under review. the Audit 
Committee evaluated the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems related to the 
SEBI Insider Trading Regulations. It reviewed cases of non-compliance, if any, and recommended 
actions to the Board in line with the penalty framework. 

Any non-compliances are promptly reported to the Stock Exchanges in the prescribed fo rmat, and 

penalties, if applicable, are directly deposited by the Designated Person into SEBJ's Investor Protection 
and Education Fund. 

The Code is available on the website of the Company hllps://www.yuJI!tygroup.in/wn­

c:onLt nt/uplualb/20 l 3/0 1/COPL·OF-CON DUCT TO REGUI.ATE-MON ITOR-REPOBT-TRADI NG-BY· 
INSIDERS.pdf 
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Declaration by Independent Directors 

AJJ the Independent Directors of the Company had given the declaration under Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the cntena of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the 
Act read With the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16 ofSEBI (LODR), 2015. The Independent 

Directors have also confinned that they have comphed w1Lh the Company's Code of Conduct for Board 

Members and Senior Management. Further, all the Directors have also confirmed that they are not 

debarred to act as a d1rector by virtue of any SEBI order or any other authority. The Company has 

received a declaration from the Independent Directors that their name is inclutled in the data bank. 

Your Company has also devised a Policy on Famiiiari7.ation Programme for Independent Directors 

wh1ch aims to familiarize the Independent Directors with your Company, nature of the mdustry in 

which your Company operates, business operations of your Company etc. The said Policy may be 
accessed on your Company's website at the link: 

https://wW» .QuLtlil>l,!l oup.iufwp-contem/uplo.tds/2023/0 l/FAM IL.Ii\RIZ/\'J'JON -PROGRAM M E-rGH­

INDEPENDENJ -DIRF.CTQR.S..Jllif 

23. Statement reeardine opinion of the Board with reeard to inteerity. expertise and experience 
(includine the proficiency) of the independent djret1ors appointed during the year. 

There is no appointment of the Independent Directors during the year FY 2024-25. Hence, this clause 
shall not be applicable on the Company. 

24. Performance Evaluation 

The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, 

Committees and other individual Directors which includes criteria for performance evaluation of the 
Non-Executive Di rectors and Executive Directors. The eva luation of all the Directors and the Board as 

whole was conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. 

The policy is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed by clicking on the below 

link: 

ht t ps: I /www.qu,tlll}'LWILI p. 1 n/ w p-rontent / uploads/2023/0 I /POLICY -ON· NOM I NATION-AN 0-
KEMUNcRATION-COMMI'ITEE.pyf 

25. Corporate Social Responsibility 

In accordance with Section 135(5) of the Companies Act. 2013. and its subsequent rules, the Company 

IS mandated to allocate a minimum of 2% of 1ts average net profits from the past three financial years 

towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives, as calculated under Section 198 of the 
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Companies Act, 20 13 for the financial year 2024-25, however, the Company was not required to 
earmark funds for CSR activities and to formulate the CSR Policies as per the stipulated criteria. 

26. Committees of the Board 

a) Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee (the "Committee") was constituted by the Board of Directors at their 
meeting held on November 26, 2022 In accordance with the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 6 or the Companies (Meeti ng or board and its powers) Rule, 2014. 

Composition of Audit Committee: 
Name of the Dlrector Status Nature of Directorship 

Mr. Rajinder Kedid Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Sumanl Rhatnagar Member Independent Director 

Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava Member Managing Director 

During the financia l year 2024-25, the Audil committee held a total of 4 (four) meetings. All the 
four Audit commi ttee meetings were held physically at the Registered Office of the Company. The 
respective dates of the Audi t committee Meelings and Number of members who attended the 
meeting during the mentioned period are as follows: 

S.No. Date of meeting No. of members No. of members entitled to 

Attended the Meeting attend the meeting 

1 May 22,2024 2 3 
2 August 10, 2024 2 3 
3 October 28, 2024 3 3 
4 February 04, 2025 3 3 

b) Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC) 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors at their 
meeting held on November 26, 2022 in accordance with the Section 178(5) of the Companies Acl 
2013. 

Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
Name of the Olrector Status Nature of Directorship 
Mr. Rajinder Kedia Chairman Independent Director 
Mr. Kuld1p BhargavCJ Member Executive Director 
Mr. Tejasv1 Bhargava Member Managing Director 
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During the financial year 2024-25, the SRC held 1 (One) meeting which was held physically at the 
Registered Ofnc.:e of the Company. The re<>pec.:lave dates of the SRC Meelings and Number of 
members who attended the meeting during the mentioned period are as follows: 

S. No. Date of meeting No. of members Attended the No. of members entitled 
Meeting to attend the meeting 

1 February 01. 2025 3 3 

c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("N&RC") 
The Nominallon and Remuneration Commattee has constituted by the Board of Di rectors at their 
meeting held on November 26, 2022 in accordance with the Section 178(4) of the Companies Act 
2013. 

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 

Mr. Rajtnder Kedta Chairman Independent Dtrector 

Mr. Sumanl Bhalnagar Member I ndcpendenl Director 

Ms. Uma Member Independent Dtrect.or 

During the nnancial year 2024-25, the NRC held 2 (Two) meetings which were held physically at 

the Registered Office of the Company. The respective dates of the NRC Meetings and Number of 

members who attended the meeting during the mentioned period are as follows: 

S.No. Date of meeting No. of members Attended No. of members entitled 
the Meeting to attend the meeting 

1. August 1 U, l024 2 3 
2. October 28, 2024 3 3 

d) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSRl Committee; 

As the provisions of Sec-135 of the Compames act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company. 

Therefore, Company is not required to const1lute CSR Commattee. 

27. Meetings of Board ofthe Directors 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss antl <lecide on Company I Busaness policy and strategy. 
The gap between any two consecutive meetings was within the limit prescribed under the Companies 

Act. 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The neccs<;ary quorum was present during all the meetings. 

During the financia l year 2024-25 the board of darectors held a total of 5 (Five) meetings. All the Five 
Board meetmgs were held physically at the Registered Office of the Company. The respective dates of 
the Board Meetings and Number of Direclors who atlended the meeting during the mentioned Period 
are as follows: 
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S. No. Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors Attended No. of Directors entitled to 
the Board Meeting attend the board meeting 

1. May 22,2024 5 6 
2. june 29, 2024 5 6 
3. August 10. 202!1- 5 6 
4. October 28. 2024 6 6 
5. February 04, 2025 5 6 

Meetini: of shareholders of the Company 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, only one (1) meeting of shareholders was held i.e. 34th 
Annua l General Meeting which was held on September 04, 2024. 

29. Auditors and Auditor's Report 

a) Statutory Auditor 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mjs. Kansal Jain and 

Associates (FRN: 023083N) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the five 

consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of the 34th Annual General Meeting held on 
September 04, 2024 until the conclusion of 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 
held for the financial year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be decided. Vide notification 
dated May 7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the requirement of annual 
ratification has been omitted. 

Further, the Auditors' Report "with an unmodified opinion", on the financial statements of the 

Company for financial year 2024-25, forms part of this Annual Report. There was no observation, 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark in the Auditor's Report. The Notes on Financial 
Statements referred to in the Auditors' report are self-explanatory and therefore do not require 
any further comments. 

b) Secretarial Auditor 

Mjs. Rajesh Garg & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries. Hisar (FCS No. 5960) is to be appointed 

as the Secretarial Auditor in the ensuing AGM with the approval of Members of the Company for a 
consecutive period of five years starting from April 01, 2025 on such remuneration as may be 
decided, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company. 

The Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3) for financial year 2024-25 forms part of the Annual Report 
as Annexure-C. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark. 
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Internal Auditor 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act and the Companies (Accounts) Ru les, 2014 
and on the basis of the recommendations of the Audit Committee, Mr. Kapil Mittal, Char tered 
Accountant (Mem. No. 542972) is the Internal Auditor for the financial year 2024-25. 

The Internal audit report fot· financial year 2024-25 does not contain any qualification> 
reservation or adverse remark. 

d) Cost Auditors 

Mjs. N. R. Goyal & Company, Cost Accountants, Delhi having Firm Registration No. 101252, was 
appointed as the Cost Auditor to conduct the Cost Audil of the Company for the financial year 
2024-25. The remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditors as recommended and approved by the 

Audit Committee and Board, and to be ratified in the 35Lh Annua l General Meeting of the Company. 

30. Cost Records 

The Company has maintained all the cost records as specified by the Central Government as required 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

31. Reportine of Frauds by Auditors 

None of the Auditors of the Company have reported any fraud as specified under the second proviso of 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act. 2013. 

32. Particulars of Employees and related disclosures 

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
company for the financial year 2024-25 who is covered under provisions of Section 197 (12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(1). 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure D to this Report. 

33. Corporate Governance 

In terms of Regulation 15(2)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Compliances with the provisions of Corporate Governance as specified in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to 
your company as it is listed on the SME Exchange. Accordingly, a separate report on Corporate 
Governance and the certificate from the Auditors are not required to be annexed. 
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34. Management's Discussion and analysis Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under 
Regulation 34(2) and (3) read with the Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate section forms part of the Annual Report as 
Annexure E to the Board's report. 

35. Stock Exchange where tbe securities are listed 

SME Exchange of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., ("NSE Emerge") Exchange Plaza. 5th Floor, Plot 
No. C/1, G-Biock, Bandra-Kurla complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051. 

36. Compliance of f:Yidelines of SEBIIStock Exchange 

We have duly complied with all the applicable gujdelines issued by SEBI/Stock Exchange. 

37. Statement of Deviation or Variation 

As per Regulation 32 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 
2015, there is no deviation or variation in the use of funds raised through Public Issue of Equity Shares 
from the objects stated in the Prospectus of the Company. 

38. Industria] Relations 

Industrial relations continued to be cordial during the year under review. 

39. Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report 

The Business Responsibility Sustainability Report ("BRSR") as per the requirements of Regulation 
34(2)(t) of the SEBI (LODR). 2015 is not mandatorily required to be given by Companies which have 
listed their specified securities on the SME Exchange. Your Company has not voluntarily adopted 
disclosure requirement of the Business Responsibility Report. 

40. Policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment 

Your Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace in accordance 
with the provisions of Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace Act, 2013 ("POSH Act"). The policy aims at prevention of harassment of women employees 

and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment. There 

is an Internal Complaints Committee which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual 
harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the policy. 
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Further, in terms of the provisions of the Rule 8(5)(x) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and SEBJ 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details in relation to the 
POSH Act, for the financial year ended on March 31,2025 are as under: 

a) Number of complaints pertaining to sexual harassment received during the financial year: NIL 

b) Number of complaints pertaining to sexual harassment disposed off during the financial Year: NIL 

c) Number of complaints pertaining to sexual harassment pending for more than Ninety days: NIL 

The policy of the Company on Prevention of Sexual Harassment, as adopted by the Board, may be 
accessed on your Company's website at the link: 

hltps: //vvvvw .qua It tygroup.t n /wp-tontent /uploads/2023 /01 /POLICY -ON-PROTECTlO N -Of-WOMEN­
FROM-SEXUAL-HARASSEMENT.pdf 

41. Details of Subs idiary. )oint Venture or Associate Companies 

As on March 31, 2025, Company doesn't have any Subsidiary & Joint Venture and Associate Companies 
at the end of the year. 

42. Credit Ratine 

The Company does not have any Credit rating as of now. 

43. Policy on Director's appointment and r emuneration 

The Company has devised a policy for Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The policy also regulated the terms of appointments 

includi ng retjrements and removals as well. The policy of the Company on Directors' appointment 
and remuneration, adopted by the Board, may be accessed on your Company's website at the link: 

http:-.://www.qualitygroup.in/wp-content/uploads/2023/0l/POLIC)'-ON-NOMINATION-ANP· 
REMUNERAIION-COMMITTEE.pdf 

44. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as 
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

a) There were no issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

b) There was no Buy Back of its Securities by the Company from the Shareholders. 
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c) 

d) 

e) 

f) 

g) 

h) 

Quality Foils (India) Limited 

There was no issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to the employees of the Company 
under any scheme. 
No application has been made or any proceeding is pending against the Company under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

There was no instance of one-time settlement with any bank or financial institution. 

Company does not have any subsidiary. 

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 

There are no shares in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account of the 
Company. 

45. Maternitv Benefit 

The Company affirms that il has du ly complied with alJ provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, 
and has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women employees during the year 

46. Health, Safety and environment: 
The company considers safety, environment and health as the management responsibility and 
therefore being constantly aware of its obligation towards maintaining and improving the 
environment across various spheres of its business activities. 

4 7 . Acknowledgement 
The Board of Directors thanks and deeply acknowledge the co-operation, assistance and support 
provided by all the stakeholders' viz., workers, shareholders, bankers, customers, dealers, vendors, 
Government and Regulatory agencies. 

Date: August OS, 2025 
Place: Hisar 

For a ndon behalf ofthe 

Chairman 

DIN: 00011103 
R/o: Anand bhawan, 
l lisar, Haryana-125001 
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Annexure-A 

Conservation of ener(W. tecbnolo(W absorptjon and foreitm exchau.:e earnint:s and out-eo-rule 8(3 ) of 
companies (accounts) rules. 2014. 

• CONSERVATION Of ENERGY: 

The fo llowing measures have been taken by the compa ny for conservation of energy:-

1.) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-

• ldentificalion a nd monitoring of operation of high ene rgy consuming load centers. 

• Use of Ene rgy Efficient Lighting systems like LED and CFL lamps etc. 

• Switching off machines/equipment when not in use and switching off lights in areas not having 

adeq uate activity by regrouping/repositioning the activity so that there will not be a ny wastage 
of energy due to lightmg. 

• Use of power capacitors to improve the Power factor. 

• Creating a ware ness a mong employees about the necessity of energy conservation. 

• The Company installed Solar System of 150 KW for energy consumption. 

The above-mentioned measures have resulted in reduced consumption of electrical energy at various load 
centers a nd helped in contai ning the e nergy costs in spite of the hike in electricity tariff. 

2.) The steps tak en by the company for utiliz ing the alternate sou rces of energy:-
The compa ny has own generator sets fo r generating power as alternate source of energy. 

3.) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: -
No specific invesnnent has been made in reduction in energy consumption. 

• TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

1) The effort made towards technology a bsorption: 
All the products of the company have a high level o f tech no logy. The Manufacturing processes a re also 
technology intensive. These are being constantly updated. 

2) The benefits derived like product improvement cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: 

Technology development plans of the company have resulted in reducing the cost of production and 
a lso provided flexibility in manufacturing. 
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In case of imported technology (important during tbe last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year). 

• The details oftechnology imported · 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has •ntroduccd the new technology imported 
from China · 4111gh reversing cold rolling Mill. Rnght anne<thng l.tne (BAL) for st:amless steel coils, 
St.mnlcss Steen PrecisiOn Slitter I me, Tcns•on levelling line for the production of thinner coils of 

stam l~ss steel. 

• The year of Import - FY 2024·25 
• Whether the technology been fully absorbed ·Yes 

• if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption bas not taken place and the reasons thereof. 
NA 

• The company has not imported any technology during the last three years. NA 

• 
4) The Expenditure incurred on Research and Development:· NIL 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo 
Total Fore1gn Exchange 
dunng the year under 
(actual outflows) 

Total Foreign Exchange 
dunng the year 
(actual mflows) 

Date: August 05, 2025 
Place: llisar 

under 

outflow 
review 

inflow 
review 

2024-25 

4 .12 

166.67 

(Amount: In Lakh) 

2023-24 

21.55 

248.96 

For and on behalf of the 

Chairman 

DIN: OOOll 103 
R/o: Anand bhawan, 
HISar, Haryana- 12500 1 
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Annexure B 
Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (.hI o.,fsub-section {3 I of section 134 ofthe Act and Rule 8[Z} ot the Comoanies (Account;y) Rules. 
2flW 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
part ies referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's 
length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at ann's length basis: No Such Contracts 

2. Details of materiaJ contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

N;tme of the Related Nature of Contract/ Durallon of the Salient Terms of the Justlftcatlon for Amount paid Date(s) of 
Party and Nature of Arrangements Contr act/ Contract/ Arraogeme entering lotu as advance, (if approval by 
Relationship Arrangements DIS/ transactions, such contrdcts or any) the BQard 

including the value, if arrangements or 
any transactions 

Mr Kuld1p Bhargava Managenal One finanCial year ManagenaJ approval is being Nil 
remuneration p;ud Remuneranon pa1d ror sought 

the financial year under Sections 197 

2024-25 amounting Rs. and 

6L42 lakhs per annum 198 of the 

(in the ordinary cour~-c Companies Act. 

of business] 2013 

Interest pa1d Conbnuong until 3.30 lakhs (in the This contract IS No I June 29. 
repayment of Loan ordinary course of bemg entered onto 2024 
amount business) to procure serv~ce 

wh1ch are essen hal 

for busoness needs 

Mr. Tejasvl Bhargava lnLer·est p;ud Conbnuong until 0.72 lakhs [in the This contract IS Nil June 29, 

(Managong Director) repayment of t..oan ordinary course or bemg entered into 2024 
amount business) to procure services 

which are essenoal 
for business needs 

Managerial One linancoal year Managenal approval IS being Ntl 
Remuneranon paid Remuneranon paid for sought 

che Financial yt.>ar under Scct1ons 197 

2024·25 amounting Rs. and 

49.42 lakhs per annum 198 of the 

(on lhe ordinary course Compan1es Act. 

of busoness) 

Mrs. Oivya Bhargava Remunerarion paid One fmanc1al year 6.22 lakhs (m the Nil June 29. 
(W1fe of Mr. Tejasvi ord1n.1ry course of 2024 
Bharg;wa) busoness) 

Mrs Preet Bhargava Remuneraoon paid One flnanctal year 0.22 lakhs (in the Nil June 29. 
(W•fe of Mr. Tapasv• ordmary t:ourse of 2024 
Bharg;~va) husmcss) 

Mrs. Anita lain Remuneration paid One financial year 6.23 lakhs (in the Nd Jwte 29. 

(Wife of Mr. Btrdbi ordin:try course of 2024 

Ch~nd j am) bus1ness) 
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Mohan Lal Remuneraoon paid 

Birdhi Chand Jam Remunerauon pa1d 

Amelia Nelson Remuneration pa1d 

Quality Stainless Sales 
Private Umited 

Quality Statnless Purchases 
Pnvate L1mited 

Quality Bioenergy Sales 
LLP 

Aurwn Fabncation Sales 

Date: August OS, 2025 
Place: Hisar 

One financial year 

One financ1al year 

One financial year 

One financial year 

One financial year 

One finanCial year 

One f-Inancial Year 

Quality Foils (India) Limjted 

3.42 Lakh (in the 
ordinary course of 
busmess) 

12.58 Lakh (an the 
ord1nary course of 
busmess) 

3.53 Lakh (an me 
ordmary course of 
business) 

72.34 lakhs (In me This contracl is 
ordinary course of be1ng entered 1nto 
business) to procure serv1ce 

which are essenoal 
for busmess needs 

116.93 lakhs (in the Thts contr.lct IS 

ordinary course of being enlered mto 
business) to procure service 

wh1ch are essennal 
for busmess needs 

3.01 lakhs (tn the This contract is 
ordinary course of being entered Into 
business) to procure service 

which dre essenual 
for business needs 

0.95 lakhs (in me This contract is 
ordinary course of being entered Into 
busmcss) lO procure service 

which are essennal 
for business needs 

For and on behalf of the 

DIN:00011103 

Rfo: Anand bhawan, 
1-lisar, 1-laryana-125001 

N1l June 
2024 

N1l October 
2024 

N1l October 
2024 

Yes June 
2024 

Yes June 
2024 

Yes June 
2024 

Yes June 
2024 

29. 

28. 

28. 

29. 

29, 

29, 

29, 
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Rajesh Garg & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

H No.1226, Urban Estate-2, Hisar Haryana-125005 
E-Mail:rajesh2f!IJCS2002@yaboo.com 

Mobile No.9812010694 

Fonn No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
Quality Foils (India) Limited 

(Financial Year 2024-25) 
[Pursuant to Section 204[1) qfthe Companies Act, 2013 gad Rule 9 q(the Companies (Appointment god 

Remunerqtion Q.{Manaqeriql Personae{) Rules. 20141 

To, 

The Members, 
Quality Foils (India) Limited 
Regd. Off.: 3, Industrial Development Colony, 
Hisar-125005 (Haryana) 

We, Rajesh Garg & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by 
Quality Foils (India) Limited, Hisar (CIN: L27107HR1990PLC030929) (hereinafter called "the 
Companyj. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

The objective of this Secretarial Audit is to verify compliance by the Company with the applicable 
provisions of laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, and procedures under various statutes 
and to ensure that proper systems and processes are in place in the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance. 

The audit has ensured that the affairs of the Company are being conducted in a manner that is 
compliant with the applicable corporate laws and principles of good governance. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit. We 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31 March 2025 ('Audit Period') complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2025 according to the 
provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made there under; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') viz.: 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations,2018; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositors and Participants) 
Regulations, 2018. 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations,1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28 
October 2014; (NA) 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008;(NA) 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009 :(NA) and 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 
(NA) 

(vi) OTHERAPPLICABLEACTS; 

The company has complied with the other laws applicable to the company as per the 
representations made by the company as per below details:-
a. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947; 
b. Payment ofWages Act, 1936; 
c. The Minimum Wages Act,1948; 
d. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948; 
e. The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952; 
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f. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965; 
g. The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946; 

h. Payment of Gratuity Act,l972; 
i. The Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923; 
j. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986; 
k. The Sexual harassment of women at work place (Prevention, prohibition and Redressal) 

Ac~ 2013. 
I. Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,1981 
m. Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,1974 
n. Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling) Rules 1989. 
o. Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:-

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to 
Board and General Meetings; 

b) The listing agreements entered into by the Company with NSE Emerge; 

Auditor's Opinion: 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, 
and other records maintained by the Company, and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents, and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also has 
proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above. 

We further report, that the compliance by the company of appJicable financial laws like direct and 
indirect tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by 
Statutory financial auditors and other designated professionals. 

We further report, that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women director and Independent 
directors. There were changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under 
review. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings 
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are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or 
Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions such as Public 
Issue of Securities, buy back, merger, amalgamation, foreign technical collaborations etc. or any 
other major decisions and we further report that during the audit period, the Company has 
comp1ied with the provisions of the section 180,185,186 of the Companies Act. 2013 and rules 
prescribed thereunder. 

Place: Hisar 
Date: 30-07-2025 
UDIN=FOOS960G000896685 
PR CERT.N0.6749/2025 

For Rajesh Garg & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

~-(Rajesh Garg) 
CP No.4093 
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Annexure I 
ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 
Quality Foils (India) Limited 
Regd. Off.: 3, Industrial Development Colony, 
Hisar-125005 (Haryana) 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices, we foUowed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 
oflaws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management Our examination was limited to the verification 
of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 

Place: Hisar 
Date: 30-07-2025 
UDIN= F005960G000896685 
PR CERT.N0.6749/2025 

For Rafesh Garg and Co. 
Company Secretaries 

(Rab-arg) 
CP No.4093 
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I. 

2 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Quality foils (India) Limited 

Annexure D 

Details pertainin g to remuneration as required under Section 197(12 ) or the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

1. Rule 5 (I) & (n) of the Compames (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014 

The ratio of the remuneration of each dJrector to the median remuneration of lhe employees ofrhe company, 
the percentage increase 10 remuneration of each director. Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer. 
Company Secretary or Manager. the percentage increase in the median rcmuner.1Lton of employees in the 
financia l year: 

Narne of RemuneraUon or % Increase to Remuneration Ratio of 
Dirertor/ KMP and Director d unns me Flnandal Year remunera tion 

Qsignatioo / KMP for financial 2024-25 as per Section of eadl Director 
year 2024-25 (Rs. to 197(12) of t~ Companies to median 

Lakh) Act. 2013 read wl th Rule 5 or remunerallon 
the Companies (Appointment ofemployees of 

and Remunerallon or the Company 
Managcri .JI Personnel) Rules. for the 
2014 Flnandal Year 

Z0 24-25 (Ex d . 

MDandWTD) 

Te)asvi Bharg;~m 49.42 . 24.80 
(Manag~ng D1reaor) 

Mr Kuldip 1lhargava (J I.42 . 30.83 
(Chatnnan Jnd 
Otreaor) 

Mr BlrdhJ Ch<Jnd I.JIO l2.58 4.31% 6.3 1 
(Ctuer Fmanoal Offiwr] 

• Ms. AmeBa Nelson 3.53 . 1.77 
(Company Secretary 
and Compliance 
Officer) 

'"Ms. Meenakshl 1.37 1akh . 069 
(Company Secretary & 
Comphance Officer) 

Mr Mohan Lal 3.661akh 17.H% 168 

• Ms. Amelta Nelson, Company Secretary was appOinted WILh effect from AUlJust 10,2024. 
r• Ms. Meenakshi. Company Secrecary resigned with effect from june 29, 2024 

Ratio of r emuoeraUon 
or udl Director to 

median remuneration 

of employees of tne 
Company for the 
Flnand aJ Year2024·25 

(Incl. MD and WTD} 

24 66 

3064 

627 

1.76 

0.68 

1 67 

a) The percentage •ncrease in the median remuneration of employees of the Company including Managing 
Dtrector (MD) and Whole- rime Director (WTD) IS 24.66% in the financ1al year 2024·25 

b) The percentage mcrea:.c 10 the median remuneration of employees of the Company excluding Managing 
Director (MD) and Whole- time Director (WTD) is 24.80% in the fina nCial year 2024-25. 

ii. The re were 204 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on Man:h 31. 2025. 
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Partlcul a rs 

Quality Foils (India) Limited 

The average percentile increases in remuneration of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
fi nancial year 2024-25 was 8.60. The percentage mcrease in the remuneration of the Managmg Director was 
NIL The managenal remuneration was based on the company's performance benchmarks, leadership 
responsibilities durmg strategtc transitions. and mdustry standards. No exceptional Circumstances were 
noted. 

1v. The remuneration paid by the Company is as per the rem uneration policy. 

v. The names ot the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every employee, who: 

i. if employed th roughout the financial year, was 1n receipt of remuneration for that year which. in the 
aggregate. was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees; 

ti. if employed for a part of the financ1al year, was m receipt of remuneration for any part of that year. at a 
rate which. in the aggregate, was not less than c1ght lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month: 

There 1s no employee m the Company covered 1n th1s category. However the list oftop ten employees in 
terms of remuneration drawn during the fi nancial year are as follow: 

DetaJis Details Details Details Details Details De taUs 

Name Kuldtp Bhargdva Sub1r Kumar Btrdhl Chand Shankar Angnsh Gagandeep Mano1 Kumar Kapil M1nal 

T..rafdar Jam Mehta Venn.'l 
Destgnat1on ChaJ1"111<1J1 cum Ex«Um-e Expon Ch•ef Fin.lncml F.xecuovt' General Manager Chancred 

Director Offi~r "1anagt."r Accountant 

Remuneraoon Rs. 61 42 Lalch R$ zo 161akh Rs. 12.841akh Rs 12 1akh Rs.8.661dkh Rs. 7.37 lakh Rs. 7.2bkh 

received lor FY 
202+25 

Naturt' or Permanent Pennanc,nr Permanent Pcmunem Permanent Pennanenr Permanent 

employment 

Qualllic:lllon graduation graduation Chartered graduation Post graduauon graduation Chartered 
Accounmnt Accountant 

Experience 41 Years 20 years 22 years 20 years 16years 14 years 13 years 

Date or 08 May, 1990 OJ September Olluly 2008 01 October 2017 01 March 2006 01 April2010 01 June 2013 

commencement or 2023 

employment 

Ag•• (years) Aged about 71 42 Ye.1rs 63Years 67 Years 45 years 52 Years 34 Years 

years 

l.ast employment NA NA NA l'iA NA NA Nt\ 

Pert't'n~<~ge of 672800 Equ1ty NA 1000 Equity NA 1000 Equity NA 1000 Eqwty 

Eqwty sh.ll'e~ held Shares Le l3 57 Shares Shares Share:. 

(ilo; per rule;> 5(2)( nlj 'Kl 
I.e . .1long wllh his 

spouse and 

dependent chil dren, 

If any) 

Name of Director to Father of Mr NA NA NA NA NA NA 
whom he/she IS Tl')aSVI 

rt>LltE'd Bbargava 



Quality Foils (India) Limited 

Particulars Details Details Details 
Name Anita jam Preet Bhargava Davya Bhargava 

Designation Assistant General Manager General Manager 
Marketing communication administration 

Remuneration received for FY Rs. 6.23 lakh Rs. 6.22 lakh Rs. 6.22 lakh 
2024-25 

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent Permanent 

Qualification graduation graduation graduation 

Experience 15 Years 09 years 09 years 
Date of commencement of 01 May 2013 01 April 2010 01 March 2004 
employment 

Age (years) 55 Years 43 Years 45 Years 
Last employment NA NA NA 
Percentage of Equity sh<~res NA NA NA 
held (as per rule 5(2)(iii) i.e. 
along with his spouse and 
dependent children, if any) 

Name of Director to whom he NA NA Wife of Mr. Tejasvi 
is related Bhargava 

iii. If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof. was in receipt of remuneration in excess of 
that drawn by the Managing Director and he holds along with his spouse a nd dependent children, two 
percent or more of the equity shares of the Company. 
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Other details as per regulation 5(3) of the Companies (Appomtment and Remuneration of Manaeerjal Personnel) 
Rules. 2014 are as follow: 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1 Name Kuldip Bhargava 

2 Designation Chairman cum Director 

3 Remuneration received for FY 2024-25 Rs. 61.42 Lakh 

4 Nature of employment Permanent 

5 Qualification graduation 

6 Experience 41 Years 

7 Date of commencement of employment 08 May, 1990 
8 Age (years) Aged about 71 years 

9 Last employment NA 

10 Percentage of Equity shares held (as per rule 672800 Equity Shares i.e. 23.57% 
5(2)(iii) i.e. along with his spouse and dependent 
children, if any) 

11 Name of Director to whom he is related Mr. Tejasvi Bhargava, Managing Director is 

the son of Mr. Kuldip Bhargava. 
... 
111. No employee who IS not a director recesved remuneranon m excess of the hsghest -pa1d d1rector dunng the 

financial year. 

Da te: August 05, 2025 
Place: Hisar 

For and on behalf of the 

':Y ()... Ld.~p d~ . ._c.-. '- Ja.. '-''r 
d ip Bhargava 

DIN: 00011103 

R/o: Anand bhawan, 
Hisar, Haryana-125001 
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Annexure E 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Your Company is engaged in the manufacture of Cold Rolled Stainless Steel Strips and Stainless Steel Tubes & Pipes. 
From manufacturing process invo lved, it may be classified as a stainless steel strips, lubes and pipes manufacturer. 
Tbe Indian steel industry has made a rapid progress on strong fundamenta ls over the recent few yea rs. The 
industry is getting all essential ingredients required for dynamic growth. The government is backing the industry 
through favorable indust rial re forms. Indian steel demand is expected to boost by Infrastructure & Construction 
development sustained by industrial, manufacturing and capital goods and be stimulated by the automotive, 
railways and consumer durable sectors. 

A. Industry Structure and Developments 

The stainless stee l manufacturing industry in India continues to evolve with rising demand from sectors such as 
automotive, construction, consumer durables, and infrastructure. The demand for Cold Rolled Stainless Steel Strips 
and Stainless Steel Tubes & Pipes has remained steady, driven by government initiatives such as Make in India. 
smart city development. and increased infrastructure spending. The industry is witnessing increasing adoption of 
high-precision stainless st eel products with improved corrosion resistance and strength. 

The company's production of Cold Rolled Stainless Steel Strips and Stainless Steel Flexible Hoses (excluding job 
production) was 7203.834 MT in the current fi nancial year, as compared to 6786.345 MT in the previous financial 
year. The reserve and su rplus stood toRs. 2729.66lakh for the current year as compared toRs. 2587.811akh for 
the previous year. The current market price of share is Rs. 69.80/-

8. Opportunities and Threats 

Opportunities: 

• Growing domestic mfrastructure and industrial projects. 

• Expanding export potential to Europe and Southeast Asia. 

Threats: 

• Volatility in raw material prices, particularly nickel and chromium. 

• Rising imports from countries with subsidized manufacturing. 

C Segment -Wise or Pr oduct-Wise pe rformance 

Cold Rolled Stainless Steel Strips Growth in FY 2024- 25 was driven by increasing demand in auto and appliance 
sectors. 

Stainless Steel Tubes & Pipes Contributed wtth strong traction from construction and industrial clients. 

D. Outlook 

With infrastructure investment continuing and industrial consumption rising. the outlook for FY 2025 - 26 remains 
positive. The company plans to increase production capacity, invest in automation. and explore new export 
markets. Strategic sourcing and R&D will be emphasized to maintain competitive cost structures and product 
quality. 

E. Risks and Concerns 

• Supply Chain Risk: Dependency on imported raw materials could affect conti nuity. 



• 

Qualit) Foil. (lndia) Limited 
---------------------------------------------=--~ 

Regulatory Risk: Changes m import-export dulres, IJIS norms. or environmcnttrl regulations may 1mpact 

operations. 

F. Inte rnal Control Systems and their adequacy 

The company has polic1es and procedures for ensunng lhe orderly and effictent condut.t ol1ts business. mcludmg 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of II<; assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. 
the accuracy and completeness of the accountmg recurlls. and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
mformatron. in place w cope with internal finam:ral controls w1th reference to !1nanc1al statements. During the 
year under review. such con trols were tested and no reportable material weakness mlhc design or operation was 

observed. 

In the context of the Company's core manufacturing operauon!>- rncludmg the produdton of Cold Rolled Stainless 
Sleel Precision Stnps and Coile; and Stainless Steel Flc)(ible Hoses- the internal f1nancra l controls are spcctfkally 
aligned to: 

• Procurement and Raw Mate rial Inventory Management 
Controls are 10 pl.1ce for vendor selection, purchase order approvals, goods 1nward checks, and mventory 
reconciliation. 

• Production Planning and Cost Control 
Systems have been implemented to monitor machrne utilr7.ation, process y1elds, and wastage, helping to 
track cost ethc1ency at every stage of manufacturrng. 

• SaJes, Dispatch, and Receivables 
Controls cxu;t to ensure proper bill mg. drs patch track mg. credit management, and receivables agi ng analysas. 

• Fixed Asset Management 
Asset acquisition, capitalization, and depreciation processes are governed by defined policies. 

• IT and Data Controls 
The Company uses ERP systems for fina nce, inventory, <lnd production tracking. Access rights are restricted 
and reviewed periodically to ensure data integrity. 

The intemaJ audit team, in coordination with the sliltutory auditors. periodically ev,1luates the adequacy and 
effectiveness of mtcrnc1l controls. Based on their reports. corrective measures are undertaken to enhance tht! 
control environment 

G. Disl"Ussion on Finandal Performance with Respect to Operational Pe rformance 

The total income lor the fina ncial year 2024-25 has decreased to ru.. 15280.19 l.akhs, as against Rs. 15538.30 Lakhs 
111 the financ1al year 2023-24. and the profit after tax has mcrcased to Rs. 141.58 l.akhs In the financial year 2024· 
25. from Rs. 133.58 Lakh.s In rhe financial year 2023-2'1. 

H. Material Developments in Human Resources I Industrial Re lations 

Ounng the year, the company focused on Lramrng programs 10 quality control, safety, and lean manufacturing 
pracoces. The total number of employees as on March 31.2025, stood at 204. lndustnal reldtions remained cordial 
throughout the yea r, w1th no strikes o r disruptions. 
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Ratios: 

Ratios F¥2024-25 fY 2023-24 Variance Reasons for variance 
Current Ratio 1.17 1.72 -31.76% due to mcrease in short 

term borrowmgs 
Debt-equity ratio 1.95 1.21 61.01% due to increase in tot-al 

borrowings 
Debl service 0.55 1.06 -48.52% due lO increase in 
coverage ratio repayment of 

borrowings 

Return on Equity 4.70 4.65 1.18% -

Inventory turnover 45 40 13.22% -
(no. of days) 
Trade receivables 59 64 -8.09% -
turnover (no. of 
days) 
Trade payables 3.54 1 254% Due to increase in trade 
turnover (no. of creditors. 
days) 
Net capital 12.40 9.12 36% due to decrease in net 
turnover capital 
Net profit margin 0.93 0.86 7.95% -
(%) 
Return on capital 8.81 10.32 -14.60% -

employed 
Return on - - - -
investments 

Details of any cbange in Return on Net Worth as compared to tbe immediately previous financial year along 
with a detailed explanation tbereof 

There is a slight increase ofO.OS% in return on Net Worth as compared to the previous financial year. 

Date: August OS, 2025 

Place: Hisar 

For and on behalf of the 

Dl N: 00011103 
R/o: Anand bhawan, 
Hisar. Haryana-125001 



KANSAL JAIN & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

INDIA 

1 o the Boord of Director~ of 
Qualio• Foils (India) Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Finucial Statements 

Opinion 

We ha\e audited the accompanying financial staternents of Quali ty Foils (India) Limited ("t11e 
Company"), for tl1c year ended :l l ~ March, 2025 which comprise Otc Balance Sheet and the 
Statcnunt of Profit and l o:.s and the Statement o f C~h Flows m. at aud for the year ended on that 
date. and a summary of the significant accounting policies and o ther explanatory information 
(hcrcinaAcr referred to as "the financial statemenu'"). 

ln our <1pinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us., the 
aforesa.d Financial Stntcmcnts give the infarnation i:l accordtnce with Reguhui .. m 33 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 20 IS and give a Lruc and fair vie'' 
in confonnit) w th the Accounting Principles geoeralJ} accepted in Inc in of the tate of Affairs of 
the Company fOf the Year ended Mtteh J I. 2025. and its Profit and Cast- FIO\\S f~r the Year ended 
on that date. 

Basis fD r o pinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial sta:ements iJ accordmce with the Standards on Auditing 
( As) specified under section 143 (10) ofthe Companies AcL 2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Cltandard are fu rther de<;e;bed in the Audllor·s Re;ponsibil ties for the Aud1t of the 
Financtal Statements sea ion of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
witJ1 the: Code of Ethics issued b) the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants o f India ("'the ICAf") 
together with the ethical requirements that are rele,•ant to our audit of the financia l statemenr. 
under the provisions of tllc Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our o ther ethical 
responsibilities m accordance with these rtquirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas is for our 
opinion. 

Key A•dlt Maners 

Key audit matters arc those marters that. in our professional judgment. were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the currem period. rbese maners '"ere add res~ in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a wbole, and in forming o ur op.nio n thereon. and 
'"e do not provide a separate opinion on the5e maners. Based on the worJ... durin& the year no such 
matter 10 be reported in this regard 

Information ot~er tha n the Financial Statements and Auditors' report the reon 

The Ccmpan) · Ooard of Directas is responsible for the prepamt1on o f tltc other infonnation. 
The ot~er infonnation comprises the infonnation included in the Board 's Report u1cluding 

)~··' &4. ~ 
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Anncxurcs to Bom'(i'S Report. Business Responsibility Re~rt but dcx:s not in: lude the financial 
<;tatcmcnb and our auditor's rcpon thereon. 

Our opin ion on the financial strucments does not co"er the other ilformallon and ~e do nOI 
e'prcss 8 11) form of osslr.lnce conclusion !hereon. 

In connection '-"ith our audit of the financial statement • our rc!.porsibility is to read the other 
infonmtion and. in doirg o. coosider wbether tht other irformation is material!} inconsistent 
with the financral o;tate11ents or our knowledge obtarned dunng the course of our audit or 
othcl"\\iSC apJ>C'rt to be matcriall} misstated. 

If. based on the work we have puformed on the other infom1ation obtained rrior to the date of 
th is audit repor1, we conclude that there is no matenal mis tmernent of tlw. other mformat ion. " e 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in th is rcgarJ. 

Respons ibility of Management and Tlaose charged with Governance for lhc Financial 
Stateme nts 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the mntters o;tated in section 134 (5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation o f these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the finlncial position. financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generall} accepted in Lnd•a. includmg the accounting tandards 
pecified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequatt 

accounting rcccrds m aa:.ordance with lbe provjsions of the &\ct lor S1leguardmg ol the assets o' 
the Company and for prcvcntin~ and detecting fraud:. and other i-rcgularitics: :.election and 
application of appropr-Ine accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are 
reasoruble and prudent: and design, implementation and mamtemnce of adequate internal 
financial controls, that ''ere operating effectively for ensuri11g the accuroc) and completeness o: 
the accounting records, relevant to the prerarntion and presertation of the financial tatcment tha: 
give a true ant.l itir view and are free from material misstatement., whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statemems. management is respoo::.ible for assessing the Company·s 
abilit) to continue as a going concern, djsd osiog. as applicable. matter<; related to goin& concern 
and us·ng the going concern basis of accQunting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations. or bas no reali!lic altemltive but to do so. 

I he ~oard of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's fi nancial reporting 
process. 

Auditor 's responslbiliiJes for the Audit of the Firnaocial Statement~ 

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole arc tree lrom miltenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to is ue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reaso11oble assurance is a high IC\-el of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with As. ill always detect a material misstatement \\!hen 11 c.\ bl!>. MiSStatements 
can ari e from rraud or error and are considered material if, individua ly or in the a~ate. the) 
could reasonabl)' be e\pteted to influence the ecQO()mic deci!>ion-. of use~ ta\..cn on tho! basis o' 
the .. c financial ruuement>. 

A-.. part of an eudit in occordance "ith SAs. "' e t xercisc prof'--ssional j udgnent and maintain 
profe~s1onal sktp1ic1sm throughoL.t the audi t. We aho: 



• Identify and assess the rio;ks of material mtc;'l tatcment of the fi11ancial c;t.1temcn r~ whethe.­
duc to fraud or error. de ign and perfonn audit proccdur~ re ponsive 10 tho e ric;~s. and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient md appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risl of not detecting o material misstatement re ulting from fraud i' higher than for one 
res thing from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional cmi sion 
misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant tC! the audit to order to dc~tgn audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circum tances. Under section 143{3){t) of the 
Co1lpanies Act. 2013, we are also re5p0nsible for expressing oor opinion on wt-ether the 
company hlS adequate inte'"tlal fi11a1cia I controls S)Stem in place and the opcraung 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Ev~luntc the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablene s of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management 's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
coatinue as a going concern. If we conc lude that a material uncertainty exists. we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor s report to the related disclosures in the financtal 
statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. to mod1fy our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of oor audit(l('s repon. IIO\\ever. future 
events or cooditjon!> ma) cause the Company to cease to continue as a gomg concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentaton. structure and content of the financial statements, ncluding 
the disclosures. and whether the finar.c ial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individu!lly or in 
aggregate, ll'l3kes it probable that tle econotnic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user or lhe 
f mancial statements ma) be influenced. We consider qtantitative materiaJity and qualitative factors in (i} 
p~ the scope of our audit won and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to e\aluare 
the effect of an) identified misstac:ments in the fin3Jicial statements. 

We cooununie2te with those ch:uged with governance rcga«ling, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including an) significant 
deficiencies in internal control !hat we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance \'lith a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethtcal requirements regarding independence, and to communica1e with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From ~he matters communicated with tl:ose charged with governance. we detennine those 
matters that were of most significlnce in the audit of the financial statements of the current year 
and are therefore the ke) audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 11atter or \\hen, 1n extrtmel> rare 
circumstances. v.e determine that a matter should not be corrrnunicated in our report be.:au e the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to OOI''-'eigh the public intercsl 
benefits of such communication. 
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Report on other Legal and Rc,::ulatory Requirertl(lnt 'l 

1. As required by d1e Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ("the Order"). · sued b) 
the Central Government oflndia in terms of Section 143( I I) of the Conpanies Act. 20 13 
\\e give in the "Annexu re- A" statement on the maner specified in paragraph<; J and 
4 of the Order. to the extent applicable. 

2 As required by section 143(3) of the Act. bll>ed on our audit we report that: 

(I) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanatiom which to the bc!.t 
of our NlO" ledge and bel ef were necessary for the purpo<;es of our audit 

(2) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been l..tpt b} the 
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books. 

(3) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Lo::.::. and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(4) In our opinion. the aforesaid fi nancial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Ru les, 20 14. 

(5) On the basis of wrincn representations received from the directors as on 31$1 March 
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 3Jjl March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in tcnns of Section 164(2) of the 
Act 

{6) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial conrrols over fmancial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effecti,•eness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in " Annexure B" . Our report expre::.ses an unmodi fied opinion on the: 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's intemal financial controls over 
financial reporting. 

(7) Wi!h respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of secLon 197(16) of the Act. as amended. in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

(8) Witll respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in accordance 
with Rule II ofth~o: Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and accordi111g to lhe explanations given to us: 

{a) TI1c Company does not have any pending litisation "h ich would impect on its 
financial position. 

(b) The Company does not have any long-tem1 contracts mcludmg du.vati\ C contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses 

(c) There were no amcunts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belie( 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts. no furds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (etther I rom borrowed funds or share premium or an} other sources or 
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kind of fun d-;) by the company to or in any other pcrson(<i) or entity(ics). including 
foreign entities ('lntcnncdinrics .. ). with the understanding. whether recorded it writing 
or othe"' ise. tlut the lntcm1ediary shall, w'lelher, d recti)' or indirectly lend or inve 1 tn 
other persons or entities idenLified in any manner whatsoc~er by or on behalf of tht 
company ("U ltimate Dcrcficiaries") or provide an) guarantee, secuuty or the hke on 
behalf <If the Ulttmnte Beneficiaries: 

(ii) The mnnagement has represented. that. to t11e be~t of it's Lnowled~Jt: ant.l be ief, other 
than a!> disclosed in the notes to the accJunts, n funds have been received by the 
compnny from any pc!Son(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities ("Funding 
Panics"). with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or therwi c. that th( 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in an) manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Bencftctanes") or provtde any guarantee. security a the like on behalf of the Ultima!( 
Beneficiaries; and 

(iii) RAc;erl on audit procedures wh ich we consider reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to notice that has caused them to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

(e) Thecompan) has not ~~!~!Jared or paid any dividead during the year 

(f) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used 
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facilit) 
and the same has operated throu~out tlle year for all releva-tt Lrdic.a.;tions recorded in 
the sofu"are systems. Further, durilg the course of our audit we did nC!l come :cross an) 
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and tlle audit trail bas beer 
preserved by the Company as per the sta tutory rcqui r;:mcnts for record retentio n. 

PIFtce: Hisar 
Date: MAY 15.2025 

Ftr KANSAL JAIN AND A OCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's registration no. 023083N) 

~~~ (~r ~J~ &&,?U~ i, ~ ~ (CAA KHILJAIN) 
~)~ u~ t ht ..,/) PARTNER 
~- ,, (M. No.:517602 l 

"~)IN : 255 17602BNUKXDI95 1) 



AnncJu~ "A" to I he Ind ependent Auditor's Report 

(Rcrcm:d to in paragrap1 I under ·Report on Other Legal md Rcgu atory Rcquircmcm· of otr 
report 10 the Mcn1bcr; of Quality Foils (India) Lirnittd of ever date) 

I. In re,pect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

(a)(i) The Comp2ny has m~intained proper records related to full particulars includ10~ quantita.ivc detail, 
nnd sit1.ntion of l'ropcny. Plant and r quipmcnL 

(ti) The compan> is not ~aving any intangible asset. Therefore. the provisions of Clause (i)(a)(B) of 
pa111graph 3 of lie order an not applicable 10 the compaey 

(b) In our opinion Property, Plant md Equipment have been physically verified by the management 111 

reason<ble inteMis. No material discrepancies were noti:ed on such vcrificztion duri~ the year. 

(c) According to the inforn1ation and explanations given to us. th! records examined by us and based on 
the examination of the registered sale deed/titJe deed/ conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, th~ 
title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which arc freehold, ~re held in 
the name of the Compnny as at the balance sheet date. There on: no imrnovable prupllrticlj of land and 
building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed as~cm iu the financial statements. 

(d) Tiu company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year 

(c) Ba.<ed on the information and Cliplanatioru furnished to us, no proceedilgs have been initiated or are 
pendin! during the }ear on the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami 
Propert) Transactions Act 1988 (as amended in 20 16) (formerly the Bcn21Tli Transactions (Prohibnioo) 
AcL I 988 (45 of 1988)) anJ Rule:. rmdc thercwdcr. 

2. (a) As explain.:d to Ui>. dtc inventories have been phy~icolly vcnficd by lh: management duriag the )Cor 

at reasonable intervals. In our opinion. the coverage and procedure of verification is apprq>riate. No 
discreJDOcies of I 0° o or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed 

(b) I he company has bee• sanctlorect worklrg cap nat limits to excess of nve crore; In a~n:cgate frun 
banks and/or financial institutions oa the basis of securty of cunent assets and the cruarterly returns and 
monthly statemc~ts filed by the corrpany with such bar.ks or fintncial inst Mions are in agreement wit~ 
the bocks of acc~unt of the company 

3. According to informatio1 and explanation given to us, the compmy has not granted any loan. secured CY 

unsecwed to companie . firms, liraited liability partnerships or other parties co.,cred in lle register 
required under section 189 of the C<impanics Act, 2013. Accordirgly, parogroph 3 (ii1) of the order is na 
appliclble. 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Compa1y has complied with 
the pro1islons of St:ctions 185 ;uld 186 of the Company Act, ZO 13 in ~'CI of IO<Ilb gr.u11ed, invcsn nl"TIIS made and 

guaranlees and securities provided, a; applicable. 

S. In our opinion and according to the infom1ation and cAplanutions given to U), the CO'llpany has complied 
wllh the dtrectives ot the Reserve Bmk of India and the provisions of Sect tons 73 to i6 of the Act and the 
Complllies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

According tO the informatillll and C>.planations given to 13, no Order has been passed ~ the Cortpan} La\o 
Board or National Company Law Tr bunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or a,y other lribunal oa 
the cofllpany in respect of the aforcstid deposits. 

6 We have broodly reviewed the cost records mninta ned by t~e company pursuant to the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rulcs.20 14. as amended and prescribed by the Central go1emment Jnder sub­
section ( I) of section 141 of the Companies Act,20 ll. and are of the opinion trot, prime fncu!, the 
prescribed cost roecordbo have 1>\:cn nuintained. We have, however, not madl n detailed exnmint~ion of th: 
cost records with a view to dctcrmim whether they arc accumte or complete. 



7 (a) In our opimcn. the Company has been regular in deJX)sitin~ undisputed ~lllutnry tlu•o; mcludiag 
Good'l nrd Sl!rv1c~ I a\, llromlcnt Fun.J. Emplo)\.'\.'S' State Insurance. Income In, Sl!lcs Tax. Duty of 
Custom. Cess and o her material sHttutOf) dues applicable to i1 with the ~ropriatc: authontlt!- 1 here wen: 
00 undt rutcd amOIIIIS paynblc In ~'tt of Goods and SaviCC To'C, Prolftdcnt fund. f.mpiO)CC)0 St.a.c 
lmurance. Income fa 'C. SaiCll I a\, dut} or Custom, duty or 1:.\ctse, (;cs( and other matc:nal <;·a tutory dues 
in arrca"J."~ at Marth 11, 20~ for a period of more than stx months frorr the date t~ey bccom: pa)'able. 

(bl there nrc no st~utory dues referred o in sub-clause (a) abo\'e ~hich ha"c na been cJcrosned as on 
~1Jrch 3 I, 202S on account of disputes. 

8 there u no any tl"ln"'lcllon recorded ill the books of accoura that haw been ~urnndered or d1sclosed as 
income darini:thc }~ar in the Ia.\ assessments under the Income Ta"< Act 1961 (43 of 1%1) 

9. (a) In our op111101 and according to the informati>n and explanations ~iven to U$, the Company has not 
defaulted in rcpnym~nt of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thereon 10 any lcnd:r. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
been a dl'Cinred willful defau lter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c) In ou1 opinion and accordmg to the information and explanations given to us. the loans raised during 
the year were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) In our opinion Md according to the information and explllllations given to us, there are no funds raised 
on ~hon ~m' basis which hove been utilized for long term purposes. 

(e) In OW' opinion and according to the infonnaticn and expanations given to us, the: company has not 
taken any funds from any cn:ity or penon on account of or to meet tlle obligations of ILS subsidiarits, 
ossoc:iatc:J or jotnt ":ntures. 

(f) In our opinion and accordng to the infoonat.ioo and explanations ti"en to us. the company has not 

raised loms during the year 01 the ple%e of securties held il its subsidiaries, joiat veni\IKs or associate 
compani~. 

10. (a) ne Company has not raised moo~ by wayofinilial rublic: offeror further public: offer (includlrg 
debt insiJ\ImenLS) during the year and hence reportirg under clause 3(xXa) of the Oder is not tpplicable. 

(b) the company hos not maoe any pre~rential allotment or private pbcement d shares o; con.,.enible 
debenrurtS (fully cr partly cr optional y), hence reporting under cla.sse 3(x)(b) of the Order ts not 
applicable. 

II . (a) We have not noticed any case of bud by the company or any fru~d on the Company by its officers 
or employees during the year. The management has also not rq>arted any case of frald during the year. 

(b) During the year no report IJOder sub-section ( 12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by 
the auditors in Form ADT -4 ns prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit llnd Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Ccntnsl Oovemmcnt. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, no Whistle Blowers ComplainLS were received during the year 
under review. 

12. The company ts not a N1dh1 C..:ompany. There fa-e. the proviSIOns ot Clause (xu) ol paragmph 3 of the 
order are no1 applicable to thl! Company. 

13. As per the mformation and explanat ons recei\00 to us all transactions w1th tte related panies 11rt in 
complian;e with sections 17i and 188 of Compa:ues Act Yhere oppl cable. and the detai s ha~oe been 
disclosed in the fintr~eial st-ate-nentS., etc.. as required by the applicable accounting g,andardlo klentificauon 
of relo1ed parties w<re m:~de 11.1d provided by the mmagement of the c:orrpa.ny 

14. In our opmion.thc Com pan) has on adequate Internal Aldit Systcrr commen_curnte '' ith lhe size a.'ld 
nature ofiLS busme 



1 ~ The CompMJ' hn~ nnt entered m•o any noo-cash trauactions with dircdors or persons conrcctcd will 
him for lhe year andcr rcvi:" . fhcrcfore, lhe prov1s1ons of Clause (xv) or p:tragraph J of the onlcr arc net 
apphca')lc to the Company 

16 (n) fhe Comrnny i' no1 required to be registered uncbr section 45-IA of the Rescnc Bank of lncli3 Ac•. 
1934. 

(b) The company has not londucted any Non-Banking Financial or llousin~ Finance actiVIIICs dunng th: 
)Cilf. 

(c) nu compan) is not a Core ln~stment Company 1CIC) as Jclined i11 the regliauon~ m1de h) tht 
Rcscf\-c Bank oflndia. 

(d) As per the iaformnttoa and explanations received, the group docs not have Wl) CIC II) p.tr1 of th: 
group. 

17. The company has not incurred cash loss in current linancial year as well in iuwnediatd) prel:edin.t 
financ1al year. 

18. There has been no rcSiJlna tion oft he previous statutory auditors during the year. 

t9. On the basis of the financial rmios, ageing and expected daks of renli:tation of finnnciallls'>cts nnd 
paymeM of financial liabil itict., other infoonation accompanying the financial statements, the auditor'; 
knowledge of tte Board of Directors and manag.emcDl plans. we are of the opimon thm no mlllcrial 
uncen.2inty existS as on t~c date of the audit repon tim company is capable of rweeting IU liotulitic; 
exist in~ at the date of bala1ce sheetu and wbtn they faD due within a penoj of one year from the balance 
~heet chte. 

20. Th~re is no ltability oflhc company under lhe provisions of seuion 135 of lhe Conpanies Act. relatin~ 
to Corporate Social Respo:1sibility. Therefore. the provisions of Clluse (xx) of para~h 3 ol the order ore 
not applicable to the Comrany. 

21 . According to lhe information and explanations given to us. the Company does not have an) Subs1dtilf). 
Associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to tm 
compa,, . 

Place: Hisar 
Date: MAY I 5, 2025 

FGr KAN AL JAIN AND A OCIA TES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Finn 's rcgistretion no. 023083 ) 

~'-<~~ 
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~ ~ 

"' (CA AKIIIL Ji\1 ) 
q~ N, ho _, PARTNER 

""(\,., --,,,,.,/J (M.No.: 5 1760:!) 
''A~ ( \ IDIN: 255 17602BNUKXDI95 1) 



Annc, urc " ll" to the lndCJlCndcnt Auditor's llcport 

(Referred to in pnrogmph 2 (li) under ' Report on other legal and regulatory r<.-qu1rcmcnto, • of our 
rcpor11o the members of Qunlity I· oi ls (India) Limited of even date) 

Report on the lntcnual Fiuncial Controls over fin~tnciulltef)orting under clause (i) or sub­
ll~tion 3 or St'Ction 143 or the Companies Act, 2013 ('' the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reponing of Quality roils (lndi.s) Lim1ted 
(lh..- Cornpany .. ) n\ uf March l l. 2025 in conjunction with our aud1t of the financ1al statements of 
the Company for the )'COr ended on that date. 

Mana~tcmcnt ' responsibility ror internal ftnandal controls 

I he Board of directors of the Company is responsible for cstablishin{,l and maintaining internal financial 
contrOls based on the illlcmal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the csscnt1al components of internal control staled in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financinl Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants or ln<.lia 
these responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate imemal linancral 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and cmcient conduct of its business, the 
safeguarding of its as'ets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the a.ccuracy and completeness 
or the nccountin& record~. ond the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required unde· 
the Companies Act. 2013. 

Auditors' responsibility 

Our mponsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporung of the 
Company based on our aud11. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ''Guidance Note'') issued by the lnstirute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the 
Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards 
and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical rt:quircmcn~.:> and plan and perform the audit tu 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financ1al reporting 
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit invoh-es performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financ ial 
controls over financial rc:portiug, a)liCliSing tile risk that n material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluat10g the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the asse sed risk. The 
procc<.lurcs selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the OMCS3ment of the riskl of material 
misstatement in 1he finnncial ~lAi erncnts , whether due to fruud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sumcient and appropriate to provide n basis for our 
audll opinion on the Company·s intemal financial control system over financial reponing. 

Meaning or internal financial controls over fina ntial reporting 

1\ comrany's internal linancial control o"er financial reporting is a process designed to pro~ooid~ reasonable 
assurance regn.rdins the reliabtlity of financial reponing and the prcpnmtion of financial statemenu ro~ 
externn purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples. A company's Internal 
financial control over financial report ing includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertnin to the 
maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fa~rly renect the tran~ctions and 
di~positions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurnnce that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparntion of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting princtplcs, ond thot receipts and expenditures of the company nrc being mnd~ onl) in 
accordance with authonsat10ns or management and directors of the company: and (iii) provide reasonable 



assuranct rceardin: preventicn or timely detectio~ or unautlomed :~rquisuion, usc:. or dispo,ition of lhc 
compan) 's osscts tbnt could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

LimitatiDn~ or inttrnal finanrial contrt)IS over lieancial reporting 

Because of the lnhcn:nt hmnauons of ntemaJ licanc•al coc:trols O\er financu1l ·cporting. ncluding lhe 
possib•ltl)• of collusion or i~r m<r\3gement or overrid! of controls. matcnal mi$St3tC'Tlents due to 
error or 'mud may occur and nOl be detected. Also. proJectims or any evaluation of the mtcmal linanoal 
control~ over financial report ng to fuhl't s are 5\hject to t.b: nsk that the tntemal financial conlrol o~er 
financial reporting may become made~~uate bec<u c of clnnges in conditions. or that tbe degree of 
compliarce with t h~ policies or proccdu1es may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and according to the information md explnmtions given to us, tile Compaay has. in all 
material ~peers, m adequate internal financial C(lfllfOI ~}Sttm over ftrAtJcial rcponmg and such lmenol 
financial controls e' er financtal rcportirg were operating efftctively as at J I" Ma-ch, 2025, based on the 
internal control o~er financial reporting, criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components or internal control ~tatcd in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial Controls Over 
Financial Reportinr. issued by the Institute of Cham red Accountants of India. 

Place: Hisar 
Date: MAY I 5. 2025 

For KANSAL JAIN A 'fD A OCIA TE 
Chartered Accountatlts 

's registration no. 023083~) 

fJIAi~~?t 
(CA AKHJL JAN) 

PARTNER 
(M. o.: 517601} 

(UDIN: 25517602BNUKXDl951) 

• 



QUALITY FOIL (INDIA LIMITED 
(CI'II L.2" 10711RI990PL COJ)929) 

Notes Formin~ lnt<~Aral Jlart of the Fint ncial tatcmcnts 

For the Year Ended 31st March 2025. 

ote 1: NAT RE OF 8 SINESS OPERATIONS: 

Qual It) Foils (India) Limit«< {hcrei11afier referred to a> 'the con, pan)') Ill a manufacturer of <.old Rolled 
Stainlc s Steel Strrps/coilo; and Stain ess tee) Flexible Hose Pipes. 
l he company inccrporated under 1he provisi<ms of the Companies Act, 956 and domiciled in lndu. I he 
regi tcrcd office of the co•npany is at J. Industrial Development Colony. Hisar, Haryana 125005. The 
company is a public limited company and is listed on SME Platfonn of National Stock Exchange of India 
Ltd. (NSE EMERGE). 

'lote 2: ACCOUTING t•OLICIES: 

2.1 TATEMENTOF COMPLIANCE 

The Standalone Financial Statcmc11ts of the Company have been pn!pared in accor<bnce "'ith the 
i\ccountilg Principles ge~erally accepted in India. The Financial Statements have been prepared to 
comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards. as prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules defined there under, as amended from time to time and in accordance 
'' ith the retjuirement" of Regulation 33 of the SEBI IListing Obligations and di-.closurc Requirenents) 
Regulat ions 2015. as amended. The above fmancial results were revie\\ed by the Audit Committee and 
appro"ed by the Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on 15/0512025. IND AS is current I) 
NOT aprlicable 01 the corrpany. 

2.2 BASI OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

2.2. 1 i) fhc standalone financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance w1th the 
Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 and the rule:. framed 
thereunder as applicable and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"). 
ti) I he 1-mancial Statement:. are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost conventiOn. 

2.2.2 f NCTIONALAND PRESENTATIO CURRENCY 

The functional ctJTency of the Corrpany is Indian rupee (INRt. TI1e standalone financial sttuemerts are 
presented in Indian rupees (INR) ord all values are rounded to nearest l.akhs up to two dcc1mals. Jnl~s 
othern tSl lated. 

2.2.3 USE OF E TIMATE 

The preJlllation of financial statements in confonnity with the generally accepteJ Accounting Staadard 
and prirciples re'luire) t.ic management to make c llmalc-.. JUdgements atd a:. ·urnptton, . The~ 
c~llmates. judgments and tMumptions affect the application of accounting polictes and rcport~o:tl m 'tints 
uf :Met'> and liabi litie-., ti-e disclosures of contingent osscts end liobihties at the dntc 1 1 ih .. timftoial 



:.tntcmcnh nnd rcp1rtctl nmounts of revenue and expense!> during the ytnr. Accounting Fstimntcs .:ould 
dwnttc frum pcriud w pcriud Actual results tou ld d iller from thv..c C">limutc\ Apvropriale dmngcs and 

~ttmatc' arc ma~c n'> MJnngcment bccorlle aware of chMgc) in circumsuncc!> )urToundin~ the 
~timntcs. Change~ m c tm-otc · nrc -cncctcd in the financial siJtcmcnts m the period rn "'hich chmgcs 
:rc made and, if mucrinl, their eiTccts arc disclosed in ~1c notes to the liruncial )tatcmcnh. 

2.3 PROPEIUY, I.,LI\NT AN D EQUPMEI"T 

il Tangible a§scls: 
Pro pert), Plant an F.quipmcnt arc stated at cost net of recoverable tu.xc), trodc di!>~:ount :. and rebate$. less 
accumulated dcpre: iation and impairment IO$. if any. The coSI of Assets comprises its purchase price. 
borrowmg co:.t and any co~t directly attributable to bnngmg the nssct to its working condition for its 
tntendcd usc. net clt:o~rgc), on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arrs rng from exchange rate 
\arintions nttributablc to th~: assets. Subsequent expend itures relnted to an item of Property. Plant and 
Equipment arc uddcd to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing assets 
beyond its previously asse$cd standard of performance. Projects under which assets arc not ready for 
their intended uc;c arc rcnected under Capital Work-in- Progress 

ii) Depreciation : 
Depreciation on Propeny. Plam and Equrpment is provid!d on Straight Line Method (SLM). 
Depreciation rs pro\ rdcd based on ureful life of the assets as prescnbed in · chcdt.lc II of lhe Companies 
Act. 2013 except io respec1 of those assets where useful life is d fferent than those prescribed in chedule 
U are u ed. The residual value is not more thm 5% of the origilal cost of the A$el. The Asset residual 
\alue. useful lt\>es and me:hod of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
pro:~pcc;t ivc; l), if appropriate. 

In respect of addition or e\":tensions forming an integral par1 of exrsting assets and insurance spares. 
including incremental cost arising on account of translation of foreign c1.rrency liabilities ior acqui>ition 
of Fixed Assets, depreciation is provided as aforesaid over the residual life of the respective assets. 

iii) Intangible Assets: 

The Company dcx:s not have any Intangible Assets. 

iv) Impairment of A~sets: 

An n ~;ct s trcntcd ns impaired, if any, when ilie carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable vnlue. An 
impairment loss. ii any, is charged to the Statement of Profit ond Loss in the )C'Jr in wh1ch an ru.:set is 
identified ns impaired. The 1mpairmc:nt loss recogn ized in prior 11ccouutiug p~o:riod b r~.:vcrsed if there has 
been a change in tl c cstimaiC of recoverable amount. 

2.4 IN £ TMENT 
All Ill\ cs•mcnt' arc classifed as Long Tenn Investments. Or initial recognition. all ln\>estmcnt:. are 
nea":.ured at ( o t The C<N comprises the P1.1rchase Price and directly attributable acquisition charges 
'llch a!> IJ•ol..cntgc, l ceo, and Outic~. 

l ong I enn lll\cstments are carried at Cost. However. provi~ion for d1rninutim in ,aJJc is made to 
recogni/C a decline other than temporory in the value or the Lon~ Tem1 lnvc tmcm:.. 
On dispo~l of an nvcstment, the difference between its Carrying Amotall and Net Di-.po,al Proceeds is 
chnrgcd or credi ted to the tatcmcnt of Profit and Loss. 



2.5 \ ALl ATIO Or I VENTORJES 

hem of in\ cntouc' nrc mcn,urcd at IO\\Cr o f co~t or net rcnlilablc value nOcr provading for 
obsolc ccncc. if nn), Cllccp. an ca. c of by-pr(lducts, w 1ich nrc vnlucd at the net rcalitllble value. Co~t of 

Ill\ en tori~ Cl'lllpriscs Uf all COStS Of purchase, COS( Of Conversion and Other COStS including manufacturing 
O\ crhcads incurred in bringing them to their respective prcs..:nt location and conditio• Co:>t uf ra'' 

n1ntcrial proces chcmic.tls. ston: and SJXlre . packing m211.:rials, trading and othet products arc 
dctcnninrd on the b~bi of' aluation of the finished goods as per the pro' i ions o applicable. 

1) Ra'' Material, Components. ·tores and spares: Ra" Materinl, Components. :>tore and :>pare~ are 
vnlued at cost. 

ai) Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods: Work-in-Progress and Finished goods arc valued at lower 
of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of 
rnnnulbcturing overhead based on nonnal operating capacity. Net Realizable value is the estimated 
)elling price in the ordinal)' course of business. less estimated cost of complet iOn and estimated co b 

neccssru) to mal..e the -;ale 

2.6 REVEN UE RECOG IliON 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it i1> probable that the economic benefit" w11l llow to the 
Compan~· and th revenue can be readily measured, regardless of when the p1yment is being made. 
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. volume rebates if an~. and 
ta;\.c~ or dutic:. co llc:~ tc:tl \.II behalf uf the ~vt:num:ut. wh i-.:h Wt: It: vied un :.aft.~ :>u-.:h ~ OUI.Ilb w1d 

erv ices Tax. Re,enue is recognized either in time or point of time. when (or asl the Compan} saJisfies 
perfonnCilce obligations b) transfening the ~s or service to its customers. The compan) applies the 
re\enue recognition criteria to e~h separately identifiable component of t~e sales transaction as 
mentioned in Stntement of Pro fit & Loss. 

i) ale of Goods: Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point of dispatch of the finished 
goods to the customers against invoicc(s). Tbe company collects Goods & Service Tax on behalf of t11e 

government and therefor!! these are not economic benefits flowing to the companies, hence. the) arc 
excluded from the revenues. 

ii) Export Benefits: Exrort Benefits cons:ituting import duty benefits under Out) Dnl\\ Ba{l,. are 
accounted for on lccrual b.t is. TI1e same is recognized in the books of accounts n the }etr in \\hich the 
right to receive Lre dul) dmw hncl.. credit as per the term~ of the scheme is established an re:.pect ~f the 
export rrodc. 

iii) Dh dends: Dividend Income is recognized ,.,hen tltc right to receive pa) menta!. estabb)hcd. 

j,) Interest Income: lntcn:st Income is recognized cn a time proportion basi talo.ang into account the 
amount outstanding and the interest mtc applicable. 

') l n~urancc Cln1ms: Insurance and othar claims, if on), nrc rc ogniLcd "hen there c'"t nu 
'>lgnifica1t uncertainty "ath regard to the amount to be rcaliLcd ant.l thc Ultimate \.11111,;\.l iOn thereof 

~i 



2.7 FORF:IG~ F:XCII ANGE TRANSACTION 

1 mn .... 1ctirn-, dcnoounatcd 111 forci&n currencies arl tran~latcd into I unction II currcnc) U!>lllll. the 
C\chnn~c r.tlc pre' llling ~)nthc date of the transaction or that appro\lmatc the actual rntl at the d11c nl 

the tmn 3(11\ln. 

\1unctlll) tlcnh dcnotnmutu.l in fon:ign currencie~ at the ) ear..:nd an: te~latcd at }car-coo rule~ . n the 
case of itum. "hie\ nrc co,ercd b) forward e.'\Change contracts. the diiT:rcncc bctv.ccn the }Carcnil rate 
and rate 01 the dat~ of the contract, if any. is recognized as exchange diflcrcnce and the p~mium paid on 
fOf\\3rd contracts is rccognircd O\erthe life of the contract. 

Non-monetary foreign currency items ore carried at cost 

Ill respect of integral foreign operations, all transactions an~ translated at rates prevailing on the date of 
uansacllon or that npproximmes the actual rate at the date of transaction. 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference ei ther on settlement or on translation is 
recogni1ed in the tatemcnt of Profit and Loss, except in case ot long term liabilitie . where they relate to 
acqui!.ition of fi xed assets, in which case they arc adjusted to the carrying cost of such asseH. 

2.8 BORROWING COSTS 

Borro" ing cost attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized ai pan 
(If the cost of such a set. A qualifyi~ asset is one that necessanl) takes substantill period of time to get 

rend) for intended usc. All o Lhcr Bcrrowing rosts arc rccosnizz:d u nn cxpcn5e in Lhc period in "hich 

l!ley are incurred. Borrowing Cost consist oflnterest and Other Cost that an enti:y incurs in connection 
with the Borro\\ ing of fund~. 

2.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

i) POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
Defined Contribution Plan: A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under \\hich 
the Company pays specified contributions to a separate entity. The Compuny nukes spccitied monthl_ 
contributions towards Pro\idcnt Fund. Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme. Tile Company's 
contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Pmfit and I o -;during the period in " hich 
tht: employee renders the related service. 

ii) HORT TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
A II cmplo) ee bcndits payuble "holly within twelve months oi renderi•g the sc.>:rvicc!> art classi fi~d as 
-flort-tcrm cmplo}ce bene lit • such 0> salaries. wages. bonus etc. I he undi<;countcd amount of shon term 
(mplo) ee benefit-; e\pected to be paid in exchmge for the service rendered by cmplo) ec., arc rcCO!:,"li.ced 
::s an e\pense dll'ing the period "'hen the employee:. render the sm ice . The~c lx.·nefits indude 
rcrformm cl! mccllli\1.! and compensa1ed absences. 



2.10 TAXATIO 

Income ra, compnscd of Current Income tax. Deferred Taxes and Mal trcdit. 

i) Current Income To~: Currclll Income Tax for the current and prior period:, arc mcn'lun:d at the 
amount c>.pcctcd 10 be paid to the tnx authorit ies, using the applicable tax rates. The tax rate and tax 
13\' u-.cd to compute the current IlL'\ amounts arc those that nrc enacted or ubstanth.ely enacted as at the 
reponing date and applicable for the period. While determining the Ia'\ provis1onc;, the Com pan) assesses 
"hcthcr each unccnam tax position is to be considered separutely or together with one or more unccrtalll 
ta\ po~i t u.>us depending the natme and circumstances of each unccrtam ta.\ posnton. rhe Compan) 
offset:, current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set ofT the 
recogni~cd amounts nnd whore it intends either to set1 le on a net basis. or to reali.LC the asset and liabil ity 

~imullancously. 

ii) Deferred Income Tax: Deferred income tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach. 
Deferred 1ncome tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary difference!. 
aric:ing between the tax base of assels and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements. 
except ''hen the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or 
liabilil) in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor ta.xable 
profits or loss at the time of the transaction. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
again I ''hich the deductible temporary differences and the carry fo~ard of unused Ia'\ credilS and 
unused La.\ losses can be utllizcd. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each 
reponing date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient la\able profit ~ill be 
a'ailable to allow all or pan of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income ta.~ asset · 
and liabilitie are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the asset is 
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rat~s (and tax Ia\~) that have been enacted or sub!>tanti' cl) 
enacted a1 the reporting date. 

iii) MA I Credit· MAT Credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the e>.tcnt there is comincing 
c'•idencc thnt the company will pay nonnallncome Tax during the specified period In the year in \\hich 
the MAl Credit becomes el igible to be recognized as an asset in nccordnnce with the recommendation 
contained in Guidance Notes issued by the ICAI, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the 
statement of profit & loss and shown as MAT Credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each 
~alance Sheet date and wntes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit entitlement to the extent there is 

no longer convincing evidence to the effect that company will pay normal Income Tax durinn the 
specified period. e-

2.11 PROVISION , C0'4TINGENT LlABILITIE NO CONTINGE T A ETS 

Provisions are recognized in the accounts. when tJ1ere is a present obligation tlS a result of past C\ cnt( ' ) 
and ~hen a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reponing date. The~ 
e)timate!. are re' ic\\-Cd at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best esttmate. Pro' i:.tons 
are di counted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liabilities are di!,closed unless the possibility of outflow of resou~ Ul rell\l)tl\. Contingent 

Assets " " neither recogni><d nor di>elosed in the Onno10ial <t•temcots. ;;. • ' ~ 

~.\ , l 
lo, ' 

I' I At( • 



2. 12 OJVII)£ 0 TO EQli iT\' IIOLDEI~ Of T il F. COMPANY 

lh~· C. nmp::lll) rcco~nuc n hohllity to mnkc drvrdcnd tJr,trrbutttlth to cqutt) h,>ldor!. o f the C:o111pan) 

\\hl'n the tli,tributinn i1. nuthoriteu nnd the distribut ion is no longer at the tli,erctK'I n of the Compall) As 

Jl.!r the l'tlrporntc "" ~ in lndin u distribution is authorized \\hen it b approvtd by the harcholdcr, 
I ll\\ C\ cr. Board or Dirccttlf' of a C.ompany has not dcclnrcd/approvcd any dividend duung the pertod 

tuttkr cmhidcrntton. 

1 13 Ei\R I G/(LO ) PER IIARH 

Bn.,ic C.'tmings/(l.m") per share nrc C3lculnted by dividing the net profi t/ (Loss) for the year auributnble to 

cquit) llhnrcholdcrs by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. J'hc 
\ICightcd nvcrngo number of equity shares outstanding during tho year nrc adjusted for events of bonus 
issue to c:-.isting sh,trcholdcrs; share split: and reverse share split (consolidation ofstrar~:::.). If any. 

l·or the pJrpo c of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit (loss) for the year 
ottnbut:1b c to equity share 1oldcrs and the \\eighted average number of shares outstand ng during the 
)Car arc ajjustcd for the eff~CtS of all diluted potential equity shares. 

• 



QUALITY FOILS (INDIA) LIMITED 
BAl..ANCt SHEET AS AT J IST MARCH, lOlS 

IAmo .. c Rs. l n La~) 

Pi\R 11Cil.AR'\ NOTE i\SAT'l lq A-; AT 'll\1 
NO. MARCH.2025 MARCil. 202~ 

EQUin AND LIABILITI ES: 
llartlloldrr$' Fuds 

Sll.li'CC~tpillll 2 2~.S.40 US.40 

R~csand U"PIU$ J 2.729.66 2.587.81 

Totll Sllarrlloldtrs' FundJ 3.015.06 2.873.21 

Non~vi'T~•• Lubilitifl 
I ooa I mn Dom,,in~ 4 2.122.06 1.343. 12 

Lon~ 1 erm Pro' ion.' s 202.11 199.03 

IX rc.m.-d l a.\ L ilblhtio ( ~ d l 250.58 187.93 

Othc! 1\c>n cunni Lrabrhlro b J.OO 

Tot.a Non~arnacliabilicics 2..S74.7S 1.733.08 

umnc Liabilities: 
1\t\on rcnn Borm,in~~ 7 3.751.92 2.126.92 
l rndc Pa> able~ 8 
(i) l))e to Mi~ronnd mall Enterprise 1.15 
(ii) Oue to others 238.55 
Other Cum:n1 Ltlbllltlcs 9 182.80 163.29 
Shon rcrm Provisions 10 59.3 1 4.t.73 
Total Current Liabilities 4.232.58 2.3.&2.69 

TOTAL EQ ITY ASD LIABILITIES 9,812.39 6,~8.98 

ASSETS: 
Noa-currtDI A55tiS: 
P~. Plant tnd Equipol(rlt. ln1:1ngi~c A~tcs 
- Propc~. Plamand Cquipnc:nu II 4.671.43 2.2 12.01 
• Carilal woO. rn~ 81.60 2.t8.37 
• lnl:Jlgiblc Assns 

1\on<urrcnt I"' ::otmcnts 12 40.05 40.05 
lonl!Tenn Loans and Ad\alCCS 13 34:?.93 
Other Non<Um:M Assets 14 61.27 66.27 
ToUI Noo-cul"rult Assets 4,854.35 2.909.63 
Con<!al Au.cc: 

I D\ Cttoric:s 15 2.088.28 1.-'67.37 
Trodt Rocchobl:s 16 2.454.70 2 • .t07.0-l 
Cash and cash C1Ui,-alcn15 17 127.59 109.52 
~n Tcnn Lo3r5 and Ad\111CCS 18 26.88 17.68 
()the- Current AlSCtS 19 270.50 37.7-t 

4.968.04 ~.03935 

!1.822.39 6.948.98 
The OCC011pan)ing ote os. I to 40 form an integral pan of !he finalciol statements. 

A OITOR' REPORT 
AS PlR OUR IU:POR r OF CVION 01\TC AI TACilED 
FOR KMlSALJAIN AND ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT AN r~ 
(I inn's Rcg. l\o. 023C8JN)~.qs 

fJPNf;a<"' {~~r.t~ "'oc% 
((A AKIDUAI ) t;' F-;f): 
PARTNEit \~ r. I ~I 
(M 0 . 517602) .. ~ 
lJOIN-2S$17602B l KXOI9"1 t ':..!.- ./ 
l'lace· Jtrw 
Dau:d. M~> I 5. 2025 

FOR QUAUTY FOILS (INDIA) LIMITED 

(t !P\AA.Nt• 'l~{ )\.,f.,Nt }, • A I ----' u ~L~ D.-J ....... ~Cl\~ 
lTJA VllliV.RGAVA k ULDIP lllv\RGAVA J 

(Managing Dircetor) tChninnan l Dim:tor) 
tDIN 0001 1205) (DIN:OOOI I 103) 

~~ 
AMH lA ~I I~~ON 

lCompan~ ~'\:rcWS)) 

~~· 
BIRD I I~ I I\ D Jt\1~ 

(tluell-lnancial Otliccrl 



QUALITY FOJLS ( INDIA) LIMITED 
ST T£MENT Of PROFil AND 1~0 S FOR Tilt: YEAR ENDED 31ST M;\RCII, 202~ 

I' \R II( I I J\R~ 

RE\'£fill J.; 
Rc,~nuc fmm Opcr:uion~ 
Olh:r Income 
' I otJI Rt• til ur 

F.XPr,Sfe: 
Co nf\1..tl~-ri•ll'(ln,umcd 
( h3l~\."S m ln\cmorio oil· inishcd 
~old and Work-in-~ 

I mplo)cc lkn:lit bpcn..c~ 
FiNnCC Cost 
O.:rn:cim ion 

'0 11~ 
NO. 

20 
21 

22 

23 
24 
25 

Oth:r bpcn C\ 26 
Tolll Expensu 
r, ont rrvm urldhiMI')' »cthlllt) lltfort t:xlneunlhllry lltrus ami TliA 
Gxuoordinllr) Items 
Profit Befort fa, 
T :L'\ l.\pcn~c: 
• ln:ome l :L'\ m c\traordiuuy items 
• CJrrent Ta.\ 
• D:ferrc:d Till. 
• Ptc•ious ~con' ta.'\ odjU'llmcnt 
1\ET PROFIT FOR Til£ PERJOD/YEAR 
l.anunp pc:r t.:~uity share of race\ ilUe of 
Rs. I 0' • each (Pre' ious year at R~. I )(. each) 
Basic and Dil11ed (in Rs.l 
On )ndin.ary hem<: 
On e'\traordin:J} items 

H>K I Ill )I i\R 
I M)l f)JI\1 

Mi\R(.'II. 21125 
(lb.) 

IS.m<1.7<1 
ICJS.4S 

15.2f0.19 

12.9~9.74 

(2<8. 11) 
6<>2.45 
2~ 1.46 
I ~3.46 

1.2n.s1 
15.036.81 

2~3.3 11 

2AJ.J!I 

19.75 
62.65 
9. 13 

lt l.83 

4.97 

(Amount Rs. II lakhs) 
I Oft II If YrAR 

LND.D JI-1 
\>11\ Rn 1. 202.1 

(JU.) 

1).468.97 
69 33 

IS.538.30 

ll394.12 

(268.69) 
550.1 8 
282.59 
157.26 

1.251.03 
15,366.50 

171.80 

171.80 

4-1.51 
(6.291 

IJJJ8 

~.68 

Tht- ~r:~nyinp. \.ote Nos. 10 dO lonn :on '"'"1'"'1 part of tle fin:>nc:inl ' '·"'"menu.. 

A OITOR' REPORT 
AS PER 0\..'R REPORT OF EVEN DA T: ATTACHED 
1-0RKA;\ ALJAI ' A'iO AS 0 IAli'.S 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT A~ 1 S 

FOR QUALITY FOILS (I DL\) UMITED 

,~, ~ v ~r .... -4- k . ,..,. 
/ -·~ l ~c~ ~~ :t~ 

I WA~ VI UIIARUA VA KUWJP BIIARGA vJ 
(M31a&in& Diltctor) (Chninnan & Director I 

(DIN: 0001 1205) (DIN: ()JO JII03) 

@?~ 
AMEl.IA NELSON 

(Company . ecn:tary) 

-~ ., ,.. 
AI ROlli I\'<[) JAI · 

(( hid Hnanci:ll Ollico!rl 



Q UALITY FOILS (INDIA) LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2025 

PARTICULARS 

A Cash lnflow /(Outflow) from Opera1in g Activities 
Net Profit Before Tax & Ex1raord~nary Hems 
AdJustment lor 
Oeprec1a1Jon 
Interest Income 
01vicend lncoll'e 
Fo~n Currency Fluctua!Jon 
L1ablt1Jes writ1en off 
Prol1 on Sale of F•xed assets 
Ftn310S Cost 
Operating Profit before worl<tng Capital Changes 
AdJustment for: 
(lncrease)/Dectease in lnventor.es 
(lnC1aase)/Dec1ease 1n trEde rece1vables 
(lncrease)/Oecrease in other assets 
lncrease/(Oecrease) 1n Uabili1ies and provisions 
Cash Inflow from OperatJr.g Activities 
Interest Income 
L1abl1ties written off 
Fore.gn Currency Fluctualon 
lncollle Tax Paid 
Cash Inflow Be.'ore EJ<tra Ordinary 1tems 
Extra ordtnary rtems 
Net Ca~h Inflow 

B Casb lnflow/(Outflow ) from Invest ing Act iv ities 
Purmase of Capttal GoOOSfFtxed Assets 
Sale of Capital goods/Fixed Assets 
(lncraase)/Decrease In other non current assets 
lncrease/(Decrease) In nco-current Liabilities/provisions 
Drv~rend tncorr.e 
lnco111e Tax on extraordinary items 
Net Cash from Investing actJVrties 

C Cash ln flow/(Outflow ) from Financing Act iv ities 
Proceeds from Issue of share capita 
ProGeeds rrom long term borrowings 
Proceeds from short term borrowtngs 
Repayment of bng term t<lrrowings 
Interest Pa1d 
Net cash from Rnancing activiltes 
Net Changes in Cash & Gash Equivalents 
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Opening balance) 
Cash & cash Equivalents (Closing balance) 

AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Amoun1 R.s. In Lakhs) 
For the year ended For lhe year ended 

31.03.2025 3103.2024 

243.38 171 80 

17346 157 26 
(33 91) (37 98) 

(0 17) (0 17) 
(0 55) (5 83) 
(0.05) (0 57) 

(155 95) 
231 ~6 28259 

457 68 56711 

(620 91) 232 07 
(47 75) 608.45 

(241 97) 9262 
26488 ~6.83} 
(188.07) , 493 41 

33 91 3798 
005 057 
0 55 583 

(38 881 (44 51 ) 
(192.44) 1.493.28 

(192) 1,493.28 

(2,528.22) (598 81) 
218.05 
347 93 (290 37) 

0 09 599 
017 (} 17 

(1 ,961.98) (883.01) 

2,02046 J49 2/ 
1,340 02 {854 22) 
(95653) (293 24) 

(231 46) (282 53) 
2 172.48 (1.080.77) 

18.08 (470.51 ) 
109 52 58004 

127.59 109.52 

f OR QUA LITY FOILS ( INDL\) LIMITED 
AS I'CR oun ru:rorn orcvm~ DATI: A T r Acu r; o -rtf ?V-~· .. 'i1L ~· -vt.-

..--- . (j ~~ ~ ~._ 'IA.'-

TEJASVII311AJ(GWA [ KUUtP 13l tARUA~ "<1 

~. 
(CA i\KI II(t;~ 
f'ARTNEJ( 

Pl•cc l li.~r 

Dot~~. M~y IS, 202~ 

(Mannging Ont.'Citlr} (Chairman & Dm.~liir{ 
(DIN: 000 11205) (DIN 000 11 103) 



Qtl U T\ ...Oil.S(INOIA) LIM I I'ED 
ol~ on Fiu•ti•I SIIItmt niS for lht )l'lr t ndtdJ lSI Marth, 202!1 

l'1\ { IICI I ARc; 

2 EQt tn SHARE CAPITAl.: 
AlJIIIORI'\1 :o t '\I' IT 1\1 • 
rq~it) Shnr~ot K~. 101-C!lch 

IS~ HJ. SlllS<.RIUID~ 11/\11> \ 11 C/\1'1 1 AI 
lljlit~ Shar .. ~orR,. 101-cuch lull) ,nid up 

1 t nasiRichtJ 10 Equity Sbrn : 

"' 111 J hr Mrrrt~ 
No. of 'hill'\:\ A1l<llllll 

4000()()() _ _ ...;.;4 )().;;.;·.;;.;()(~) 

285 100() __ _..2~-5 ... 40-

1 1 k CllCllf"'R\ hi.~ onlY one cl~ of-.htrn n: fcm:dto ·~ Equll) ShllrC:$ hD\ ng D face \&lUC orR~ IV- each 
n UUl CljU11\ Sw-dlOida 11 enutkd f01 one \Ole per share 
(I ) R«ontilillion of tbt •umber cl shutS o•tstandin£; 

Lqlil) Shnrc:. 
S~ OUhtnrding Dlthchcginningofthc )Clll'(FV 10/- each) 
AJd: Frtsh lures issucddurins the year (I'V 10/- each) 
Sha-cs outslanling 01 t11ccnd of thcycor CFV 10/- eoch) 

1\~ 01 31.0;.2025 
No. of dlal'Cs 

28S4000 

2854000 

(b) Tbt details of Shlrt~olders holding mort than 5% shares: 
Nome ot the sh:rrcholdcr 

Ku~ip Bh~~~p'o 

Tcju' i Bhar~\a 
S:ucllitc l>c' copcrs P\'t.l.td. 
Qwlit~ lllinlcss P\ t Lid 
Qual H) Bio G-cen P\1. l.Jd. 
(r) Promoten' Shar'l'holdi•g: 

1\s m J I ,!IU02~ 

No. ot\harc~ %of ~h~es 
6621100 2J 22% 
173600 6.08% 
334250 11.71 % 
184200 o.4S~. 
230550 !.Orlo 

(Aif!ounl Rs. Ill Lakhs) 
A\ 1\Jiq Mno;h~ 

'~o. uf h.arn /\mount 

41KKIO(<I 400.00 ___ ......,.;,;.. 
211540(() __ ...;.;28~5~..10;;.. 

1\l.llt 31.03.2024 
"'o. or lJ!arC\ 

211 4000 

2854000 

t\) U! 3!.03.21!24 
No. of share~ ~~of shares 

6221!00 21.82,. 
123600 4.33°o 
518250 18.l6"o 
184200 6.45'1o 
230~~0 8.01r'. 

:-.lame of the JYOO!Oicr As at 3 1.03.2)2~ AH!I 31.03.3>24 •.ch~clunng 

Kukiip Bhnrg&\11 
Tcj.ll>\i Bharg,l\a 
Kukiip BhargM (HUF) 
m. Anshu tnarga' a 

Taras' i Bharr.l\a 
JagJcc.:p Bluutava 
\i;r~jub VasuJe~2 

Qwlity ~tainlcss Pvt Ltd 
Qullit~ Bio G·ccn P"t. Ltd. 

3 RESER ES AND SURPLUS: 
GJ:\l~RAL RESERVE 
/\s per last Balance heel 
1\dd: During the yc:ur 

<;f.CliRII V PREMIUM 
/\~ p.:r l:bt B..lancc hcc: 
Add. During the )ear 

Sl~PI.US: 
Prulit a.nd Lo: account 
As per l:bt B:Lsnce ' hc:e' 
~ 1 ransfcrrcd to (k:n.:rul Rc..cf\c 

/\dJ~ Profit for the pcnoo'}-.:ar 

No. of shrres 
662!)() 
173000 
130050 
115200 

lllro<l 
13:00 
Y/000 

184200 
230550 

% or ~hart:..' No. or ,hares 
23.22% 622800 

6.08% 12J600 
4.56~o 130050 
4 .(J.I"ro 115200 

4.62~. H900 
0.47~. l3500 
0 Qc;•/. 17000 
6.4Wo 184200 
8.08% 230550 

32.10 

32.10 

6!8.00 

6!8.00 (b) __ _.:.:=~ 

1.877 71 

1.1117 71 
UU!5 

2.019.56 
1.1!9 66 

(c) 
Total (ul b' c) __ __,..-.,,.;.;,..,;...... 

~.of shares lhc:\c:at 

21.82V. 1.4~· 
4.33•. 1.75~. 

4.56'o ~. 
4.04·· ~. 

!.117". 1.15•. 
0.47'• <r. 
0.95'. ~~ 

6.45'• ~. 

8.0~. ()!. 

K!. IO 

82.1() 

628.00 

6!8.00 

1.7~ 13 

1.7-H 13 
133.511 

Ul77.71 
1387.81 



QIIAI.IT\ FOII.S(I"'DlA) UMITEO 
"ol~ on I manclal . talemtnb fer lht )tlr ended J 151 March, 2025 

4 LO'G TERM BORRO\\ l"'lGS: 
' t. llREO: 
I mrn "'" Bani.. I til -lcm1 I o.m• 
l m•n \'\I' IJ,tnl. I ld • \\ ( '11 under I ( I ( .~ • • 
I 1\!111 lrtCI Banll hl. · Wrtl •" 
I N~l '-anal hman.1 (ll'llft1111 B.1nl.. .... 
l'nt11 \lcrccJ.::--II:uv I i1~ \c:r,icc' lm.lm l'•ll.td .. "'" 
I n•11 h.olnl.. \llahmdm U:u1l.. I ttl 

l' H "'l RED: 
ll\!11 ()11"-'r JlJI'II~V 

• Ou~'tti'D 
• c,,rpor.uc k1Jn~ 

i\' :11 l hi March. 202S 
i\mnunl 

1. 127711 
(11167 

)19.114 
25.112 
24 olll 

<-•l __ ....;.;t·;;..s~~s.;.;.. t 9~ 

SS3.71 
10.16 

(b) 563 87 
rocal (a ~ b) ---.2,..;. ri1 2~2 -iro6;.-

(Amount R,, In l.al.lls) 

\' at ll '' \I an: h. 2024 
\moun I 

310J8 
11>-1.67 

lQ ss 
703.31! 

1.217 911 

12.5.1-1 

125. 1J 
u:u.12 

'l oon(s) on: ~'Cured against: a) First pnrri-possu charge with other lcndors on lnunovubh: propeny. on mo~oble fhcd us"':t~ or the 
wmp.ul) c\ccpl linnnccd cxclusiwly chw·j,ocd hy other bunks uno on prc~cn t w1d future currcnl ns.'ICIS or &he company 11M: loWl is 
rcpa}ablc in monthly instalments. l he loan(s) carries rate ofinteresl from 1!.65% p.a. to 9.25% p.n. 

.. Scnlrcd b~ ~"\tCil~ion orc,isting charge by equitable mortgage on company's immovuble propcnil.:s and h}pothec<~~•on ormo,able lhcd 
a..\!111:'!1 hlllh pn.""-'11t and IU1urc. The lean rs rcpay.tblc in montltly instalmentlt. l11c loan t".srrics rate of intmst mngmg from 8.65• o p.n. to 
9.2S'o p.a.. mduding current maturitic>. 

•••1\a:un.'tJ h) .:.'\!CnSIC)O or e~isting charge by C(jUli:Jble mortgage on compan)1S invnovab\: pt'OJX:rt.i<."S and hypothccaJOn or mo\ahle lhed 
~!.,:) both pn::.cnt and futun: The kan b rep:!} able in monthl} instaliJents. The loan comes ra1C of inlereSI rang.llg from s.s.s•. p.ll.. 10 
9 2.S' • p a.. rndodmg current m3tunttcs. 

• """ \ecused b~ bypolhcc:!llOII of ~Ch'((es, The loan(S) are repayable in n1onlhl} inslalmc:nts. lbc loon c::uriQ l'liiC (If llllen:SI <1 8 85' op.a. 

••••• ecured by hypothecation of vehick:s. The loan(s) are n.j>ayablc in month I}' instalmcnl"- The loan cam~ rate of intc~ a 7.81°• 
p.a. 

Marar1o fronte or borrowt.a' an as sr1 ou1 bttow· (1\IIIUWII JU. in i...&IJb) 

Paniculars Maturi" Profile 
FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 rv 2027-28 Beyond rY T-.cal 

2027-211 

• Au~ Bani.. Lid.-T enn Loan (Ne~q 233.33 233.33 2.33J3 661.12 1361.11 
"''Mls B.W. lui.· 'WCTI. un<k:r tCL(J!:) 10·1.00 60.67 . - 16-t6'7 
• • •1r1C1 Rank Ltd. • wen 166.67 166.67 152.77 486 .. 11 
.... Sanalldl}ana Grarnin BWlk car loon 4.43 ·1.43 -1.43 16.96 30.25 
• ... •\II creed~"' Be01 Fin. Se.rv.· Cnr LMn 14.18 15.44 9.04 . 38 .. 76 

.B!_lal -- 522.71 480.54 399.57 678.08 1.080.90 



QUALITY FOILS (INOIA) LIMI 1'1.:0 
'I ot t~ on t iund1l ' t1tements for tht yeu tlldtd J lsi Murb, 2025 

P\RII('l11 1\RS 

!i LO'I\C TERM PROVI 10~ 

Lonr Tem1 I n plo)cc lknclih ([!ntlllil)) 

6 OTIIER NO' C RRENT LIABI LITIES 
Sec unties 

CLRRENT UABI LIT I~: 
7 IIORTTER\1 BORROWING 

S«w!'M: 
from llanl..\: 
n. Worl..ing Capi\31 Limits (Olsh credit) 
b. I c:ttcr of Credit payable 
c. Current lllJlur iii~ oflong·tcml borrowings 

A~ nl J I ~~ MJtch. 2025 
i\muom 

202. 11 
202.11 

2.411.69 
797.52 
522.71 

3,751.92 

(AiliODn l Jls. Ia LakhJ) 
\~atll\1 lmh. 2024 

Amount 

199.03 
199.03 

3.00 
).on 

1.889.20 

237.72 
2.126.92 

Note· Shon term borrowmg.~ are secured hy lirst pari·tlassu charge by hypolhccution of mw rnntcrinl~. work·m·prug.rc.,,, nrushcd ioods. stores and 
sparu. h<M>k dcbu and movuble und immovable propcry, plant acd machinery, land and burlding of the compan) The: rate of interest on 
borroMngs ranpmp, from 8 6S% p.u to 9 25% p.11. 

lj T RADE PA YABLES* 
Due to Miao IJI1d Sm.tll Entcrpr~c:. 1.15 

Due to others 238.55 
218.55 7.75 

•Refer note no. 28 
9 01 HER CURRENT LIABILITES 

Ad\'ancc tmm customers 13.38 2-t.% 
Statutory dues 9.38 37.36 
Other accoWll payables• 160.04 100.97 

132.80 163.19 
•tnc:ludinp e,.~ ~y.ohl~ 

10 SHORT TERM PRO VI IONS: 
Sbon Term Emplo)ec Benefit& (grntuity) 59.3 1 ~.73 

59.31 4<03 



Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS: 

TANGIBLE ASSETS (Amount Rs In L.a~hs 

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION BLOCK NET B LOCK 

Cost Additions Adjustments/ To:al Cost Upto During Adjustments/ Total As at As at 

Descnpuon _ a!_!t during Transfers/ as at 31-03-2024 the Transfers/ upto 31 .03.2025 3H)3-2024 

31.03-2024 I the year (Deductions) 31.03.2025 Year (Deductions) 31 .032025 

Land 170.21 15.47 - 185.68 - - - - 185.68 170.21 -- -- - --
BuildingS 603.17 379.15 77.26 905.05 192.56 15.09 1515 192.49 712 56 410 61 

Plant & Equipments 3,015.41 2.26028 - 5,275.69 1,528.35 123.57 - -- 1,651 .92 3,623.77 1,487 06 

Office Equipments 85.06 3.74 - 88.80 72.61 6 .39 . 79.00 9 79 12.44 -- ~ --- --
Furniture & Fixtures 25.93 0.09 - 26.02 14.24 1.39 - 15.64 10.39 1169 

-- --
Vehicles 223.61 36.27 - 259.88 103.61 27.02 - 130.63 129 25 120.00 -- --

Total 4.123.39 2,694.99 1 77.26 6,741.12 1.91 1.38 173.46 15.15 2 .070.68 4.671 43 2,212.01 

Cap ital Wor1< In Progress 246.37 2.472.65 2 ,639.42 81.60 - - - - 8 1.60 248.37 

Total 4 ,371 .76 5 167.64 2,716.68 6 822.72 1 911.38 173.46 15.15 2.070.68 4,753 03 2.460.39 

Previous Year's 3,772.95 598.81 - 4,371.76 1,754.12 157.26 - 1.91 1.38 2.460.39 2.018.84 



Ql Ln\ t'Oil.S(I"'OIA) I IMIIM> 
'ott' 011 J.in•nci1l tatrmtnb for thr yrAr tnd~d 3 1st Marth. 2025 

11 lloO'H l RRl:.I'IT INVCSTME:\ rs 
Pankulan 

A I Qt tl1 Y ~II \RIS (Ql 0 II UXAt ~t ) 
(.1) J..,W I o.:rg) Lu.l. 10 
(!-} Orhit Curpmuinn l.h.l. 10 
(~,;) Vic.k.'\K:Cin Industries l td. 10 
(II) ltcho~.nw l'o\\cr ltd. 10 
I 0111- '\ 
B. LQL II Y IIARL.., (lll\QlJ01 D)(At co~t ): 

(II) l B ~l.Un~ Ltd. 10 
lhl Qualit) 'icainb' P\ . I td. 10 

(1'1\ : """' Q07261\) 
Tot.tl - ll 
CrRA\11) I 0 I <\I. (Aill) 
A~gutc Mw~ct value of quoted investment~ 

13 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
(llmecurcd :md eonsidcred sood) 
Advances to wpplicrs of capital goods 

14 OTHER NON CURRE~T ASSE1 
(Un-.ccurcd :md considcttd good) 
S..o.:.uit) di!p()Si~ 

15 1'11\ ' tNTORJES 
1. R:m \1 ataial 
ii Worl.-in-rrogrcss 
iii. l'inbhcd Goods 
;, '"'"'' ~r•~ and c::N'I~tmcahl~ 

16 TRADE R£CEIVABLESN 
~red. con•iJcred good 
l05CCUrcd. considered good' 
1. U:s\ t.hW1 si\ months 
ii More than si'C month:. 
Dout.t rul 

II Reier note no. 29 

~Jl..IIJ...2U2S 
II. ul \hJI'C\ AMOI N I 

H610 

50000 
13()() 

27 

sooo 
144600 

HM 
20.02 
7.92 
O.o7 

36.6, 

0 ~~~ 
2.89 

3.39 
~0.03 
47.4 I 

61.27 
61.27 

432.17 
424.04 
7SJ.82 
4'18 . .25 

2.ox8.28 

2.403.56 
51.23 

2.434.79 

• )nduc.ling R~. uil (Pn:viuos year Hs. I 50.87 lokhs) 1rodc r~ccivublcs from u rdutcd pll!ly. 
17 CA II AND CASII EQUIVALENr 

(a) Cnh and usb tquivaknl 
(lbh in hWld 
l};llancc \\ith BWlu in Current Accounb 

(b) Othtr 8~ak biiiii«S 
I 'I T crm d.:p.>sit nccounl'l 
tMuturit;> more th:~n3 n onths ~ut less thnn 12 month.") 

0.41 
6.32 

120.!!(> 
127 ~I) 

(1\mo.nt M1. Ia lakh) 

•\> ul 3 I .t!J.2Uf I 
'o nr \h:m~ \"-IOl N I 

HMO 
51~)(1() 

l liMI 
27 

SIOO 
14.4~ 

K.6t 

20.o2 
7,92 
0.07 

'6M 

0.511 
21!9 

3.39 
~0.03 

46.64 

) 42.1)3 

tl6 lJ 
hOJ" 

16866 
607.-IIJ 
102.21 
389.01 

1.467 "' 

!.339.84 
67.20 

1.26 
20.K4 

87.-H 
lO'b~ 



QUALITY FOILS (INDIA) LIMITED 

Notes on nancial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 
{(Amount Rs. in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March. 2024 
Amount Amount 

8 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES: 

(Unsecured and considered good) 
Advance to suppliers 26.88 17.68 

76,88 T7.68 

19 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
(Unsccured and considered good) 
Balance with revenue authoritics 219.50 - 

Prepaid expenses 7.48 233 
Advance Income Tax/TDS (Net) 12.74 23.06 

Other receivables 30.78 12.35 
270.50 37.74 

PARTICULARS 2024-25 202324 
20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sales of Products 14.877.87 15.290.42 
Job Work 204.32 174.55 
Export Incentives 2.55 4.00 

1346897 

31 OTHER INCOME 
Interest received from Bank and others 3391 37.98 

Dividend received 0.17 017 
Forcign Currency Fluctuation 035 5.83 
Liabilities written oft 0.05 0.57 
Rent Received 4.82 2479 

Profit on sale of fixed assets 155.95 - 
195.45 69.33 

22 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED 
RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED : 
Opeining Stock 168.66 750.18 
Add: Purchases (Net of discounts) 1321325 12812.61 

13.381.91 13.562.79 

Less: Closing stock 432.17 168.66 
Cost of Materizl consumed 12.949.74 1339412 

23 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS 
AND STOCK-IN-PROCESS 
Opening Stock of Finished Goods 302.20 171.79 
Opening Stock of work-in-progress 607.49 469.22 

909.69 641.01 
Closing Stock of Finished Goods 75382 30221 
Closing Stock of work-in-progress 42404 607.49 

1,177.86 909.70 
Changes in Inventories [EIA) 68.69) 

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 
Salaries, Wages and Other Benefits 602.28 501.64 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 4478 3671 
Workmen and staff welfare 1539 .83 

66245 330.18 



1arrh, 2025 
( meunl It~. lalakhsl 

1'\KIICll \R" "' ut 31st Murd1 2(12~ lh · ' "\t 1\lllr.:h 2021 
/\mount /\mount 

2!' I-IN \ NCE ('()I, r : 
lntcr.~t p:mlto Ounl..' 21 1.77 2'i3 26 
lnh.:n.-<,~ p.tid hll>th.:r~ 1.32 8.49 
Otlxr l'iu.-.ndul in•. iJ~:nt.ll ( har)!~.:" IU7 20.&.1 

211li'i 28B9 

Z6 OTliER EXPI:I'S t:S 
\ ' l A\ t An l RI"G F\PENS~: 

~ton. <;pan:, n~d l.:tllhurnl.blc:. 41~.92 398.30 
l't>\Hf mtd I ud 505.31 475JI 
Jt\ll chaJl:l.'' p.uJ 1UJ 20. 17 
I n:i~ht I"" nrJ JS.88 24.59 
Repair .1nJ Mailtcnan~c - \lachinCI) 03 4.08 
Repair Jnd Monttn.lfiCc - Fo.:lol) Otilding 1 28 2.28 

Sub-toed 981.<15 924.74 
13 EU.ING, ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHERS: 

/\dYcl1hcrncnt ~nd puhlicity 0.66 1.43 
Auditors' Kcrnuncrmion (Rdn04c "" J 11 IJ.65 0.65 
Boob nnd Pcri.xllcal:. D.l7 11.06 
Busncss l' romolion E.\pcn\c 5.61 27.92 
C'ornnis~ion or ~3(~, IU1 18.2-1 
OiSQ>um and Rebates 1}.62 6.28 
Domtions J.l6 1.14 
Fcc ll1d Subscription IHI 2 1.37 
hei&ht Oul\~111\1 11?.21 117.57 
Ratcs.md ~~~ ).~ 11.05 
lnruunce Cbaz&cs 1).80 12.59 
l.qaj and Pmfcs.~ional C'tru}!e.<o us 4.74 
Gcrural ~pcn.cs U2 4.93 
Posuge a.oJ T dc:phune S.IJ 6.09 
Prm.ing and Sotioncl) 3.99 -1 .13 
Rc:u. p.sh.l .fl.l6 35.77 
Rc:pUr and M<Lntc:nance-misc. 2.08 3.18 
Stmdl) Bal~ \\ loll 0.27 0.88 
GSTnnput T axfSc:n icc I" ax 2.00 0.7:! 
1 ra\clling and Com C!)aJKe 2".11 J.t.51 
Vchclo Runnn~ and 'vtaintc:nance 2175 16.65 
\\ ala upenses 13.77 i.J8 

Sub-total 301.92 326.30 
GRAND TOTAL 1.287.87 1.151.03 



Q ALITY FOIL (INDIA) LIM ITE() 
(CIN: L27107HR1990PLC030Q2C)) 

Notes on Fin ancial tat~ments for the Ycarcnd cd 3 1st Ma rch, 2025 

Tl. ShareCllpital 

--------------------

i.) Auth«ised h:rc Capita : The Alihorised Share Capital of the Comp::vty as on March 3 . 2025 i~ 

Rs.4,00.00.000/-divided iuto 40.00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. l(}'- each. 

ii) The company is a public limited company and is listed on SME Platfonn of National Stod 
bchange of India Ltd. (NSE EMERGE). 

28. Trade Payables: 

(i) Based on the intimution received from supplier(s) regarding their status under lhc Micro. Small and 
Medium Enterprise~ Development Act, 2006, the requiled disclosure is given be low • : 

(Rs. In lakhs) 
Sr 
N 

As a· March . As at March 

L!. 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

0 . 
1 Puticulars 

P;ncipal aoount due outstanding I 
ltterest due on ( I) above and uapaid I 
Lnterest paid to the S\4)plier(s) 

Payments made to Lilt: suppliel{s) beyond the appcinted day during the 
year. 

I Interest due and paya!llc for the period of delay 

Interest acaued and remaining unpaid 

I Amount of further interest remaining die and peyable in succeed in~ j 
7 

year 
• To lhe e.xtent infonnation available with the company. 

{ii).Trade Payables Ageing: 

Ageing as at 31.031025 

Particulars Less than I year -- I year 2 year 
MSME - . 
Others 238.55 

1-~ . 

Oi~puted dues- MS\.1E - . 

Disputed dues- Other.. - -TOTAL 23g.ss . 

1 
Age>ng '"' J 1.03102< 

Less than I year 
Pa.nieuhus I year 2 year 
MSME 7.7) 

Others 
D1~putcd due~· MS'v1E I DJ:.putcd dues- Othm> 
TOTAL 7.7) 

2 year · 
3 year 

1-. 
-

. 

. 

. 

2 )ear 
3 )'~.:ar 

31.2025 31, 2)24 

- 7.75 
. - I 
. - I 

. . I 

. - I 

- - I 
- . 

Rs In lakh 
More than 
3 year rota I --- - -- . 
- 138.55 

- . 

. 23~55 I . 

Rs. ln lalh 
Mo·e than 

-1 

3ytar 

==1 



29.Trade R~eiva•lcs At,tcin2: 

Rs. In laJ..h AJ!eing a at 31.03.2025 

icuhm Pan 
Und isputtd trade receivables-

Less than 
six 

Not Due month> -

Six More 
month<. I )'Car I ~Dn 

2 )Car 3 
I year 2 )CDr 3 )COr yc~m 

f- ~ 
con idcreJ good 

isputcd trade Und 
cons 
Dis 
con 

iden:d doubtful 
putcd trade 
sidercd good 
putcd trndc 

con 
TO 

sidered doubtful 
TAL 

1360.1 I 1043.45 
receivables-

- --rectivobles-
- - -rcetivnblcs-

- -

19.18 6.97 1.95 -
- - -

- - -

- - ---

060 

I -

~53 
13 

2U2.26 

~2.53 I 

I m~.79 · l
Ois 

Ageing a s at 31.03.2024 Rs. In lakh 

I 
----- - I Six More 

Less than lllOI'ths I year than 

six 2 )~3T -
., 
.) 

Particular> Not Due months I yw 2)eaT J )Car __years Tctal 
-

Undtsputtd traCe recetvables-
considcn::l good 1243.45 1096.39 18.22 17.45 U8 712 2384.51 -
Undtsputtd trace receivables-

1- -I considered doubtful - - - - -
Disputed trade rc:cdvables· 
considereil good - - - - - 2!.53 22.53 - -
Disputed tradt receivables-
considen::l doubtful - - - - - I - -
TOTAL 1243.45 1096.39 18.22 17.45 1.88 I 29.65 2407.0-t I 

30. C apttal Work-in - progress (CWU): 
Agi ng schedu le ns on 31.03.2025 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

P'o)ects nc:~:,.,-- j 
Projects temporari 
suspended 

Less than I I -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

year ·- years 
8 1.60 - - - l ly - - - -

-~ount in CWIP for u perio_d,_o-=r-- Toul-l 
81601 -

Aging schedule as on 31.03 .2024 

CWIP Amount in CW IP fo1 u pc1 iol.l of Toul 

4
Less than I 1-2 yeus 2-3 years More t han J 
year years 

ProJects n progress 248.37 
ProJect s tern pora rtl ----if-----t-----+--

L suspende;l 



31 ud itan ' remuneru tion : 

(n) ~lnlut<ln audit rcc 

(b) 1 n\ nu d1t ftc and o her ccrlification 

3 1.03 202S 

·J 3 5 
I) 30 

32 Cont in~e nt Lia b il iti h (To the u t ent no t prev ided for): 

(a) Bank Gunrantcc!l 
(b) Corporate Guaran tees 

1Li>l.2022 
!8.92 

1585.00 

(Ri In la~h) 

31 .03 20~4 

0 35 
0 30 

( R s. In I a ~h ) 
31.03.2024 

29.1 I 
950.00 

JJ . lnfornHati on regardi ng l~ c lattd parties and transactio ns with t hem : 

A . Li~t of' K ey Mnnagcmcnl Personnel an d re lated partie~ . 

a. Key Managc menl l' erson ne l: 

i. Sh. Kuldip Bhargava - Chairman & Dirtctor 
11 . Sh. Tcjasvi Bhargava - Managing Director 

111. Sh. Mohan Lal - Direc tor 
1\ Sb Rird h1 C hand Jain -Chief Fiaancial Off1 ce r 

v. Ms Ameli:~ Nclsoa -Company Secretary 
Relatives of Key Management Personnel : 

i. Slllt. Di\1}3 Bhargava 
ii . S'Tlt. Preet Bhargava 

ii1 . Snt. Anita Ja in 
b. Enterprises over which Key Managemen t Personnel and their relatives 

c>.erciS\! ~ignificant in fl uence with "hum traJhactiom ha"c taken place 

during th e year· 
1. Quality Stainless Pvt Ltd. 

11 . Quality 8 10 Green Pvt. Ltd . 
iii . Qua lity 8 1ocnerg) LLP 

c. rrnnsae tions wilh related pa rt ies: 

Parlicular~ 

Ma~agcr ial 

Remuneration 

lntcrc~t pai4 

Rcr~unerat1on 

and 

Nature of I Name of related party 
rclarionship 

KMP 

K'vtP 

ReiJtives 
KMP 

other 1\s\ociatc 
con<crn 

or 

I Sh. Kuldip Bhrgava 
Sh. Tejasvi B'targava 
Sh Mohan Lal 
Sh. Birdhi Chand Jain 
M s Amelia Nelson 
Sh. Kuldip B~argava 
Sh Tejasvi Bllargava 
Mrs. Divya B~arga' a 
Mrs. Prcct Bhargava 

f M "· A'"" J• " 
Qualit} Staint!>\ P I td 
Quality BioGrccn PI td 
()ual rty UJocncrgyi.I.JI 

, 
J I " 

March 
2025 

6 .n 
49.42 
342 
I~ 58 
3.53 

3.30 
072 

Rs. in lakhs 
3 I" 

M arch 

2024 

61.42 
49 4::! 
2 50 
12 06 

0 10 

00~ 
6 2::! 
6 22 
6.13 



I Purchase i 

scrV ICCS 

and other A. sociatc 

conce rn 

Recet\ablc fro m 

Po)ablc to 

As~ociatc 

concer n 

34 . A dd iti o nal i nfo rmati o n : 

G ross Inc ome from Job Wort · 

i i} 

I 
Raw material Consumpt ion: 

SS Strip and other goods 

j l\urum 1.1bricn t ion 
r Qual it ) "Iaine\' 

td . 
.... 1 

-t Qual it ) S t oi n.:'" "'' t 
L. td . 

C)h K uld1p Bhar,avn 

h. TejaH i Bhar~o\a 

C urren t Year 
----:----- 204.32 J 

12949 74-r 

0 Cj~ 

I 16 Il l 

4 I J (1(1 

140 6~ 

11 . :!4 

I ~0 8 7 

H OC) 
I)J 05 

Pre v 1ou' Year 
174 .55 

IJJ'>-1 . 1::! 1 

Breal. -up of consumption of Raw Mater ia ls and Stores & Spares into I mp ortcd and 
Ind igenous: 

a Raw Rs. 

Imported: -
l ndi~enous I 100 12 949 .74 

2.22 

14.70 

b. Stores & Spares : 
-----~·----~-----' mported : 0.53 

!---i-
1 lod i~eoo us 1 99.47 

f--v"> Valve of Imports on CIF Basis-

4 

92.34 

66.67 

Capital GooJs 

~ Farningo; in foreign exc ha nge: 
FOB value of expor ts 

s 

4 . 12 
-

I vii) I ex p enditure in Fore ign Currency: 

I 
Foreign Travelling 
Business Promurion eApcns_e_s _____ _,_ ___ 

o, 
3 30 

96.70 

I 

0 75 
9> .25 

I 

R., 
- t-

44! 02 
. 10 -~95:? 

30 6 

395. 

2 I j • 

24S . 96 

12. 5 t) 

6 s Q 

~ Eanings P e r share: 
S Particulars 

R:, . In lnldt !) 
Curre nt Ycn-r - Prcvtous Year 

rNO 

2 

Net profit fo r com pu tation of Basic and 
FPS-

Fron ordinary ac ti vttl es 
Fron ex traordina ry items 

Diluted 1 

Wei~hted average aumber of equity sha re> fo r 

L 
Basic and Diluted EPS 
(Prtviou s year at R>. I 0/ - each) 

--------~-

141 ~5 I J ~ 8 

1854000 285-'000 

The Earntngs per Share { EP ) h a~ been Cl1 nlp ll t~:d in occo rdnncc "it h th · 
Account ing Standard s on l ~ arn t ngs per hare . 



36. Ratios : 
Rat ios Nu mera to r - D~nom i n a lo r FY 

202 4·25 

Cur ren t 
Ratio 

Current 
Asse ts 

Debt-equi ty Total 
ratio 

Debt se rvice 
coverage 
ra tio 

Borrowi ngs 

Jl ro fi 1 before 
tax, interest. 
deprec iraio n 

Curren t Liabi lities 1. 17 

Tota l equ i1y I. 95 

Net fi na nce 0.55 
cosH principal 
repayments or 
lon g te rm 
borrowing5 

Return 
Equ ity 

on Profit after Total equity 4 .7 0 

Invento ry 
tar n ove r 
{no . of 

days) 

Trade 
recei vab les 
turnove r 
(no. 
days) 

r Trade 
payables 
turn over 
(no . 
days) 

of 

ol 

tax 

Average 
lnven10ry 

Average 
Trade 
rece ivables 

Ave rage 
Trade 
payab les 

Jl:et capi tal Net sales 
turnove r 

Net profit Prt> fit after 
margi n (%} ta > 
Return on Profit be fo re 
capi tal ta >. and 

Cost o f producti on 4 5 

Sale of produ cts 59 

Cos t of materia l 3.54 

cons umed + 
c hanges in 
10 ven tory 

Current ass e ts- 12 .40 
c urren t li abilit ies 

Tota l reve nue 0.93 

TNW + total debts 8. 8 1 

FY 
2023-
24 
1.72 

1.21 

1.06 

4 .65 

40 

6•1 

9 . 12 

0 . 86 

I 0 .32 

Va r ia nce R easo~s 
for 
variance 

- f-:-
·3 1.76% due to 

in c rea se 
in s ho rt 

~~r7ow in I 
1- c--::--+ gs __j 

61.01 % due to 

-4 8 .52% 

1.18% 

13 .22% 

-8 .0 9% 

25-l % 

36% 

in crease 
in to t a I 
bo rrow in 
gs 
due to 
increase 
in 
repay men 
1 o f 

borrowin I 
gs 

Due] 1 
inc rea se 
in trad e 
creditors . 

due to l 
decrease 
in net 
cap ill i 

.--+---.:1 
7.9 5% 

- 14.60% 

empl oyed interest 
1----'-

Co' t 

in ves tme nts 

~------~----~-------- ~ 
0 f - - - 4~ti.l::'\ Rc tu rn on C ur r ent M V 

in vestm en ts cost o f 
in,estmcnts 

::-' -~~~ 
' .: \ 1 \'So~ \ 



37. The company has been sanctioned working capi ta l limits in excess o f fi, c 
crore in aggre!!atc from bank~ and/or financ 1al ins lllution' on the ba c; •s or securi '} 
of cu rrent asse ts and the quarterly return and month!) $lotement '> filed by the 
company\\ ith ~u c h ba1 b 0 1 fi nancia l in!>litution<, .111.: in agre ement wi t h th e bools 
ol account o f the company. 

38. Information based on Annua l Ta>. Statement 1r1 form 26AS : AIS and rl ha' e 
been tnl..en into boo l.. c; of account s. 

39 . Deferred tax has been provided in accordance wi th A c co unting tanda rd 22 on 
Accounting for taxes on Income issued by the ICAI. 

40 . Pre' ious yea r ' s figures have been re-arranged and/ or re-grouped wherever 
cons idered necessary and practicable to make them comparable with current ) ear's 
figures . 

Signatures to Notes · I · to ' 40": 

Auditor's Report 
As per our report of even 
date attached. 

fOR .KAN AL 
ASSOCIATES 
Chnrtered Accountants 

JAIN 

(Firm's registration no. 023083N ) 

fJJ/ui74?1 
(CA AKHIL JJ\ 

Partner 

Place : lli sar 
Dated: Ma> 15. 2025 

For and oo be half of tbe Board of Directo r s of 
Quality Foils (India ) Li mited 

(Managtog Director ) 
(DIN: 000 11205) 

• 

~~ 
Ms. AMELI A EL 0 

(Co mpany Secreta ry) 

(Chairman & Director) 
(DlN: 000 Ill 03) 

(.---..... . ,... 
~~ ~~ 

BIROHI <QJA NO JAI'l 
Cht e f F1 nanclnl Offi cer} 



QUALITY FOILS (INDIA) I.IV!ITED 
(f'om-..:rly known a:. Quality Foib (India) Privat.- Lnnit~ll) 

(CIN L2710711RI990PL C030929l 

Regd Onicc· 3, Industrial Development Colon}. Htsar-125005, HRI)•ana 
\l 01TF.I) !,•L\ T E"I f.:-IT ()F VI:'\AN('IAL RF$l1LTS FOR TilE IIAt F-H AR I:"Of:D 0'\ JIST \1,\R('ll •• 2025 

{Rs. In Lakhs) 

PARTICUlARS l·w t.he Half ~-ear endt.•d For The Y car ended 
01 10 2024 10 01 04 2024to 01 10 2023 to 3bt March 11st Man:b 

31 03.2025 30 09 :!0~4 310J 2024 1025 20::!4 

(Audited) (llnaudtted ) (Audnetll (Audnetl) !Audttci.ll 

RF.VFM 'I• 

RC\ cm>e from Opcrunons 7382 85 7701 89 7348 91 1:\084 74 I :i-1611 9' 
Other Income 34 50 16U.95 41 06 195 -t; 69 33 

Total Rc• enu~ 7~ 17.35 7862.84 7l!N97 1~280 19 15538 10 

EXPEMl ES: 

CuSJ Clf Mrucnul Consumo!d 6621 96 6327 78 61ll46'i 129-19 7-1 1339-11~ 

Chan~;'Cs in l"'cntoric-; ofFtnished 

goods and Wod-tn-projll'css -536 16 26799 -J1 52 -26817 -268 6~ 

Employee Benelit E.~pen.~ 34 'i 4-1 31701 26-1 16 b624'i 5~0 11 

Fmanc:e CO!.t 131 84 9'162 166-B 231-lb 2s2 sq 
Ocprcctauon &9 70 83 76 7'1 39 173-lh 157 20 
Oth.!r l.xpen • ...,. 623 31! 664 -1<) 6-IS .:!7 1287 87 1:!51 ().l 

1 OIMI £\pen- 7276 16 77606S 7301\38 15036 81 15366 50 
l'rofit fn>m orid inuy aclh hie. beforr 
Euraord inal") hem" and I u 141 19 Ill~ 19 81 59 :!4338 171 80 

J:.xtmord1nnr. Item~ 
- f'rofit un sale ofl:md 

- Lo-.s on )>a).: of lonf! tl!ml '"' cstmcnts 
Profit Before T n 141 11) IU21Q 81 5., 143 J8 171 811 

rax l:''pcn!oe 

- lncom~ ta" on c:'truordtnaf') ucm.'l 
- Current 1 a,, '>.31 20-1-1 :!038 1975 44 51 

- Del~rrei.l I a' 626~ -0 !~ 6! 6~ -6 29 

- Prc:•io~ \l-nJ"'\'11\ udju.\Unem 9 IJ 913 
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Q ALITY FOILS (INUIA) LIM IT ED 

Notes to the Sta tement of Financi2l Results 

I. The financial results have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Principles gcnerall) accepted 
1n lnd1a. The hnanc1al tatements have been prepared to compl} an all material n:spcm with the 

Accounting tandards. as prescribed under Section 133 of lhc Companies AcL 20 I J and the rules defined 
there under. as amended from t1mc to time and in accordance with the requirements of Regulation JJ of the 
SEBI (I isting Obligations and disclosure RequiremenL~) Regular ions 20 I 5. as amended. rhe above 
financia l results were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their 
respective meetings held on May 15, 2025.lnd AS is not currently flpplicable to the Company . 

.., The Statutory Auditors of the Company have issued their report on aforementioned audited financial results 
for lhe period ended March 31, 2025 which has been taken into records by the Audit Commiuee and the 
board at their respective meetings held on May 15, 2025. The Report does not have any impact on the 
aforesaid financial results which need any explanation by the board. 

3. The figures for the 2"" half year ended March 31, 2025 as reported in these financial results are the 

halancing figure!\ between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the unaudited figures up 
to the end of the 1st half year (i.e. 0 1.04.2024-30.09.2024) of the financial year. The comparative financial 
mformation for the half year ended March 31, 2024 has not been subjected to limited review by the 
~tatutory auditors ami haYc: been presented solely based on the information compiled by the monogcmenL 

4. The Company has issued 7.54,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. I01- each. at a premium of Rs. 501-
per equity share on its Initial Public Offering (I PO) amounting to Rs. 75.4{) lak.hs Equity Share Capital and 

Rs. 377.00 laJchs to"'ards Security Premium. The Equity Shares issued on the IPO of the Compan} have 
been listed on the SME platform of National Stock Exchange (I IN Code: INEOOI MOIO IS) on 24th March. 
2023. 

The funds raised by issue of the IPO are for the purpose of: 
i) Funding capital expenditure requirements towards purchase of machinery; 
ii) To meet the worKing cupital requirements of the Compcmy; 
111) General Corporate purposes; and 
iv) To meet lhe issue e;..penses. 

The funds raised through the IPO have been fully utilized for the specified purpose. and there have been no 
deviations from the intended objects or purposes as mentioned above. The actual amount of funds utilized 
aligns "ith the origmal disclosure. 

5. The Company is operating in a single segment i.e. engineering products. lienee. the above financial results 
arc based on single :.t:gmcnt only. 



b. 1 he figure for the corresronding prev1ous penods have been rcgroup:!d/rcclnssi fied/rcs·atcd whcrc .. cr 

lll'CCSSUJ) to make them comparable. 

7. rP for d1e respective pertods have been calculated based on the weighted nvert~ge number of shares 

outstanding for the said periods. EPS not anmuJized for half year ended. 

8 The above audited finan::ral rest.lts of the company are available on the comp~n}'~ " ::bsite 

www.gualirygroup in and also on the website of NSE i.e. W\IW.nseindia.com where I he shares of lhc:: 
Company are listed. 
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